
Agenda 

Yankton County 
Commission 

6:00 PM, Tuesday, September 3, 2024 
Commission Chamber 

Yankton County Government Center 
 

DOCUMENTS WILL BE AVAILABLE AT AUDITOR’S OFFICE FOR REVIEW 
BEGINNING  

August 30th COPIES AVAILABLE FOR $1.00 PER PAGE 

Meeting chaired by: 

01  Call to order: 

02           Roll Call: 

John Marquardt, Chairman 

6:00 PM                PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

_______Wanda Howey-Fox _______Ryan Heine ______ Dan Klimisch 

_______Don Kettering _______John Marquardt   

 

AGENDA ITEMS 

No. Time Item Description Presenter 

03 6:03 PM 
Abstain                                    

    Financial Conflict of Interest (SDCL 6-1-17) 
Non-Financial Interest-Must State Reason for Abstaining 

Commissioner 
Marquardt 

04  Approval of Agenda  

 6:05 PM Public comment is a time for persons to address this body 

on any subject. No action may be taken on a matter raised 

under this item of the agenda until the matter itself has 

been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon 

which action will be taken. Each person has up to three 

minutes to speak. There shall be no personal attacks 

against the members of this body, county staff, individual, 

or organizations. The Chair has the authority to enforce 

this policy. Failure to adhere to these rules may result in 

forfeiture of the remaining speaking time. 

Public 
Comment 

05 6:10 PM Approve Provisional Budget Auditor 

06 6:15 PM  Vacate Section Line Jeremy Heine 

07 6:20 PM DOT Amendment for Agreement 717396 Highway 



Purchase of new loader 

08 6:25 PM Pathways Will Kennedy 

09 6:30 PM Definitions and Article 26 – Wind Energy Conversion 
Systems 2nd Reading 

Zoning 

10 6:35 PM Meeting Videos   Commission 

11 6:40 PM Yankton County Volunteer Liability Insurance   Auditor 

12 6:45 PM August 20, Meeting Minutes Commission 

13 6:50 PM Claims 

August 2024 Payroll 

Auditor 

14 6:55 PM Public Comments  

15 7:00 PM Commission Updates Commission 

16 7:05 PM Executive Session/ Poor Relief Issues Pursuant to  

SDCL 1-25-2 & 28-13 and 28-13-1.3.  

State’s 
Attorney 

  Items for Next Meeting  

 



County Road Emergency Emergecy Domestic Government Historical Debt Service Napa Jail

General and Bridge E911 Management Abuse Buildings Preservation 24/7 M & PR Safety Center Junction Junction

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

100 General Government

     110 Legislative

          111 Board of County Commissioners 227,576

          112 Contingency 400,000

     120 Elections 25,000

     130 Judicial System 550,000

     140 Financial Administration

          141 Auditor 313,322

          142 Treasurer 379,845

          143 Finance Office (data) 198,747

          149 Other

     150 Legal Services

          151 States Attorney 869,720

          152 Public Defender

          153 Court Appointed Attorney

          154 Abused and Neglected

                 Child Defense

          159 CLERP 10,000

     160 Other

          161 General Government Building 240,700 100,000

          162 Director of Equalization 529,900

          163 Register of Deeds 308,617 10,000

          164 Judgments

          165 Veterans' Service Officer 65,841

          166 Predatory Animal (GFP) 3,000

          167 Disability Coordinator

          168 Self Insurance Plan

          169 Satety Center Building 409,250

          170 Geographic Information System

          171 Information Technology

          172 Human Resources 

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 4,531,518 0 0 0 0 100,000 0 0 10,000 0 0 0

Governmental Funds

PROVISIONAL  BUDGET FOR YANKTON COUNTY, SD

For the Year January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025

D-1/1



County Road Emergency Emergecy Domestic Government Historical Debt Service Napa Jail

General and Bridge E911 Management Abuse Buildings Preservation 24/7 M & PR Safety Center Junction Junction

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

Governmental Funds

PROVISIONAL  BUDGET FOR YANKTON COUNTY, SD

For the Year January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025

200 Public Safety

     210 Law Enforcement

          211 Sheriff 1,842,074 40,000

          212 County Jail 2,375,852 126,409

          213 Coroner 36,400

          214 County-Wide Law Enforcement

          215 Juvenile Detention 506,892

          219 Other Law Enforcement

     220 Protective & Emergency Services

          221 Fire Protection

          222 Emergency & Disaster Services 321,022

          223 Flood Control

          225 Communications Center (911) 282,500

          226 Yankton Search & Rescue 30,198

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 4,791,416 0 282,500 321,022 0 0 0 126,409 0 0 0 40,000

300 Public Works

     310 Highways & Bridges

          311 Highways, Roads, & Bridges 7,202,809

     320 Sanitation

          321 Sewers

          322 Solid Wastes

      330 Transportation

           331 Airport 2,500

           332 Railroad

           333 Other Transportation

      340 Water System

      390 Other Public Works

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 2,500 7,202,809 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

D-1/2



County Road Emergency Emergecy Domestic Government Historical Debt Service Napa Jail

General and Bridge E911 Management Abuse Buildings Preservation 24/7 M & PR Safety Center Junction Junction

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

Governmental Funds

PROVISIONAL  BUDGET FOR YANKTON COUNTY, SD

For the Year January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025

400 Health & Welfare

    410 Economic Assistance

          411 Support of Poor 93,900

          412 Public Welfare 7,500

          413 LIEAP

          415 Contact 25,000

          419 Catastrophic 3,000

     420 Health Assistance  

          421 County Nurse

          422 Health Services

          423 Hospital

          424 Ambulance 1,461,219

          425 Board of Health

          426 WIC

          429 Other 

     430 Social Services

          431 Day Care Centers

          432 Child Support Enforcement

          433 Care of Aged

          434 Domestic Abuse 10,000

          439 Other

     440 Mental Health Services

          441 Mentally Ill 60,000

          442 Developmentally Disabled

          443 Drug Abuse 0

          444 Mental Health Centers 135,737

          445 Mental Ilness Board 75,000

          449 Other

TOTAL HEALTH & WELFARE 1,861,356 0 0 0 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

D-1/3



County Road Emergency Emergecy Domestic Government Historical Debt Service Napa Jail

General and Bridge E911 Management Abuse Buildings Preservation 24/7 M & PR Safety Center Junction Junction

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

Governmental Funds

PROVISIONAL  BUDGET FOR YANKTON COUNTY, SD

For the Year January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025

500 Culture & Recreation

     510 Culture

          511 Public Library 20,000

          512 Historical Museum

          513 County Monuments

          514 Historical Sites 22,000 136,000

          515 Memorial Day Expense

          516 Arts

          519 Other

     520 Recreation

          521 Recreation Program

          522 Parks

          523 Exhibition Building O & M

          524 County Fair

          525 Senior Citizens 44,590

          529 Other

TOTAL CULTURAL & RECREATION 86,590 0 0 0 0 0 136,000 0 0 0 0 0

 

600 Conservation of Natural Resources

     610 Soil Conservation

          611 County Extension 173,737

          612 Soil Conservation Districts 51,666

          613 Rodent Control

          614 Predator Control Districts

          615 Weed Control 155,713

          616 Grasshopper & Pest Control

          619 Other

     620 Water Conservation

          621 Geological Survey

          622 Weather Modification

          623 Water Conservation Districts

          624 Drainage Commission 500

          629 Other

TOTAL CONSERVATION OF NATURAL RESOURCES 381,616 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

D-1/4



County Road Emergency Emergecy Domestic Government Historical Debt Service Napa Jail

General and Bridge E911 Management Abuse Buildings Preservation 24/7 M & PR Safety Center Junction Junction

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

Governmental Funds

PROVISIONAL  BUDGET FOR YANKTON COUNTY, SD

For the Year January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025

700 Urban & Economic Development

     710 Urban Development

          711 Planning & Zoning 275,665

          712 Urban & Rural Development

          719 Other

     720 Economic Development

          721 Tourism, Ind. & Rec. Development 50,000

          729 Other

TOTAL URBAN & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 325,665 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

750 INTERGOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES

800 DEBT SERVICE 285,000 500,000

850 Payments to Local Education Agencies

890 Capital Outlay

900 Other Uses

     910 Other Financing Uses

          911 Transfers Out 4,566,037

          912 Payments to Refunded Debt Escrow

          913 Special Items

          914 Extraordinary Items

          915 Discount on Bonds Issued

TOTAL OTHER USES 4,566,037 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL EXPENDITURE APPROPRIATIONS 16,546,698 7,202,809 282,500 321,022 10,000 100,000 136,000 126,409 10,000 285,000 500,000 40,000

Capital Outlay Accumulations

     (SDCL 7-21-51)

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 16,546,698 7,202,809 282,500 321,022 10,000 100,000 136,000 126,409 10,000 285,000 500,000 40,000

D-1/5



MORTGAGE LOAN INSPECTION 

..., ;.._ 

g :I 

I 
I 

i1.+· 

FOR STACEY BOROWSKI 

•• CON9!ffi ... 
.DRIVEWAY 

R£S1DENC£ 
113.g• 

NOTE:-----. 
RESIDENC£ EHCROACHES 

lN10 ROW .AS SHOWN. 

COV£R£D 
EWT!?Y 

� \_wooo 
DECK 

� JJ' R/Gfff OF WAY LJNE 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

HILLESLAND TRACT 1, LOCATED IN L07S 1 AND 2 OF PARCEL A AND IN PARCa B OF 1,/cVAY ADOITTON, 
ALL B£JNG LOCATED IN TH£ N\I¼ OF TH£ � AND IN TH£ S� OF TH£ NIW.., SECTION 18, T93N, 
R56W, OF THE 5TH P.M., YANKTON COUNTY, SOUTH DAKOTA 

50 0 50 100 

./JJUITN Br. 

JLB 

Cllllt:aD BT: 

JLB 

JUtr.• 

- --
- - - -

Scale 1 n = 50' 

7-24-2024

PB()J.NO.: 

24149 

LEGEND: 

e FD. MONUMENT 
(R) RECORD DISTANCE 
(M) MEASURED DISTANCE 

PR8PARI./J BT: 

BRANDT 

LAND 

SURVEYING 
1202 WIUOWD,4LE ROAD 

YANKTON, SD 57078 
BUS.: (605) 665-8455 
CELJ.: (605) 661-2457 
FAX: (605) 665-1623 



DOT-905C 
(02/2022) 

Page 1 of 1 

AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 

AGREEMENT NUMBER 717396 
 

BACKGROUND: 

 
1. On August 27, 2020, the State of South Dakota, acting by and through its Department of Transportation, 

referred to in this Amendment as the “STATE,” and Yankton County, referred to in this Amendment as 
the “COUNTY,” entered into an Agreement, which agreement referred to in this Amendment as 
“AGREEMENT,” was signed by representatives of each party and assigned agreement number 717396 
by the STATE; and, 

 
2. The parties having previously amended the AGREEMENT wish to further extend the term of the 

AGREEMENT. 
 
THE PARTIES MUTUALLY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. Paragraph 3 of the AGREEMENT is amended to read as follows: 
 
 This Agreement is effective on the date of the letter of award attached as Exhibit A. The preliminary 

engineering work contemplated by this Agreement will be completed no later than December 31, 2025.  
No reimbursements will be processed by the STATE for work performed after the date of December 31, 
2025. 

 
2. Except as specifically modified by this Amendment, all terms and conditions of the original AGREEMENT 

referred to above, together with any prior amendments to such AGREEMENT, will remain in full force 
and effect. 

 
The COUNTY has designated its County Commission Chairperson as the COUNTY’S authorized 
representative and has empowered the Chairperson with the authority to sign this Agreement on behalf of 
the COUNTY. A copy of the COUNTY’S Commission minutes or resolution authorizing the execution of this 
Agreement by the Chairperson as the COUNTY’S authorized representative is attached to this Agreement as 
Exhibit  N. 
 
This Amendment is binding upon the signatories not as individuals, but solely in their capacities as officials of 
their respective organizations and acknowledges proper action of the STATE and the COUNTY to enter into 
the same. 
 State of South Dakota 
Yankton County, South Dakota Department of Transportation 
 
By:   By:   
 
Printed Name:   Printed Name: Joanne M. Hight  
 
Its: County Commission Chairperson  Its: Administration Program Manager
 
Date:   Date:   
 
 
Attest:  Approved as to Form: 
 
By: __________________________________  By: /s/ Dustin W. DeBoer  
   
Printed Name: _________________________  Printed Name:  Dustin W. DeBoer  
  
County Auditor/Clerk  Special Assistant Attorney General 
 
(COUNTY SEAL) 



SALES AGREEMENT DATE Aug 14, 2024

Butler Machinery Company, 3401 - 33rd Street S, Fargo, North Dakota58104 Phone: 701-280-3100

S
O
L
D

T
O

PURCHASER YANKTON COUNTY HWY DEPT

STREET ADDRESS 3302 W CITY LIMITS RD

CITY/STATE YANKTON, SD COUNTY YANKTON

POSTAL CODE 57078-5963 PHONE NO. 605-260-4473

CUSTOMER CONTACT:
EQUIPMENT - PHONE NO.

PRODUCT SUPPORT - PHONE NO.

INDUSTRY CODE: GOVT. - COUNTY(940 ) PRINCIPAL WORK CODE

S
H
I
P

T
O

<SAME>

POINT OF POSSESSION AT: Yankton SD

CUSTOMER C99226
CUSTOMER PO NUMBER

NUMBER

Sales Tax Exemption # (if applicable) 

T
E
R
M
S

PAYMENT TERMS: (All terms and payments are subject to Finance Company - OAC approval)

NET PAYMENT ON INVOICE CASH FINANCIAL SERVICES CONTRACT LEASE

CASH WITH ORDER BALANCE TO FINANCE CONTRACT INTEREST RATE 0

PAYMENT PERIOD PAYMENT AMOUNT 0.00 NUMBER OF PAYMENTS OPTIONAL BUY-OUT $0.00

DESCRIPTION OF EQUIPMENT ORDERED / PURCHASED

MAKE: CATERPILLAR YEAR: 2024

STOCK NUMBER: M035186

MODEL: 938 3VFUSL 

SERIAL NUMBER: APPROX HOURS: 4.7
NEW USED

938 14A WHEEL LOADER PUSH START, PASSCODE SECURITY LINES, AUX 3RD, STD LIFT

STANDARD LIFT, COUPLER READY CAMERA, REAR VIEW RIDE CONTROL

HYDRAULICS, 3V MIRROR, BASE BEACON, WARNING, STROBE, AMBER

HYDRAULICS, STANDARD SEAT, PREMIUM, TILT AND TELE MIRROR, INTERNAL 2X REAR VIEW

STEERING WHEEL, STANDARD LIGHTS, AUX, LED, PREMIUM GUARD, REAR LIGHTS

JOYSTICK 3V, STEERING WHEEL LIGHTS, ROADING, LED, RH ANTIFREEZE, -50C (-58F)

DIFFERENTIAL,LIMITED SLIP REAR STANDARD RADIO (12V) QUICK COUPLER,FUSION,EXT DUTY

ENVIRONMENT, MEDIUM DEBRIS PRODUCT LINK, CELLULAR PLE643 JUMPER LINES, AUX 3RD, FUSION

WEATHER, COLD START 120V TIRES, 23.5R25 MX XHA2 * L3 FILM GP, AGGREGATE

CAB, STANDARD FENDERS, STANDARD BUCKET-GP, 3.8 YD3, FUS, BOCE

AIR CONDITIONING, R134A REF CTWT, HEAVY,3770LBS,7PCS GrabTec GA Mount Kit Installed

ENGINE HYDRAULIC OIL, STANDARD KIT, ELECTRIC, SWL 14A

TRADE-IN EQUIPMENT

MODEL: 928G - CATERPILLAR(AA) YEAR: SN.: Expected SMU: 5127

VALUE: $38,000.00PAYOUT TO: AMOUNT: PAID BY:

MODEL: YEAR: SN.: Expected SMU:
VALUE: PAYOUT TO: AMOUNT: PAID BY:
MODEL: YEAR: SN.: Expected SMU:
VALUE: PAYOUT TO: AMOUNT: PAID BY:

ALL TRADES-INS ARE SUBJECT TO EQUIPMENT BEING IN "AS INSPECTED CONDITION" BY PURCHASER AT TIME
OF DELIVERY OF REPLACEMENT MACHINE PURCHASE ABOVE.

PURCHASER HEREBY SELLS THE TRADE-IN EQUIPMENT DESCRIBED ABOVE TO THE VENDOR AND WARRANTS IT
TO BE FREE AND CLEAR OF ALL CLAIMS, LIENS, MORTGAGES AND SECURITY INTEREST EXCEPT AS SHOWN
ABOVE.

SELL PRICE $272,866.48

EXT WARRANTY Included

CSA Included

LESS TRADE ALLOWANCE ($38,000.00)

NET TRADE DIFFERENCE $234,866.48

BALANCE DUE $234,866.48
DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES

PURCHASER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT (A) SELLER IS NOT THE MANUFACTURER OF THE EQUIPMENT; (B) IF
THE EQUIPMENT INCLUDES A MANUFACTURER’S WARRANTY, THE TERMS OF SUCH MANUFACTURER’S
WARRANTY WILL BE SUBJECT TO ALL CONDITIONS AND EXCLUSIONS SET FORTH THEREIN.

UNLESS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH BELOW OR IN A SEPARATE WRITTEN AGREEMENT EXECUTED BY SELLER,
PURCHASER AGREES AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT SELLER MAKES NO WARRANTY, EITHER EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION THE IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR
A PARTICULAR PURPOSE WITH REGARD TO THE EQUIPMENT DESCRIBED IN THIS SALES AGREEMENT.

MANUFACTURER’S WARRANTY
INITIAL

CWS:/

Purchaser acknowledges that it has received a copy of the Manufacturer's Warranty and has read and understands said warranty.

12 Months Standard Warranty including 12 Months Mileage.

938-36 MO/3000 HR POWERTRAIN + HYDRAULICS + TECH

USED EQUIPMENT
INITIAL

UWS:/

When the equipment covered by this Sales Agreement is used equipment, PURCHASER
AFFIRMS AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT HAS EXAMINED THE EQUIPMENT and is
buying the equipment “AS IS” and with NO OTHER REPRESENTATIONS OR
WARRANTIES, unless otherwise specified in writing below.

Warranty applicable: See terms and conditions of Seller’s Used Protection Plan executed by
Purchaser and Seller.

CSA: NEW Cat Customer Value Agreement - National Offer 2 Years, 1,000 Hour SOS and Filters

NOTES: Caterpillar Sourcewell #011723/ Yankton County HWY Dept Soucewell ID#146638

THIS AGREEMENT IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS ON THE REVERSE
Accepted by BUTLER MACHINERY COMPANY / NCRL LLC at Fargo, ND

BY DATE

Autorized Signature

TITLE

SALESMAN Small, Ethan
BUTLER MACHINERY COMPANY / NCRL LLC

PURCHASER

APPROVED AND ACCEPTED ON

YANKTON COUNTY HWY DEPT
PURCHASER

BY
SIGNATURE

TITLE
BUYER

300443-01



Sales Agreement TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Referred to on the Reverse Side Hereof)
1. Acceptance. This Agreement is subject to final acceptance by Seller in its sole discretion. Seller reserves the right to accept or reject this Agreement and shall not be required to give any reason for non-acceptance. This
Agreement, when accepted by Seller, shall become a binding contract but shall be subject to strike, lock-outs, accidents, fire, delays in manufacture or transportation, acts of God, embargos, or governmental or
administrative action or any other causes beyond the control of Seller whether the same as or different from the matters and things herein before specifically enumerated, and any of said causes shall absolutely absolve
Seller from any liability to Purchaser under the terms hereof. Seller’s acceptance of this Agreement shall be limited to the express terms and conditions set forth herein.
2. Security Interest. Unless the equipment covered hereby (the “Equipment”) is paid for in full in cash at time of delivery, Purchaser grants and Seller retains a continuing security interest in the Equipment in accordance
with the Uniform Commercial Code (“UCC”), together with all and any substitutions, additions or accessions, and in any and all proceeds from the use, sale, exchange or disposal thereof. Purchaser authorizes Seller at
any time to file in any relevant jurisdiction any financing statements as provided by the UCC relating to the Equipment for the purpose of perfecting, confirming, continuing, enforcing or protecting its security interest in the
Equipment. Purchaser further agrees to execute and deliver to Seller any other promissory notes or evidences of indebtedness that may be requested by Seller. However, any such note shall be evidence of indebtedness
only and is not to be considered or construed to be payment for said Equipment.
3. Taxes. Purchaser will promptly pay to Seller any taxes that Seller is required to collect with respect to this Agreement including, but not limited to, sales, use, value added, personal property and similar taxes (“Taxes”).
For any Taxes from which Purchaser claims exemption, Purchaser shall provide Seller with properly completed exemption certificates and any documentation needed to validate the exemption. If Purchaser fails to provide
an appropriate exemption certificate and supporting documentation, as determined by Seller, Purchaser will remain liable for all such Taxes and will indemnify Seller for any liability related to the same.
4. Risk of Loss/Delivery.Seller's responsibility and liability for the Equipment ceases upon delivery of the Equipment to Purchaser or to a carrier for shipment to Purchaser and Purchaser shall bear the risk of loss at such
point, including, but not limited to, any claims for damages, delays or shortages occurring thereafter, all of which shall be made by the Purchaser directly to the carrier. Purchaser shall make any claims against the Seller
within fifteen days after delivery. At the time of delivery, Purchaser shall be required to execute a Delivery and Acceptance Certificate. Purchaser agrees that any apparent agent at the point of delivery is authorized to
accept delivery of the Equipment and execute the Delivery and Acceptance Certificate.
5. Insurance. If the Equipment is not paid for in full at time of delivery, Purchaser shall, at Purchaser's cost, keep the Equipment insured against all risks and perils customarily covered under "all risk" policies including, but
not limited to, loss or damage by theft, vandalism, malicious mischief, fire, flood, windstorm, and explosion, and with an extended coverage endorsement covering all such other risks and perils in an amount satisfactory to
Seller in which Seller is named as a loss payee, and shall furnish proof of such coverage satisfactory to Seller, which shall not be cancellable without thirty day's written notice to Seller.
6. Purchaser's Representations and Warranties.To induce Seller to enter into this Agreement, Purchaser represents, warrants and covenants as follows: (a) if Purchaser is a corporation, limited liability company, limited
liability partnership or similar entity, then it is duly organized, existing and in good standing under the laws of the state of its incorporation or organization and it has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and
the execution, delivery and performance of this has been duly authorized; (b) if Purchaser is a general partnership, then it has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and the execution, delivery and
performance of this Agreement has been duly authorized by all of the partners of the partnership; (c) if Purchaser is an individual, then he or she has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement; (d) this Agreement
has been duly entered into and delivered and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of Purchaser enforceable in accordance with its terms; and (e) all financial statements, certificates or other information
submitted to Seller concerning Purchaser's financial condition, are in all respects accurate, true and complete.
7. Events of Default. Purchaser will be in default under this Agreement, without necessity for demand or notice, if any one or more of the following occurs before the Equipment is paid for in full: (a) if Purchaser fails to
accept delivery of any of the Equipment; (b) Purchaser fails to make a payment when due; (c) if the Equipment is levied on, seized or attached; (d) if Purchaser sells or disposes of any of the Equipment without Seller's
permission; (e) if any default shall occur under any other agreement between Seller and Purchaser; (f) any individual Purchaser dies or is declared incompetent; (g) any Purchaser who is a legal entity merges, dissolves,
reorganizes, or terminates its business or existence; (h) Purchaser fails to keep any promise, representation or warranty contained in this Agreement; (i) Purchaser becomes insolvent, is generally unable to pay its debts
when due, dissolves, assigns its assets for the benefit of its creditors, or becomes the subject of a bankruptcy, receivership, or insolvency proceeding; (j) Purchaser sells all or substantially all of its assets or property; (k)
Purchaser shall suffer a material adverse change in its financial condition or operations; or (l) any other event occurs or fact appears that causes Seller to deem itself insecure, or impairs the prospect of payment or
realization upon the collateral.
8. Remedies. In the event of a Default, Seller may, at its option, exercise any or all of the following rights and remedies, all of which shall be cumulative to the greatest extent permitted by applicable law: (a) if the default
results from Purchaser's failure to do or perform any of the acts, or things required to be done by Purchaser under the terms of this Agreement, Seller may do and perform any such acts on the Purchaser's behalf, and all
money advanced or paid by Seller in doing so shall be added to and be deemed a part of the balance due hereunder; (b) Seller may terminate this Agreement; (c) Seller may exercise any and all rights Seller may have
under the Uniform Commercial Code or other applicable law; (d) Seller may require Purchaser to store the Equipment, at Purchaser's own cost and risk, on behalf of Seller, and such storage shall be in such a manner as
to prevent any deterioration of the Equipment, and shall be for a reasonable time pending the sale or other disposition of the Equipment. In the event Seller seeks to take possession of any or all of the Equipment by court
process, Purchaser further irrevocably waives to the fullest extent permitted by law any bonds and any surety or security relating thereto required by any statute, court rule or otherwise as an incident to such possession
and said retaking shall not be deemed rescission of this Agreement. Waiver by Seller of any Default shall not be deemed a waiver of any other Default. Purchaser agrees to pay all collection and repossession costs,
reasonable attorneys’ fees, legal expenses and court costs incurred by Seller in connection any Default or otherwise enforcing this Agreement.
9. LIABILITY LIMITATION. PURCHASER AGREES THAT PURCHASER’S SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY AGAINST SELLER SHALL BE AS CONTAINED IN ANY EXPRESS WRITTEN WARRANTY ISSUED BY SELLER, IF ANY. IN

NO EVENT SHALL SELLER, WHETHER BASED IN CONTRACT, WARRANTY, INDEMNITY, TORT, STRICT LIABILITY OR ANY OTHER THEORY OF LAW OR EQUITY, BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT,

PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOST PROFITS, LOSS OF USE OF PROPERTY OR EQUIPMENT, DOWNTIME, LOSS OF THIRD PARTY CONTRACTS OR LOST

CROP OR OTHER PRODUCTION, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SELLER WAS ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. IN ADDITION, SELLER’S MAXIMUM AGGREGATE LIABILITY (WHETHER IN CONTRACT,

WARRANTY, INDEMNITY, TORT, STRICT LIABILITY OR ANY OTHER THEORY OF LAW OR EQUITY) FOR DAMAGES OR LOSS, SHALL IN NO EVENT EXCEED THE AMOUNT PURCHASER PAID TO SELLER FOR THE EQUIPMENT

TO WHICH THE LIABILITY RELATES. PURCHASER RECOGNIZES THAT THE PRICING ASSOCIATED WITH EQUIPMENT REFLECTS THIS ALLOCATION OF RISK AND IS THE BASIS OF THE BARGAIN BETWEEN THE PARTIES.

THE FOREGOING LIMITATIONS SHALL BE VALID AND ENFORCEABLE, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY ALLEGED FAILURE OF ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OF THE LIMITED REMEDIES SET FORTH HEREIN. ANY AND ALL CLAIMS

ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THE EQUIPMENT WILL BE BARRED UNLESS A LEGAL PROCEEDING IS COMMENCED WITHIN ONE (1) YEAR FROM DELIVERY OF THE EQUIPMENT TO PURCHASER.

10. Used Equipment Warranty. The terms and conditions of any used equipment warranty provided by Seller shall be as set forth in a separate written “Used Protection Plan” executed by Seller and Purchaser and shall be
subject to the following additional terms: (a) the cost, if any, of transporting said used machine from and to the Seller's place of business shall be paid by the Purchaser; (b) any such used equipment is void unless claim is
made by Purchaser to Seller within three (3) days after discovery of the defect upon which the claim is based; and (c) Seller shall only be obligated to make warranty repairs during regular working hours at regular time
labor rates. If, at the request of Purchaser, such warranty repairs are performed during overtime hours, Purchaser shall pay the difference between the applicable overtime rates and Seller’s regular time rates.
11. Indemnification. Purchaser shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Seller, its subsidiary and affiliated companies, their officers, agents and employees, from and against all loss liability, claim, action or expense
including reasonable attorney's fees by reason of bodily injury including death, and property damage, sustained by any person or persons including, but not limited to, employees of Purchaser, as a result of Purchaser’s
maintenance, ownership, use, operation, storage, erection, dismantling, servicing or transportation of Equipment or Purchaser's failure to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
12. Waivers. Any forbearance, failure or delay by Seller in the exercise of any right, power or remedy hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any such right, power or remedy, and any single or partial exercise of
any right, power or remedy shall not preclude the further exercise thereof. Every right, power and remedy of Seller shall continue in full force and effect until such right, power or remedy is specifically waived in writing by
Seller.
13. General. It is agreed that (a) time is of the essence; (b) Seller may assign this Agreement to any of its affiliated entities without prior notice to Purchaser; (c) Purchaser may not assign this Agreement without Seller's
consent, which may be withheld at Seller's sole discretion; (d) this Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between Purchaser and Seller in respect to the Equipment and it is expressly agreed that there are no
promises or understandings outside of this Agreement and that no agent or salesperson has authority to obligate Seller to any undertakings, conditions or terms not contained herein; (e) this Agreement and all matters
relating to the Equipment shall be governed by the laws of North Dakota; (f) this Agreement may be signed by facsimile, PDF, DocuSign or other electronic means and such signatures shall be as binding on the party
providing the same as original signatures; (g) should any portion of this Agreement be declared invalid under applicable law or regulation, the remaining provision hereof shall remain in full force and effect.
14. DATA SHARING. CUSTOMER DATA MAY BE COLLECTED AND TRANSMITTED TO CATERPILLAR INC., AGCO, OTHER MANUFACTURING PARTNERS, THEIR AFFILIATES AND/OR ITS DEALERS, INCLUDING SELLER. BY

EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT AND REVIEW OF (A) BUTLER MACHINERY COMPANY’S DATA AND PRIVACY POLICY INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE AND AVAILABLE AT

https://www.butlermachinery.com/privacy-policy; (B) THE CATERPILLAR INC. DATA GOVERNANCE STATEMENT AVAILABLE AT https://www.caterpillar.com/en/legal-notices/data-governance-statement.html; (C) THE AGCO PRIVACY

STATEMENT AVAILABLE AT https:// www.agcocorp.com/privacy.html; (D) THE CLAAS DATA PROTECTION NOTICE AVAILABLE AT https://www.claasofamerica.com/company-careers/claas-of-america/legal-data/dataprotection; (E) THE

RAVEN PRIVACY POLICY AT https://ravenind.com/privacy; AND THE TRIMBLE PRIVACY CENTER AT https://www.trimble.com/corporate/privacy.aspx. THE AFOREMENTIONED DOCUMENTS ARE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

AS IF FULLY RESTATED HEREIN.

15. Emissions. Purchaser represents and warrants that the Trade In Equipment meets all required state and federal emission qualifications and has not been modified.
16. Trade-In Equipment. In connection with the Sales Agreement, Purchaser proposed to sell to Seller certain “Trade-In Equipment” identified therein, in exchange for a credit in the amount of value set forth therein or
to-be-set forth therein (less payoffs of all claims, liens, mortgages and security interests encumbering the same), which value has been or will be determined based on the Surveyed Condition (defined below), to be applied
toward the purchase price for the Equipment Ordered/Purchased to be sold by Seller to Purchaser pursuant to the Sales Agreement, all subject to the terms and conditions of the Sales Agreement and this Rider. Seller
has had or will have the “Trade-In Equipment” surveyed by an employee or agent of Seller to determine, among other things, the assumed condition and hours of the Trade-In Equipment (and all components thereof) (the
“Surveyed Condition”) that are assumed for the anticipated date of Seller’s taking delivery of the Trade-In Equipment from Purchaser, which will be the same date anticipated for Seller’s delivery of the Equipment
Ordered/Purchased to Purchaser. The Surveyed Condition forms the basis of Seller’s determination of the trade-in value (and a material inducement for Seller offering the same). To receive a copy of the images utilized in
establishing the trade in equipment’s valuation, please contact your Butler Machinery salesperson. If Seller (in its commercially reasonable judgment) determines at any time that actual condition of the Trade-In Equipment
(whether as of the actual date of Seller’s taking delivery of the Trade-In Equipment or any time prior thereto) deviates or will deviate from the Surveyed Condition in any material respect (a “Material Deviation”), then the
trade-in value shall be reduced by the amount determined by Seller in its commercially reasonable judgment to represent the diminishment in the trade-in value of the Trade-In Equipment as a result of such Material
Deviation(s); provided, if Seller determines that such Material Deviation(s) renders the Trade-in Equipment unsellable, unsalvageable or otherwise valueless to Seller, results in a trade-in-value less than the amounts
necessary to payoff all claims, liens, mortgages and security interests encumbering the same, or could result in any potential loss or liability to Seller of any kind or amount, then, in any such case, Seller may elect to not
purchase the Trade-In Equipment (and Purchaser shall retain possession of the same). “Material Deviation(s)” may include, by way of example and without limitation, any one or more of the following conditions or
occurrences: any increase in hours, or any wear or tear (including ordinary wear or tear), damage, casualty or any other loss, or impairment in the performance, legal compliance or value of the Trade-In Equipment.
Purchaser shall promptly notify Seller of any Material Deviation caused by or known to Purchaser. Purchaser shall remain obligated to purchase the Equipment Ordered/Purchased pursuant to the Sales Agreement
notwithstanding any reduction in trade-in value (or election to not purchase the Trade-in Equipment) as a result of any such Material Deviation(s). Further, if, as of the time of a determination of a Material Deviation, Seller
has previously credited to Purchaser (or paid to creditors on Purchaser’s behalf) any amount of the trade-in value initially established based on the Surveyed Condition in excess of the reduced trade-in value resulting from
such Material Deviation(s), then Purchaser shall immediately reimburse Seller for the total amount of such excess previously paid or credited by Seller.
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
FARGO, ND
(701)280-3100

GRAND FORKS, ND
(701)775-4238

BISMARCK, ND
(701)223-0890

MINOT, ND
(701)852-3508

JAMESTOWN, ND
(701)251-1400

DICKINSON, ND
(701)456-1400

HANKINSON, ND
(701)242-7474

HOOPLE, ND
(701)894-6363

DEVILS LAKE, ND
(701)665-3800

SIOUX FALLS, SD
(605)336-3010

ABERDEEN, SD
(605)225-6240

RAPID CITY, SD
(605)342-4850

PIERRE, SD
(605)224-5400

HURON, SD
(605)353-1200

WATERTOWN, SD
(605)954-7100

FREMONT, NE
(402)721-2800

KEARNEY, NE
(308)236-4640

PICKRELL, NE
(402)673-4200

CHADRON, NE
(308)432-5593

SIDNEY, MT
(406)742-7700

Data and Privacy policy: protecting the security and privacy of your data is important to us. Please see our website for our complete Data and Privacy Policy.





1 

 

DEFINITIONS 

 

Definitions 
 

For the purpose of this Ordinance, unless otherwise stated, words used in the present tense 

include the future; the singular number includes the plural and the plural the singular; the word 

shall means mandatory, not discretionary; the word may is permissive; the word person includes 

a firm, association, organization, partnership, trust, company or corporation, as well as, an 

individual; the word lot includes the word plat or parcel; and the words used or occupied include 

the words intended, designed, or arranged to be used or occupied. 

 

Terms 
 

For the purpose of this Ordinance, certain terms or words used herein shall be interpreted as 

follows: (Amended June 21, 2022) 

 

Abandoned Sign/Billboard - a sign or sign structure that is blank, obliterated or displays obsolete 

advertising material for a period in excess of twelve continuous months. The twelve-month 

period for determining if a sign is abandoned commences upon notification of violation to the 

offender.  

Abut - Having a common border with, or being separated from such a common border by a right-

of-way, alley, or easement. 

 

Accessory Agricultural Structure - A structure customarily incidental and necessary to farming 

and the raising of animals including barns and other animal shelters, corrals and fences, silos and 

storage sheds for machinery and crops. 

 

Accessory Building - A subordinate building, the use of which is purely incidental to the main 

building. It shall be unlawful for any person, firm, or corporation in the following Yankton 

County Zoning Districts: Low Density Rural Residential (R1), Moderate Density Rural 

Residential (R2), High Density Rural Residential (R3), Manufactured Home Park (MHP), 

Lakeside Commercial (LC), Rural Transitional (RT), Planned Unit Development (PUD) to use 

any van body, truck body, semi-trailer, rail car, “shipping crate”, and/or any vehicle no longer 

used for its manufactured purpose as a storage shed, storage building, warehouse, or as living 

quarters. It shall be unlawful to use manufactured homes for any use other than residential living 

quarters in all Yankton County Zoning Districts. However, this shall not prevent the lawful 

parking of vehicles properly licensed, insured, and in regular use for their intended purpose to 

include ‘RVs’ and camping trailers. (Amended May 19, 2020) 

Accessory Use or Structure - A use or structure on the same lot with and of a nature customarily 

incidental and subordinate to the principal use or structure. It shall be unlawful for any person, 

firm, or corporation in the following Yankton County Zoning Districts: Low Density Rural 

Residential (R1), Moderate Density Rural Residential (R2), High Density Rural Residential (R3), 



2 

 

Manufactured Home Park (MHP), Lakeside Commercial (LC), Rural Transitional (RT), Planned 

Unit Development (PUD) to use any van body, truck body, semi-trailer, rail car, “shipping 

crate”, and/or any vehicle no longer used for its manufactured purpose as a storage shed, storage 

building, warehouse, or as living quarters. It shall be unlawful to use manufactured homes for 

any use other than residential living quarters in all Yankton County Zoning Districts.  However, 

this shall not prevent the lawful parking of vehicles properly licensed, insured, and in regular use 

for their intended purpose to include ‘RVs’ and camping trailers.  

Actual Construction - Actual construction is hereby defined to include the placing of 

construction materials in permanent position and fastened in a permanent manner. Where 

excavation or demolition or removal of an existing building has been substantially commenced, 

preparatory to building, such excavation or demolition or removal shall be deemed to be actual 

construction, provided that work shall be carried on diligently. 

Addition - Any construction that increases the size of a building such as a porch, attached garage 

or carport, or a new room. 

Administrative Review - A process brought forth by the Zoning Administrator to clarify a 

provision of the Zoning Ordinance. A review may include policy interpretation or procedural 

questions but shall not include the appeals process as detailed herein. 

 

Adult Entertainment - Any premises or part thereof in which a principal feature or characteristic 

is the nudity or partial nudity of any person; to include a place or part thereof where, in 

pursuance of a trade, calling, business or occupation, goods or services appealing to or designed 

to appeal to erotic or sexual appetites or inclinations. 

 

Advertising Sign - An advertising sign, billboard, or poster panel which directs attention to a 

business, commodity, service, or entertainment not exclusively related to the premises where 

such advertising sign is located or to which it is affixed, but does not include those business signs 

which direct attention to the business on the premises to a brand name of a product or 

commodity with which the business is specifically identified and which is sold on the premises. 

 

Agriculture - The planting, cultivating, harvesting and storage of grains, hay or plants, fruits, or 

vineyards along with the raising and feeding of livestock and/or poultry shall be considered an 

agricultural use. Grain elevators or Agricultural Product Processing Facilities shall not be 

considered an agricultural use if such use constitutes the main or principal use on a lot or parcel.  

 

Agribusiness - A business which directly supports the agricultural industry, such as suppliers of 

feed, seed, chemicals, fertilizer, farm equipment, and equipment parts, farm equipment repair 

services, veterinary services, drain tile installers, and commercial grain elevators. (Amended 

August 19, 2021) 

 

Agriculture Product Processing Facility - A business activity customarily designed to process 

raw agricultural products into value added products. Agricultural processing facilities include, 

but are not limited to; feed mills, ethanol plants, soybean processing facilities, cheese plants, 

milk processors, packing plants and rendering facilities. 



3 

 

Agrivoltaics - The use of land for both agriculture (crop production, livestock grazing and 

pollinator habitat) and solar photovoltaic energy generation. This is located underneath solar 

panels and/or between rows of solar panels. (Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

Aggrieved Person - A person aggrieved is any person directly interested in the outcome of and 

aggrieved by a decision or action or failure to act regarding a zoning decision thus: (Amended 

August 19, 2021) 

1. Establishes that the person suffered an injury, an invasion of a legally protected interest 

that is both concrete and particularized, and actual or imminent, not conjectural or 

hypothetical;  

 

2. Shows that a causal connection exists between the person's injury and the conduct of 

which the person complains. The causal connection is satisfied if the injury is fairly 

traceable to the challenged action, and not the result of the independent action of any 

third party not before the court; (3) Shows it is likely, and not merely speculative, that the 

injury will be redressed by a favorable decision, and; (4) Shows that the injury is unique 

or different from those injuries suffered by the public in general.  

 

Alley - A way which affords only a secondary means of access to abutting property. 

 

Amendment - A change in the wording or substance of this ordinance or a change in the 

boundaries or classifications upon the Official Zoning Map. 

 

Amusement Park - A facility, primarily outdoors, that may include structures and buildings, 

where there are various devices for entertainment including rides, booths for the conduct of 

games or sale of items, buildings for shows and entertainment and restaurants and souvenir sales. 

 

Animal Feeding Operation - An animal feeding operation is a lot or facility where 200 or greater 

animal units, excluding aquaculture, are confined, stabled, fed, or maintained in either an open or 

housed lot for a total of 45 days or more in any 12-month period. The open lot does not sustain 

crops, vegetation, forage growth, or post-harvest residues in the normal growing season. Two or 

more facilities under common ownership are a single animal operation if they adjoin each other 

(within one mile), or if they use a common area or system for the disposal of manure. (Amended 

August 19, 2021) 

 

For the purposes of these regulations, Animal Feeding Operations are divided into the following 

classes:  

 

Class Animal Units 

Class A 500 - 10,000  

Class B 200 – 499  

 

 



4 

 

Animal Feeding Operation or CAFO, New - An animal feeding operation or CAFO, (see 

definitions), constructed after the effective date of this ordinance or any subsequent amendment 

of applicable Articles or Sections. Operations in existence upon adoption or prior to future 

amendments may be considered a new operation if the facility is expanded to facilitate an 

increase of more than three hundred (300) animal units. Any new construction relating to an 

expansion must comply with the applicable performance standards. The Planning Commission 

and Board of Adjustment shall have the authority to decrease or waive any standard deemed 

contradictory to the intent of the zoning ordinance upon review and in accordance with the 

conditional use and variance process described herein. (Amended May 19, 2020) 

 

Animal Units - A unit of measure for livestock equated as follows; one head is equivalent to 

animal units: (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

Cow, feeder, or slaughter beef animal, including cow/calf pairs 1.0 A.U. 

Horse 2.0 A.U. 

Mature dairy cattle, excluding dairy calves under 300 pounds 1.4 A.U. 

Farrow-to-finish sows 3.7 A.U. 

Swine in a production unit 0.47 A.U. 

Nursery swine less than 55 pounds 0.1 A.U. 

Finisher swine over 55 pounds 0.4 A.U. 

Sheep or lambs, goats 0.1 A.U. 

Laying hens or broilers 0.033 A.U. 

Ducks and/or geese 0.2 A.U. 

Turkeys 0.018 A.U. 

 

Animal Waste Facility - A structure designed and constructed to store and/or process animal 

waste. Animal waste facilities include but are not limited to holding basins, lagoons, pits and 

slurry stores. 

 

Apartment - A portion of a multiple dwelling used as a separate housing unit and having cooking 

facilities and a private bath. 

 

Applicant - For purposes of this Ordinance a person shall be deemed to be an applicant if they 

are the owner of the proposed facility; an officer or director of the owner thereof; or an owner of 

any interest, direct or indirect, in any company, except a publicly traded company, which is the 

owner of the proposed development. 

 

Aquaculture - Land devoted to the hatching, raising and breeding of fish or other aquatic plants 

or animals for sale or personal use. 

 

Arcade - A place of business where an individual, association, partnership or corporation 

maintains four or more amusement devices for public use. 

 

Auction Barn - Any premises used predominantly as a livestock auction facility and may include 

the auction of agriculturally related items on an incidental or accessory basis only. The term may 



5 

 

also include a building or structure or lands used for the storage of goods and materials which are 

to be sold on the premises by public auction, and for the sale of the said goods and materials by 

public auction and on an occasional basis. 

 

Auction Yard - Any premises used predominantly as an auction pavilion or any area dedicated to 

consignment auctions or similar activities. A yard may include structures, open, and fenced 

display areas. 

 

Automobile-Machinery Service Station - Building and premises where motor fuel, oil, grease, 

batteries, tires, and vehicle accessories may be supplied and dispensed at retail, and where, in 

addition, customary repair services may be rendered. 

 

Automobile Wrecking Yard - Any premises on which two or more self-propelled vehicles not in 

running order or operating condition are stored in the open. See also Junkyard and Salvage Yard. 

 

Back-To–Back Sign - An off-site or on-site sign consisting of two sign facings oriented in the 

opposite direction with not more than one face per side. 

Bar - A building or part thereof where, in consideration of payment therefore, liquor, beer, or 

wine or any combination thereof are served for consumption on the premises, with or without 

food. 

 

Basement - A portion of a building with the floor located below the mean grade level. For the 

purpose of this ordinance, any such basement with more than four (4) feet above grade level 

shall be counted as a story. No dwelling unit shall be situated in a basement having less than four 

(4) feet above grade level. 

 

Bed and Breakfast - A dwelling occupied by a family and used incidentally to provide 

accommodation and meals to guests for remuneration, but shall not include a boarding house, 

residential care facility, hotel, motel, or other similar uses. 

 

Billboard - See Sign, Off-Site. 

 

Board of Adjustment - The Yankton County Commission shall serve as the Board of 

Adjustment. 
 

Bona fide practitioner-patient relationship” means - (Amended November 4, 2021) 

a. A practitioner and patient have a treatment or consulting relationship, during course of 

which the practitioner has completed an assessment of the patient’s medical history and 

current medical condition, including an appropriate in-person physical examination; 

b. The practitioner has consulted with the patient with respect to the patient’s debilitating 

medical condition; and 

c. The practitioner is available to or offers to provide follow-up care and treatment to the 

patient, including patient examinations; 



6 

 

Buildable Area - The portions of a lot remaining after required yards have been provided. 

 

Building - The word "building" includes the word structure and is a structure that is entirely 

separate from any other structure by space or by walls in which there is no communicating doors 

or windows or similar openings. A principal building including covered porches and paved 

patios, is a building in which is conducted the principal use of the lot on which it is situated. In 

any residential district, any dwelling shall be deemed to be the principal building on the lot on 

which the same is situated. 

 

Building Line, Front - A line parallel to the street, or right-of-way intersecting the foremost point 

of the building, excluding uncovered steps. 

 

Building Permit - A type of authorization that must be granted by a government or other 

regulatory body before the construction of a new or expansion of existing building can legally 

occur. (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

Building Setback Lines - A line parallel or approximately parallel to the lot lines at a specified 

distance therefrom, marking the minimum distance from the lot line that the building may be 

erected. 

 

Building Site - A lot or parcel, or portion thereof, whether a lot of record or described by metes 

and bounds, used or intended to be used as the location of a building for housing one or two 

families. 

 

Building, Alterations of - Any change or rearrangement of the supporting members (such as 

bearing walls, beams, columns, or girders) of a building, an addition to a building, or movement 

of a building from one location to another. See Structural Alterations. 

 

Building, Height of - The vertical distance measured from the average grade of the building level 

of the highest and lowest elevations of the site covered by the building to the top of the roof or 

parapet of the highest story. 

 

Building, Principal - A building in which is conducted the main use of the lot on which said 

building is located. 

 

Bus Depot - A building or premises where commercial motor vehicles pick up and discharge 

fare-paying, passengers. Accessory uses may include ticket offices, luggage checking facilities 

and similar uses. 

 

Business Sign - A sign which directs attention to a business or profession conducted or to a 

commodity, service, or entertainment sold or offered upon the premises on which such sign is 

located or to which it is affixed. See also on-site and off-site signs. 

 

Camper - See Travel Trailer. 

 



7 

 

Campground - Any premises where two (2) or more camping units are parked or placed for 

camping purposes, or any premises used or set apart for supplying to the public camping space 

for two (2) or more camping units for camping purposes, which include any buildings, structures, 

vehicles or enclosures, uses or intended for use or intended wholly, or in part, for the 

accommodation of transient campers. 

 

Camping Unit - Any vehicle, tent, trailer or portable shelter used for camping purposes. 

 

Cannabis (or Marijuana) - all parts of any plant of the genus cannabis, whether growing or not; 

the seeds thereof; and every compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of 

such plant or its seeds. The term does not include fiber produced from the mature stalks of the 

plant, or oil or cake made from the seeds of the plant, or the resin when extracted from any part 

of the plant or cannabidiol in a drug product approved by the United States Food and Drug 

Administration. The term does not include the plant Cannabis sativa L. and any part of that plant, 

including the seeds thereof and all derivatives, extracts, cannabinoids, isomers, acids, salts, and 

salts of isomers, whether growing or not, with a delta-9 tetrahydrocannabinol concentration of 

not more than three-tenths of one percent on a dry weight basis. (Amended October 21, 2021) 

 

Cannabis, Allowable amount - (Amended November 4, 2021) 

a. Three ounces of cannabis or less; 

b. A quantity of cannabis products with an equivalent cannabis weight as  

established by rules promulgated by the department under § 34-20G-72; 

d. If the cardholder has a registry identification card allowing cultivation, three   

cannabis plants minimum or as prescribed by physician; and 

e. If the cardholder has a registry identification card allowing cultivation, the  

amount of cannabis and cannabis products that were produced from the cardholder's 

allowable plants, if the cannabis and cannabis products are possessed at the same property 

where the plants were cultivated; 

 

Cannabis Cultivation Facility - a legally licensed entity that acquires, possesses, cultivates, 

delivers, transfers, transports, supplies, or sells cannabis and related supplies to a cannabis 

establishment. (Amended October 21, 2021) 

 

Cannabis Dispensary - a legally licensed entity that acquires, possesses, stores, delivers, 

transfers, transports, sells, supplies, or dispenses cannabis, cannabis products, paraphernalia, or 

related supplies and educational materials.  

(Amended October 21, 2021) 

 

Cannabis Establishment - a cannabis cultivation facility, a cannabis testing facility, a cannabis 

product manufacturing facility, or a cannabis dispensary. (Amended October 21, 2021) 

 

Cannabis Establishment, Non-licensed - an entity which would otherwise meet the definition of a 

cannabis establishment but which is not legally licensed. (Amended October 21, 2021) 



8 

 

Cannabis product - any concentrated cannabis, cannabis extracts, and products that are   

infused with cannabis or an extract thereof, and are intended for use or consumption by humans. 

The term includes edible cannabis products, beverages, topical products, ointments, oils and 

tinctures. (Amended November 4, 2021) 

 

Cannabis Product Manufacturing Facility - a legally licensed entity that acquires, possesses, 

manufactures, delivers, transfers, transports, supplies, or sells cannabis products to a cannabis 

dispensary. (Amended October 21, 2021) 

 

Cannabis Testing Facility - a legally licensed entity legally authorized to analyze the safety and 

potency of cannabis. (Amended October 21, 2021) 
 

Cardholder - a qualifying patient or a designated caregiver who has been issued and  

possesses a valid registry identification card (Amended November 4, 2021) 

 

Car Wash - An establishment having facilities for washing motor vehicles by production line 

methods which may include a conveyor system or similar mechanical devices. This definition 

may also include a self-service operation. 

 

Casino - A room or rooms in which legal gaming is conducted. 

 

Cellar - A portion of a building between two floor levels which is partly or wholly underground 

and which has more than one-half (½) of its height, from finished floor to finished ceiling or to 

the underside of the floor joists of the story next above, as the case may be, below the average 

finished grade level adjacent the exterior walls of the building. 

 

Cemetery - Land that is set apart or used as a place for the interment of the dead or in which 

human bodies have been buried. “Cemetery” may include a structure for the purpose of the 

cremation of human remains and may include facilities for storing ashes of human remains that 

have been cremated or the interment of the dead in sealed crypts or compartments. 

 

Church - A building wherein persons regularly assemble for religious worship, and which is 

maintained and controlled by a religious body organized to sustain public worship. 

 

Clinic - A building or part of a building used solely for the purpose of consultation, diagnosis 

and treatment of patients by one or more legally qualified physicians, dentists, optometrists, 

podiatrists, chiropractors, or drugless practitioners, together with their qualified assistants, and 

without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the building may include administrative offices, 

waiting rooms, treatment rooms, laboratories, pharmacies and dispensaries directly associate 

with the clinic, but shall not include accommodation for in-patient care or operating rooms for 

major surgery. 

 

Club - A building owned, leased, or hired by a non-profit association of persons the use of which 

is generally restricted to due-paying members and their guests. Such club may periodically be 



9 

 

rented, or leased, to non-members for gathering such as weddings, anniversaries, and dances, but 

no portion of the building shall continuously be used for business purposes. 

 

Common Wall - A wall common to but dividing contiguous buildings; such a wall contains no 

openings and extends from its footing below the finished ground grade to the height of the 

exterior surface of the roof (Amended October 18, 2022) 

 

Company - For purposes of this ordinance the term, “company” includes, but is not limited to, 

any corporation, partnership, limited liability company, limited liability partnership, limited 

partnership, business trust and any other business entity. 

 

Comprehensive Plan - Any legally adopted part or element of the Yankton County 

Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Commissioners - the Yankton County Board of County Commissioners (Amended November 4, 

2021) 

 

Concentrated Animal Feeding Operation (CAFO) - An animal feeding operation that is 

previously defined meets one or more of the following criteria: (Amended August 19, 2021) 

1. Contains at least 500 animal units 

2. Utilizes a Liquid Manure System (see definitions) 

3. Utilizes environmentally controlled housing where the animals are contained in a 

thermostatically controlled environment 

4. Discharges pollutants into waters of the state through man-made ditch, flushing system, 

or other similar man-made device 

5. Discharges pollutants directly into waters of the state which originate outside of and pass 

over, across, or through the facility or otherwise come into direct contact with the animals 

confined in operation 

 

Concentrated Animal Feeding Operation (CAFO) Existing - Concentrated animal feeding 

operations in existence prior to the effective date of this ordinance or any subsequent amendment 

of applicable Articles or Sections. (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

Concentrating Solar thermal Device - CST technologies use mirrors to reflect and concentrate 

sunlight onto a receiver. The energy from the concentrated sunlight heats a high temperature 

fluid in the receiver. (Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

Conditional Use - A conditional use is a use that would not be appropriate, generally or without 

restriction, throughout the zoning district, but which, if controlled as to number, area, location or 

relation to the neighborhood, would promote the public health, safety, welfare, morals, order, 

convenience, appearance, prosperity or general welfare. Such uses may be permitted in such 

zoning district as conditional uses, if specific provision for such conditional use is made in this 

Ordinance. 

 



10 

 

Congregate Housing - Housing units that provide a semi-independent living environment, which 

offers residential accommodations, central dining facilities (where at least one (1) meal a day is 

provided seven (7) days a week), related facilities, and supporting staff and services to persons of 

at least sixty-two (62) years of age or with disabilities. 

 

Construction Services - A yard, structure, or combination thereof of any general contractor or 

builder where equipment and materials are stored or where a contractor performs shop or 

assembly work but does not include any other yard or establishment otherwise defined or 

classified herein. 

 

Contiguous - Next to, abutting, or touching and having a boundary, or portion thereof, which is 

adjoining. 

 

Contractor - The person who contracts with an individual or developer to construct a building on 

a parcel of land prepared by a developer. 

 

Convenience Store - A retail store in which articles for sale are restricted to gasoline sales and a 

limited range of food items such as milk, bread, soft drinks, ice cream, canned and bottled goods, 

snacks and candy. Retail sales may also include the limited sale of magazines, books, house 

wares, toiletries, bait, alcoholic beverages and tobacco. 

 

Court - Any open space, unobstructed from ground to sky, other than a yard, that is on the same 

lot with and bounded on two or more sides by the walls of a building. 

 

Covenant - An agreement, convention, or promise of two or more parties, by deed in writing, 

signed and delivered, by which either of the parties pledges himself to the other that something is 

either done, or shall be done, or shall not be done. The term is currently used primarily with 

respect to promises in conveyance or other instruments relating to real estate. 

 

Cul-de-sac - A local right-of-way with only one outlet that terminates in a vehicular turnaround 

and having an appropriate terminal for the safe and convenient reversal of traffic turnaround. 

 

Cultivation facility - an entity registered with the department pursuant to this chapter that 

acquires, possesses, cultivates, delivers, transfers, transports, supplies, or sells cannabis and 

related supplies to a medical cannabis establishment. (Amended November 4, 2021) 

 

Day Care - The providing of care and supervision of children or adults as a supplement to regular 

parental or home care, without transfer of legal custody or placement for adoption, with or 

without compensation, on a regular basis for a part of a day. 

 

Day Care Center - Any type of group day care programs including nurseries for children of 

working parents, nursery schools for children under minimum age for education in public 

schools, parent cooperative nursery schools, playgroups for pre-school children, programs 

covering after-school care for school children provided such establishment is licensed by the 

State and conducted in accordance with State requirements. 



11 

 

Day Care, Family - The provision of regular care and supervision of no more than twelve (12) 

children including the provider’s own children who are under the age of six (6) years for part of a 

twenty-four (24) hour period as a supplement to regular parental care. 

 

Day Care, Group Family Home - The provision of regular care and supervision of thirteen (13) 

to twenty (20) children either in the provider’s home or in a facility outside the provider’s home 

for part of a twenty-four (24) hour period as a supplement to regular parental care. 

 

Debilitating medical condition - (Amended November 4, 2021) 

a. chronic or debilitating disease or medical condition or its treatment that produces       

     one or more of the following: cachexia or wasting syndrome; severe, debilitating    

     pain; severe nausea; seizures; or sever and persistent muscle spasms, including    

     those characteristics of multiple sclerosis; or 

b. Any other medical condition or its treatment added by the department, as provided   

     for in SDCL 34-20G-26; 

 

Deck - A structure abutting a dwelling with no roof or walls except for visual partitions and 

railings that is constructed on piers or a foundation above-grade for use as an outdoor living area. 

 

Department - the Department of Health (Amended November 4, 2021) 
 

Designated caregiver - a person who: (Amended November 4, 2021) 

a. Is at least twenty-one (21) years of age; 

b. Has agreed to assist with a qualifying patient’s medical use of cannabis; 

c. Has not been convicted of a disqualifying felony offense; and 

d. Assists no more than five (5) qualifying patients with the medical use of  

           cannabis, unless the designated caregivers’ qualifying patients each reside in or   

           are admitted to a health care facility or residential care facility where the  

           designated caregiver is employed  

 

Developer - The owner of the property being platted or replatted or the person designated by the 

owner as being responsible for the development of the property. The terms “subdivider” and 

“developer” are synonymous and used interchangeably, and shall include any person, 

partnership, firm, association, corporation and/or any officer, agent, employee and trustee thereof 

who does or participates in the doing of any act toward the subdivision of land within the intent, 

scope and purview of this Ordinance. The developer shall also be defined as the builder or 

contractor if they are responsible for the construction of buildings and/or structures or permanent 

improvements. 

 

Directional Sign - A sign erected for the convenience of the public, such as directing traffic 

movement, parking or identifying restrooms, public telephones, walkways and other similar 

features or facilities and bearing no advertising in the message.  



12 

 

Disqualifying felony offense - a violent crime that was classified as a felony in the  jurisdiction 

where the person was convicted. (Amended November 4, 2021) 

Domesticated Large Animals - Any animal that through long association with man, has been 

bred to a degree which has resulted in genetic changes affecting the temperament, color, 

conformation or other attributes of the species to an extent that makes it unique and different 

from wild individuals of its kind. For the purpose of this ordinance the definition shall include, 

but is not limited to, animals commonly raised on farms and ranches, such as cattle, horses, hogs, 

sheep, and mules. 

 

Dormitory - A building or part of a building operated by an institution and containing a room or 

rooms forming one or more habitable units which are used or intended to be used by residents of 

the institution for living and sleeping, but not for cooking or eating purposes.  

 

Double Faced Sign - An off-site or on-site sign with two adjacent faces oriented in the same 

direction and not more than 10-feet apart at the nearest point between the two faces. 

Drive-in Restaurant or Refreshment Stand - Any place or premises used for sale, dispensing, or 

serving of food, refreshments, or beverages in automobiles, including those establishments where 

customers may serve themselves and may eat or drink the food, refreshments, or beverages on 

the premises. 

 

Due Diligence - Such a measure of prudence, activity, or assiduity, as is properly to be expected 

from, and ordinarily exercised by, a reasonable and prudent man under the particular 

circumstances; not measured by any absolute standard, but depending on the relevant facts of the 

special case. 

 

Dwelling - A building or portion of a building designed for residential purposes, including one 

and two family dwellings, but not including hotels, motels or lodging houses. 

 

Dwelling Unit - A room or suite of rooms designed for and occupied by one family and having 

not more than one kitchen facility. 

 

Dwelling, Efficiency Unit - A dwelling unit having only one room exclusive of bathroom, 

kitchen, laundry, pantry, foyer, communicating corridor, closets, or any dining alcove. An 

efficiency unit shall be permitted in a multi-family dwelling. 

 

Dwelling, Multiple Family - A residential building designed for, or occupied by, three (3) or 

more families, with the number of families in residence not exceeding the number of dwelling 

units provided. 

 

Dwelling, Single Family - A detached residential dwelling unit other than a manufactured home 

designed for or occupied by one (1) family only. 

 



13 

 

Dwelling, Two Family - A building containing two dwelling units designed exclusively for 

occupancy by two families living independently of each other. 

 

Easement - Authorization by a property owner for the use by another, and for a specified 

purpose, of any designated part of their property. For the purposes of this Ordinance the term 

shall primarily be used to describe utility access. 

 

Edible cannabis products - any product that: (Amended November 4, 2021) 

a. Contains or is infused with cannabis or an extract thereof;  

b. Is intended for human consumption by oral ingestion; and  

c. Is presented in the form of foodstuffs, beverages, extracts, oils, tinctures, or   

           other similar products;  

 

Employee(s) - In regard to off right-of-way parking requirements, all who work in the enterprise, 

including owners. 

 

Enclosed, locked facility - any closet, room, greenhouse, building, or other enclosed area that is 

equipped with locks or other security devices that permit access only by a cardholder or a person 

allowed to cultivate the plants. Two or more cardholders who reside in the same dwelling may 

share one enclosed, locked facility for cultivation. (Amended November 4, 2021) 

 

Exhibition Areas - A building, group of buildings, or place where art, objects, articles, or 

livestock or agricultural projects are placed on display for the public. 

 

Extraterritorial Zoning Jurisdiction - The area illustrated within the Official Zoning Map of 

Yankton County as described per Article 1 Section 103 Jurisdiction. (Amended December 19, 

2023) 

 

Facility - A building, piece of land or any combination thereof owned and operated by the same 

owner and dedicated to a specific use or uses. The term shall include those operations where 

indoor and outdoor activities may be conducted in concert and are integral or compliment the 

operation as a whole. An example may be an automobile dealership with office spaces, a small 

indoor display area, separate maintenance facility, and an outdoor display area. 

 

Fairground - An agricultural fairground where farm produce is on display for judging and for 

sale, and livestock shows, horseracing and other sports events are held and on occasion for 

auctions, flea markets and concession stands. 

 

Family - Any number of individuals living together as a single housekeeping unit, in which not 

more than five (5) individuals are unrelated by blood, marriage or adoption. This definition shall 

not include foster families as regulated by the State. 

 

Farm Building - All buildings and structures needed in agricultural operation. (Amended July 

20, 2021) 

 



14 

 

Farm Drainage Systems - The term shall include all waterways, ditches, flood control, 

watershed, and erosion control structures and devices provided each individual system or 

structure comply with the applicable local, state, and federal regulations. 

 

Farm Occupation - A business activity customarily carried out on a farm by a member of the 

occupant's family without structural alterations in the building or any of its rooms, without the 

installation or outside storage of any machinery, equipment or material other than that customary 

to normal farm operations, without the employment of more than two (2) persons not residing in 

the home, which does not cause the generation of additional traffic in the area. Farm occupations 

include, but are not limited to, seed sales and custom combining support facilities. 

 

Farm Unit - All buildings and structures needed in an agricultural operation, including dwellings 

for owners, operators, and other family members. 

 

Farm, Hobby - An activity carried out in rural residential areas, which includes the planting, 

cultivating, harvesting and storage of grains, hay or plants, fruits, or vineyards. The raising and 

feeding of livestock and poultry shall be considered as part of a hobby farm if the area, in which 

the livestock or poultry is kept, is one (1) acre or more in area for every one (1) animal unit, and 

if such livestock does not exceed ten (10) animal units. 

 

Farm, Ranch, Orchard - An area of unplatted land, which is used for growing usual farm 

products, vegetables, fruits, trees, and grain, and for the raising thereon of the usual farm poultry 

and farm animals such as horses, cattle, hogs and sheep, and including the necessary accessory 

uses for raising, treating, and storing products raised on the premises; but excluding an Animal 

Feeding Operation. The processing and storage of raw agricultural products, such as grain 

elevators and ethanol plants, shall not be considered a farm, ranch or orchard if such constitutes 

the main or principal use on the lot or parcel. (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

Farmstead - A place with empirical evidence of a previous farmstead including at a minimum 

foundations, structures, or a tree belt. For the purposes of this ordinance the Zoning 

Administrator or Planning Commission shall determine the eligibility of a farmstead as a 

building site as described within Section 516. (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

Feeder Line - shall mean any power line that carries electrical power from one or more wind 

turbines or individual transformers associated with individual wind turbines to the point of 

interconnection with the project distribution system, in the case of interconnection with the high 

voltage transmission systems the point of interconnection shall be the substation serving the 

wind energy conversion system. 

Fence - An artificially constructed barrier of any material or combination of materials erected to 

enclose, screen, or separate areas. 

 

Financial Institutions - The premises of a bank, trust, finance, mortgage, or investment company. 

 



15 

 

Fireworks, Sales - A building, structure, or place where fireworks are sold, pursuant to all 

applicable state statutes. 

 

Fishery - As defined by South Dakota Administrative Rules, Sections 74:51:02:02 and 74:51:02:03 

(January 17, 1999). Yankton County as described in Section 74:51:02:68.  

• Lakes Marindahl and Yankton (Section 74:51:02:03(4)) are warm water permanent fish 

life propagation waters;  

• State or Beaver Lake and Westside Kid’s Pond (Section 74:51:02:03(6)) are warm water 

marginal fish life propagation waters. 

• The Missouri River (Section 74:51:03:05(1,4,7,8,11)) is a domestic water supply, warm 

water permanent fish life propagation waters, immersion recreation waters, limited 

contact recreation waters, and commerce and industry waters.  

• James River (Section 74:51:03:20(5,8)) is a warm water semi permanent fish life 

propagation waters and limited contact recreation waters;  

• Beaver Creek, Mud Creek (Section 74:51:03:20(6, 8)), Clay Creek, and Turkey Creek 

(Section 74:51:03:25(6, 8)) are warm water marginal fish life propagation waters and 

limited contact recreation waters. 

 

Flammable or Combustible Liquids, or Hazardous Material - Flammable material is any material that 

will readily ignite from common sources of heat, or that will ignite at a temperature of 600o F or less. 

Flammable liquid is any liquid having a flash point below 100oF and having vapor pressure not 

exceeding forty (40) pounds per square inch (absolute) at 100oF. Combustible liquid is any liquid having 

a flash point at or above 100oF. Hazardous material includes any flammable solids, corrosive liquids, 

radioactive materials, oxidizing materials, highly toxic materials, poisonous gases, reactive materials, 

unstable materials, hyperbolic materials, pyrophoric materials, and any substance or mixture of 

substances which is an irritant, a strong sensitizer or which generates pressure through exposure to heat, 

decomposition or other means. 

 

Flood or Flooding - A general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of 

normally dry land areas from: 

1. The overflow of wetlands, lakes, streams, tributaries, or other water bodies; and/or 

2. The unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source. 

 

Flood Hazard Boundary Map (FHBM) - The official map issued by the Federal Insurance 

Administration where the areas of special flood hazard have been designated Zone A. 

 

Floodway - The channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas that must be 

reserved in order to discharge the base flood without an accumulative increase in the water 

surface. 

 

Food Product Processing Facility - A commercial establishment in which food or food-related 

products are processed, packaged, or otherwise prepared for human consumption but not 

consumed on the premises. 

 



16 

 

Footprint - The land area covered or occupied by a building and a facility as defined herein. The 

term shall also include any land area dedicated to a use such as outdoor storage or any area 

utilized for storage, display, or livestock confinement as part of or in support of the building or 

use. 

 

Game Farm - An area of five (5) acres or more, which is used for producing hatchery, raised 

game and non-domestic animals for sale to private shooting preserves. 

 

Game Lodge - A building or group of detached, or semi-detached, or attached buildings occupied 

or used as a temporary abiding place of sportsmen, hunters and fishermen, who are lodged, with 

or without meals, and in which there are more than two (2) sleeping rooms. 

 

Gaming Device or Gaming Equipment - Any mechanical contrivance or machine used in 

connection with gaming or any game. 

 

Gaming or Gambling - The dealing, operating, carrying on, conducting, maintaining, or exposing 

for pay of any game. 

 

Gaming or Gambling Establishment - Any premises wherein or whereon gaming is done. 

 

Garage - An accessory building or portion of a building including a carport which is designed or 

used for the sheltering of private motor vehicles and the storage of household equipment 

incidental to the residential occupancy and in which there are no facilities for repairing or 

servicing of such vehicles for remuneration or commercial use. 

 

Garage, Public - A building or portion thereof used for the housing or care of motor vehicles for 

the general public or where such vehicles are equipped or repaired for remuneration or kept for 

hire or sale. This may include premises commonly known as “gasoline stations” or “service 

stations”. 

 

Gasoline Station - Any area of land, including structures thereon, that is used for the sale of 

gasoline or other motor vehicle fuel, and oil or other lubrication substances; and which may 

include facilities used or designed to be used for polishing, greasing, washing, spraying, dry 

cleaning, or otherwise cleaning such vehicles. 

 

Golf Course - A public or private area operated for the purpose of playing golf, and includes a 

par 3 golf course, club house and recreational facilities, driving ranges, and miniature golf 

courses, and similar uses. 

 

Grain Elevator - Grain storage facilities, which are the principal and primary use of the lot. Said 

facilities are generally equipped with devices for housing and discharging significant quantities 

of grain. This definition does not include normal farm product storage and warehousing facilities 

such as grain bins and where such storage is an accessory use to the parcel. 

 



17 

 

Grandfather - For the purposes of this ordinance the term “grandfather” shall be defined as a lay 

term used to describe structures, land uses, facilities, operations or similar activities in existence 

prior to adoption of the zoning ordinance. The term is generally applied to uses not allowed or 

further regulated within the new ordinance. The act or condition of grandfathered is more fully 

addressed in the nonconforming Article herein. 

 

Greenhouse, Commercial - A building for the growing of flowers, plants, shrubs, trees, and 

similar vegetation which are not necessarily transplanted outdoors on the same lot containing 

such greenhouse, but are sold directly from such lot at wholesale or retail. 

 

Group Home - See Residential Care Facility. 

 

High voltage transmission line - means a conductor of electric energy and associated facilities. 

Highway - Every way or place of whatever nature open to the public, as a matter of right, for 

purposed of vehicular travel, is a highway. The term “highway” shall also include private access 

easements and roadways. 

 

Home Occupation - A business activity customarily carried on in the home by a member of the 

occupant's family without structural alterations in the building or any of its rooms, without the 

installation or outside storage of any machinery, equipment or material other than that customary 

to normal household operations, without the employment of more than two (2) persons not 

residing in the home, which does not cause the generation of traffic in excess of that experienced 

on an average right-of-way of similar design, noise, electrical interference, fumes, odors, etc. 

 

Horticulture - The science or art of cultivating fruits, vegetables, flowers, and plants. 

 

Horticulture Sales - The on-site retail sale of farm produce, floral, fauna, or similar items. The 

majority of the produce sold shall be seasonal in nature and grown on-site. An exception may be 

a cooperative venture between numerous producers. 

 

Hospital - An institution devoted primarily to the operation of facilities of the diagnosis, 

treatment, and cure of disease, illness, injury, or other abnormal physical conditions with 

provisions for keeping patients overnight. 

 

Hotel - An establishment of transient guests having sleeping rooms without individual cooking 

facilities for more than six (6) persons for compensation and may or may not provide meals.  

 

Interchange - A grade-separated intersection with one (1) or more direct connections for 

vehicular travel between the intersecting right-of-ways. 

 

Irrigation Systems - This term shall include all canals, ditches, piping, center pivot, and other 

methods utilized to irrigate cropland. This term does not include systems designed to land apply 

waste or water from animal feeding operations as defined herein. All irrigation systems shall 

comply with local, state, and federal regulations. 

 



18 

 

Junkyard - A place where non-recyclable waste, having no economic values, or waste, which is 

recyclable, but has no chance of being recycled is deposited. 

 

Kennel - Any place where more than twenty (20) dogs, cats, or other domesticated animals of 

breeding age are housed, groomed, bred, boarded, trained, harbored, kept, or sold for commercial 

purposes. 

 

Lagoon - Any pond, basin, or other impoundment made by excavation or earthen fill for storage 

or treatment of human sewage or animal waste. 

 

Landing Strip - A strip of ground used or capable of being used for the landing and take-off of 

aircraft. 

 

Large Wind Energy Conversion System (LWECS) - shall mean an electrical generating facility 

producing 50 kW or more and comprised of one or more wind turbines and accessory facilities, 

including but not limited to: power lines, transformers, substations and meteorological towers 

that operate by converting the kinetic energy of wind into electrical energy. The energy may be 

used on-site or distributed into the electrical grid. 

 

Loading Area - A completely off right-of-way, space, or berth on the same lot for the loading or 

unloading of freight carriers, having adequate ingress and egress to a public right-of-way. 

 

Loading Space, Off Right-of-Way - Space logically and conveniently located for bulk pickups 

and deliveries, scaled to delivery vehicles expected to be used, and accessible to such vehicles 

when required off right-of-way loading space is not to be used as off right-of-way parking space 

in computation of required off right-of-way parking space. 

 

Locker - A meat processing plant and any other facility where meat, poultry or eggs are cooked, 

cured, smoked, or otherwise processed or packed, provided that all activities are carried out 

indoors. This term shall not include a delicatessen, stockyard, slaughterhouse, tannery, a poultry 

killing establishment, an animal food factory, or an animal by-products plant. 

 

Lot - For purposes of this ordinance, a lot is a parcel of land of at least sufficient size to meet 

minimum zoning requirements for use, coverage, and area, and to provide such yards and other 

open spaces as are herein required. Such lot shall have frontage on an improved public right-of-

way, or on an approved private right-of-way, and may consist of a single lot of record; a portion 

of a lot of record; a combination of complete lots of record, of complete lots of record and 

portions of lots of record, a parcel of land described by metes and bounds; provided that in no 

case of division or combination shall any residual lot or parcel be created which does not meet 

the requirements of this ordinance. 

 

Lot Coverage - The percent of the area of a lot occupied by buildings, or structures, including 

accessory building or structures. 

 

Lot Depth - The average horizontal distance between the front and rear lot lines. 



19 

 

Lot Frontage - The portion of the lot nearest the right-of-way; for the purpose of determining 

yard requirements on corner lots and through lots, all sides of a lot adjacent to right-of-ways 

shall be considered frontage, and yards shall be provided as indicated under “Yards” in this 

ordinance. 

 

Lot Frontage, Pie Shaped - A lot usually abutting a cul-de-sac. For the purpose of determining 

frontage, said distance shall be measured perpendicularly to the said lot lines at a point thirty 

(30) feet from the front line. 

 

Lot Line - The legally defined limits of any lot. 

 

Lot, Corner - A lot situated at the intersection of two (2) right-of-ways, the interior angle of such 

intersection not exceeding one hundred thirty five (135) degrees. 

 

Lot, Double Frontage - A lot having frontage on two (2) non-intersecting right-of-ways, as 

distinguished from a corner lot. 

 

Lot Line, Exterior - The side lot line, which abuts the right-of-way on a corner lot. 

 

Lot Line, Rear - The lot line or point of intersection of the side lot lines farthest from and 

opposite the front lot line. 

 

Lot Line, Side - A lot line other than a front or rear lot line. 

 

Lot of Record - A lot which is part of a subdivision recorded in the office of the County Register 

of Deeds, or a lot or parcel described by metes and bounds, the description of which has been so 

recorded. For the purposes of this Ordinance, a legally transacted parcel prior to adoption may be 

considered as a lot of record. 

 

Lot Width - The mean horizontal distance between the side lot lines of a lot measured at right 

angles to the depth or the same distance measured at the front building line. 

 

Lot, Corner - A corner lot is defined as a lot located at the intersection of two (2) or more right-

of-ways. A lot abutting on a curved right-of-way(s) shall be considered a corner lot if straight 

lines drawn from the foremost points of the side lot lines to the foremost point of the lot meet at 

an interior angle of less than one hundred thirty-five (l35) degrees. 

 

Lot, Interior - An interior lot is defined as a lot other than a corner lot with only one frontage on 

a right-of-way. 

 

Lot, Through - A through lot is defined as a lot other than a corner lot with frontage on more 

than one right-of-way. Through lots abutting two right-of-ways may be referred to as double 

frontage lot. 

 



20 

 

Lot, Reversed Frontage - A reversed frontage lot is defined as a lot on which the frontage is at 

right angles or approximately right angles, interior angle less than one hundred thirty-five (135) 

degrees, to the general pattern in the area. A reversed frontage lot may also be a corner or a 

through lot. 

 

Main Building - A building in which is conducted the primary or predominant use of the lot on 

which it is located. (Added June 21, 2022) 

 

Major Road Plan - The Transportation Plan in the Yankton County Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Major Recreational Equipment - Major recreational equipment is defined as including boats and 

boat trailers, travel trailers, pick-up campers or coaches, designed to be mounted on automotive 

vehicles, motorized dwellings, tent trailers, and the like, and case or boxes used for transporting 

recreational equipment, whether occupied by such equipment or not. 

 

Manufactured Home - A moveable or portable dwelling which is eight (8) feet or more in width 

and thirty-two (32) feet or more in length, constructed on a chassis, and which is designed to be 

towed, designed for year-round occupancy, primarily to be used without a permanent foundation, 

but which may sit on a permanent foundation, and designed to be connected to utilities. It may 

consist of one or more units, separately transportable, but designed to be joined together into one 

integral unit. Manufactured homes are built according to the Federal Manufactured Housing 

Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974, which became effective June 15, 1976. 

Manufactured homes are not mobile homes. 

 

The following shall not be included in this definition: 

1. Travel trailers, pickup coaches, motor homes, camping trailers, or other 

recreational vehicles. 

2. Manufactured modular housing which is designed to be set on a permanent 

foundation, and which uses standard sheathing, roofing, siding, and electrical, 

plumbing, and heating systems. 

 

Manufactured Home Park - A parcel of land under single ownership, which has been planned 

and improved for the placement of, manufactured homes for non-transient use. 

 

Manufacturing - The use of land, buildings or structures for the purpose of manufacturing, 

assembly, making, preparing, inspecting, finishing, treating, altering, repairing, warehousing or 

storing or adapting for sale of any goods, substance, article, thing or service. 

 

Manufacturing Light - The use of land, buildings or structures for the purpose of manufacturing, 

assembly, making, preparing, inspecting, finishing, treating, altering, repairing, warehousing or 

storing or adapting for sale of any goods, substance, article, thing or service. Light 

manufacturing shall have no more than ten employees. 

 

 

 



21 

 

Manure System Definitions - (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

1. Solid Manure System – Any style of manure not conforming to the definition of “Liquid 

Manure”. Example systems include floor-raised poultry, deep-bedded housing systems, 

and dry lots. Vast majority (>90%) of excreted manure will be maintained in form that 

can be handled with a front-end loader and stacked without seepage under normal 

operating conditions. Example systems include floor-raised poultry, deep-bedded housing 

systems, and drylots 

 

2. Liquid Manure System – Vast majority (>90%) of excreted manure will be stored in a 

form that – with or without agitation/mixing – can be handled with a common centrifugal 

pump under normal operating conditions. Example systems include slatted floor facilities 

and facilities where manure can be transferred via gravity. 

 

Massage Establishment - Any premises or part thereof where massages are given, offered or 

solicited in pursuance of a trade or calling, business or occupation provided that the service is 

rendered by a person duly trained, licensed and registered under the appropriate statute. 

 

Medical use - includes the acquisition, administration, cultivation, manufacture, delivery, 

harvest, possession, preparation, transfer, transportation, or use of cannabis or paraphernalia 

relating to the administration of cannabis to treat or alleviate a registered qualifying patient’s 

debilitating medical condition or symptom associated with the patient’s debilitating medical 

condition. The term does not include: (Amended November 4, 2021) 

a. The cultivation of cannabis by a nonresident cardholder; 

b. The cultivation of cannabis by a cardholder who is not designated as being  

allowed to cultivate on the card holder’s registry identification card; or 

c. The extraction of resin from cannabis by solvent extraction unless the  

extraction is done by a cannabis product manufacturing facility 

 

Meteorological Tower - shall mean, for purposes of this regulation, a tower which is erected 

primarily to measure wind speed and directions plus other data relevant to siting a Small or 

Large Wind Energy Conversion System. Meteorological towers do not include towers and 

equipment used by airports, the South Dakota Department of Transportation, or other 

applications to monitor weather conditions. 

Mobile Home - A transportable, factory-built home, designed to be used as a year-round 

residential dwelling and built prior to the enactment of the Federal Manufactured Housing 

Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974, which became effective June 15, 1976. 

 

Modular Home - A structure or building module that is manufactured at a location other than the 

site upon which it is installed and used as a residence; transportable in one or more sections on a 

temporary chassis or other conveyance device; and to be used as a permanent dwelling when 



22 

 

installed and placed upon a permanent foundation system. This term includes the plumbing, 

heating, air conditioning, and electrical systems contained within the structure. 

 

Motel - A group of attached or detached buildings on the same lot containing sleeping quarters 

for rental to transients. 

 

Motor Vehicle Track or Play Area - An area of land utilized for the racing or recreational riding 

of motor vehicles with or without a defined area or track. The term may include a racetrack with 

spectators and an established racing affiliation or a day use area utilized by a club, group, or 

independent individuals. A motor vehicle may include cars, trucks, motorcycles, all-terrain 

vehicles or similar items. (Amended May 19, 2020) 

 

Museum - A building or buildings used, or to be used, for the preservation of a collection of 

paintings and/or other works of art, and/or of objects of natural history, and/or of mechanical, 

scientific and/or philosophical inventions, instruments, models and/or designs and dedicated or 

to be dedicated to the recreation of the public, together with any libraries, reading rooms, 

laboratories and/or other offices and premises used or to be used in connection therewith. 

 

Navigable Waters - A body of water presently being used or is suitable for use for transportation 

and commerce, or if it has been so used or was suitable for such use in the past, or if it could be 

made suitable for such use in the future by reasonable improvements. 

 

Non-Participating - A property that is not a participating property.  

 

Nonconforming Lot - A lot of record existing on the date of passage of this ordinance which 

does not have the minimum width or contain the minimum area for the zone in which it is 

located. 

 

Nonconforming Structure - A lawful structure which exists on the date of passage of this 

ordinance that could not be built under the terms of this ordinance by reason of restrictions on 

area, lot coverage, height, yard setbacks, or other characteristics of the structure. 

 

Nonconforming Use - A land use or building or structure or portion thereof lawfully existing at 

the effective date of this ordinance or at the time of any amendment thereto, which does not 

conform to the regulations of the zone in which it is located. 

 

Nonresident cardholder - a person who: (Amended November 4, 2021) 

a. Has been diagnosed with a debilitating medical condition, or is the parent,    

      guardian, conservator, or other person with authority to consent to the medical      

      treatment of a person who has been diagnosed with a debilitating medical   

      condition; 

b. Is not a resident of this state or who has been a resident of this state for fewer   

      than forty-five (45) days; 

c. Was issued a currently valid registry identification card or its equivalent by  



23 

 

another state, district, territory, commonwealth, insular possession of the United States, or 

country recognized by the United States that allows the person to use cannabis for    

       medical purposes in the jurisdiction of issuance; and. 

d. Has submitted any documentation required by the department and has received 

confirmation of registration 

 

Noxious - When used with reference to any use or activity in respect of any land, building or 

structure or a use or activity which, from its nature or from the manner of carrying on same, 

creates or is liable to create, by reason or destructive gas or fumes, dust, objectionable odor, 

noise or vibration or unsightly storage of goods, wares, merchandise, salvage, machinery parts, 

junk, waste or other material, a condition which may become hazardous or injurious as regards to 

health or safety or which prejudices the character of the surrounding area or interferes with or 

may interfere with the normal enjoyment of any use of activity in respect of any land, building or 

structure. 

 

Nuisance - Any condition existing that is or may become injurious or dangerous to health or that 

prevents or hinders or may prevent or hinder in any manner the suppression of a disease. 

 

Nursery, Swine - A facility confining a specific number of small and/or young swine averaging 

ten (10) to fifty-five (55) pounds in size. (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

Nursing Home, Rest Home, Convalescent Home - A place which undertakes through its 

ownership or management to provide maintenance, personal, or nursing care for three or more 

persons who by reason of illness, physical deformity, or old age are unable to care for 

themselves. 

 

Obstruction - Any structure or vegetation that blocks the complete vision of people. 

 

Off-Site Sign - A sign/billboard that advertises goods or services not available at the location of 

the billboard or advertising sign.   

Office - A building or part thereof, designed, intended or used for the practice of a profession, 

the carrying on of a business, the conduct of public administration, or, where not conducted on 

the site thereof, the administration of an industry, but shall not include a retail commercial use, 

any industrial use, clinic, financial institution or place of amusement or place of assembly. 
 

On-Site Sign - A sign identifying an establishment's activities, products or services conducted or 

available on the property upon which it is located and signs advertising the sale or lease of the 

property upon which they are located.  

Open Sales Area - Any open land or area used or occupied for the purpose of displaying for sale 

new or secondhand merchandise, including but not limited to, passenger cars or trucks, farm 

machinery, construction machinery, motor scooters or motorcycles, boats, trailers, aircraft, and 

monuments. 



24 

 

Outdoor Storage Area - Any open land or area used for the purpose of storage of any product or 

part of a product either before, during, or after manufacturing, servicing, or repairing and not 

displayed for retail sale. This does not include open sales areas. 

 

Owner - The record owners of the fee or a vendee in possession, including any person, group of 

persons, firm or firms, corporation or corporations, or any other legal entity having legal title to 

or sufficient proprietary interest in the land sought to be subdivided. 

 

Ownership Line - A line defining ownership of property under one owner of record. 

 

Parcel - A legally defined piece of property including a platted lot, legally described portion, or 

similarly described piece of property primarily used as an identifier within taxation. 

 

Park - An area consisting largely of open space, which may include a recreational area, 

playground, or similar use but shall not include a mobile home park, a campground or trailer 

park. 

 

Parking Space - An off right-of-way space available for parking of a motor vehicle and which is 

held to be an area for dimension of which are ten (10) feet by twenty (20) feet or which covers 

two hundred (200) square feet, exclusive of passageways and driveways appurtenant thereto and 

giving access thereto. Off right-of-way parking shall be on or adjacent to the property on which 

the principal use is located. 

 

Parking Space, Off Right-of-Way - For the purposes of this ordinance, an off right-of-way 

parking space shall consist of a space adequate for parking an automobile with room for opening 

doors on both sides, together with properly related access to a right-of-way and maneuvering 

room. Required off right-of-way parking areas for three (3) or more automobiles shall have 

individual spaces marked, and shall be so designed, maintained, and regulated that no parking or 

maneuvering incidental to parking shall be on any right-of-way, and so that any automobile may 

be parked and un-parked without moving another. For purposes of rough computation, an off 

right-of-way parking space and necessary access and maneuvering may be estimated at three 

hundred (300) square feet, but off right-of-way parking requirements will be considered to be 

met only when actual spaces meeting the requirements above are 

provided and maintained, improved in a manner appropriate to the circumstances of the case, and 

in accordance with all ordinances and regulations of the County. 

 

Participating - A property that is a host property to a project or a property that is subject of an 

agreement that provides for the payment of monetary compensation to the landowner regardless 

of whether any part of the project is constructed on the property and specifies in writing any 

waiver of a requirement or right under this ordinance and the landowner’s acceptance of payment 

establishes the landowner’s property as a participating property. 

 

Pawnshop - An establishment where money is loaned on the security of personal property 

pledged in the keeping of the pawnbroker. 

 



25 

 

Performance Standards –  

Criterion established for the purposes of: 

1. Assigning proposed land uses to proper districts; and 

2. Controlling noise, odor, glare, smoke, toxic matter, aesthetics, vibration, 

fire/explosive hazards generated by, or inherent in, uses of land or buildings. 

 

Permitted Use - A use by right, which is specifically authorized in a particular zoning district. 

 

Permitted Special Use - A use allowed in a zoning district subject to the applicable restrictions of 

that zoning district and additionally subject to certain restrictions for that specific use. 

(Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

Person - Any individual or group of individuals, or any corporation, general or limited 

partnership, joint venture, unincorporated association, or governmental or quasi-governmental 

entity. 

 

Places of Assembly - Places where people gather or congregate for amusement, worship, 

learning, etc. This includes schools, churches, theaters, playgrounds, etc.   

 

Place of worship - a structure where persons regularly assemble for worship,  

ceremonies, rituals, and education relating to a particular form of religious belief and which a 

reasonable person would conclude is a place of worship by reason of design, signs, or 

architectural or other features. (Amended November 4, 2021) 

 

Plat - a map, or representation on paper, of a piece of land subdivided into lots, parcels, tracts or 

blocks, including roads, commons, and public grounds, if any, all drawn to scale and complete with 

all irrevocable offers of dedication.  

Planning Commission - The Planning Commission of Yankton County. The term Planning 

Commission shall be synonymous with Planning and Zoning Commission and Commission, but 

shall not include Board of Adjustment or Zoning Board. 

 

Planning Official: The Planning (Zoning) Administrator and his/her designee charged with the 

administration and enforcement of the Yankton County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Plaza - A public square or similar open area. 

 

Portable Processing Plant - Any equipment for the crushing, screening or washing of sand and 

gravel aggregate materials, but not including a concrete batching plant or an asphalt plant, which 

equipment is capable of being readily drawn or readily propelled by a motor vehicle and which 

equipment is not considered permanently affixed to the site. 

 

Practitioner - a physician who is licensed with authority to prescribe drugs to humans. In relation 

to a nonresident cardholder, the term means a person who is licensed with authority to prescribe 

drugs to humans in the state of the patient’s residence. (Amended November 4, 2021) 



26 

 

Principal Use - The main use of land or structures as distinguished from a secondary or accessory 

use. 

 

Private Recreation Area - Any open space or recreational area, other than a public park, owned 

and operated or maintained in whole or in part for profit by a private individual(s), club or 

fraternal organization for members only, and may include therein one or more of the following 

activities: swimming, boat facilities, picnic area, tennis courts, outdoor skating rinks, athletic 

fields, walking, riding and cross-country skiing, snowmobiling, but does not include the racing 

of animals, motor vehicles, motorcycles or snowmobiles. 

 

Private Shooting Preserves - An acreage of at least one hundred and sixty (160) acres and not 

exceeding one thousand two hundred and eighty (1,280) acres either privately owned or leased 

on which hatchery raised game and/or larger game is released for the purpose of hunting, for a 

fee, over an extended season. 

 

Property Line - The division between two parcels of land, or between a parcel of land and the 

right-of-way. 

 

Public - Promotion of a public cause or service, including utilities having a franchise from 

Yankton County or other governmental entity, but excluding other for-profit organizations. 

 

Public Building - Any building which is owned, leased, primarily used, and/or primarily 

occupied by a school district or municipal, county, state, or federal government, or any 

subdivision or agency of the school district, municipal, county, state, or federal government. 

 

Publicly Traded Company - For purposes of this Ordinance a “publicly traded company” means 

a company, the shares or other interests in which are regularly traded on the New York Stock 

Exchange, the American Stock Exchange, NASDAQ or similar recognized security market. 

 

Qualifying patient - a person who has been diagnosed by a practitioner as having a  

debilitation medical condition. (Amended November 4, 2021) 

 

Quarry - A place where consolidated rock has been or is being removed by means of an open 

excavation to supply material for construction, industrial, or manufacturing purposes, but does 

not include a wayside quarry or open pit metal mine. 

 

Ranch Building - See Farm Building. 

 

Ranch Occupation - See Farm Occupation. 

 

Ranch Unit - See Farm Unit. 

 

Recreational Equipment - The term recreational equipment shall include boats and boat trailers, 

jet skis, snowmobiles, travel trailers, pick-up campers or coaches, designed to be mounted on 



27 

 

automotive vehicles, motorized dwellings, tent trailers, and the like, and case or boxes used for 

transporting recreational equipment, whether occupied by such equipment or not. 

 

Recycling Center - A building in which used material is separated and processed prior to 

shipment to others who will use those materials to manufacture new products. 

 

Registry identification card - a document issued by the department that identifies a person as a 

registered qualifying patient or registered designated caregiver, or documentation that is deemed 

a registry identification card pursuant to SDCL 34-20G-29 to SDCL 34-20G-42 inclusive. 

(Amended November 4, 2021) 

 

Remote Fuel Depots - A structure, usually unmanned, that is used for the sale of gasoline, diesel, 

or other motor vehicle fuel. 

 

Rent-All Shop - A building or part of a building where residential and commercial equipment is 

kept for rental to the general public and includes such things as lawn and garden tools, floor 

cleaning equipment, masonry tools, painting and decorating equipment, moving tools, plumbing 

tools and power tools. 

 

Repair Shop, Auto Body - A general industrial establishment for the repair of damage to a motor 

vehicle caused by collision, accident, corrosion or age, and, without limiting the generality of the 

foregoing, includes the reconstruction of motor vehicles, the painting or repainting of motor 

vehicles and the rebuilding or conversion of automotive engines or engine parts, but does not 

include a motor vehicle repair shop, an impounding yard, an automobile service station or a gas 

station. 

 

Repair Shop, Motor Vehicle - A service commercial or general industrial establishment for the 

repair or replacement of parts in a motor vehicle and without limiting the generality of the 

foregoing, shocks, transmissions, gears, brakes, clutch assemblies, steering assemblies, radiators, 

heating or cooling systems, ignition systems, mechanical or electrical parts or systems, the 

installation of undercoating, engine tuning, lubrication and engine conversion or replacement, 

but does not include an auto body repair shop, an impounding yard, an automobile service station 

or a gas station. 

 

Residential Care Facility - A family home, group care facility, or similar facility for twenty-four 

(24) hour non-medical care of persons in need of personal services, supervision or assistance for 

sustaining the activities of daily living or for the protection of the individual. 

 

Restaurant - A business establishment consisting of a kitchen and dining room, whose primary 

purpose is to prepare and serve food to be eaten by customers seated in the dining room. 

 

Restaurant, Drive-In - A business establishment consisting of a kitchen, with or without a dining 

room, where food is prepared and packaged to eat either off the premises or within automobiles 

parked on the premises. 

 



28 

 

Restaurant, In-House - A private business establishment consisting of a kitchen, with or without 

a dining room, whose primary purpose is to prepare and serve food to be eaten by employees of 

the principal employer. For the purposes of this ordinance, the term “cafeteria” shall be 

synonymous with “Restaurant, In-House.” 

 

Rest Home - See Nursing Homes. 

 

Retail Sales - A building where goods, wares, merchandise, substances, articles, or items are 

offered or kept for sale at retail, including storage of limited quantities of such goods, wares, 

merchandise, substances, articles, or items sufficient only to service such store. 

 

Retail Store - A building where goods, wares, merchandise, substances, articles or items are 

offered or kept for sale at retail, including storage of limited quantities of such goods, wares, 

merchandise, substances, articles or items sufficient only to service such store. 

 

Retaining Wall - A structure constructed to hold back or support an earthen bank. 

 

Riding Stable - Any place that has more than fifteen (15) stalls or horse spaces to board, train, or 

provide recreational equine activities. 

 

Right-of-Way: ROW - An area of land that is legally described in a registered deed for the 

provision of public access within which there is usually a road or street. The term right-of-way 

shall include any defined access route or point including but not limited to public and private 

accesses, road easements, streets, roads, and drives other than a private drive serving a single 

owner. 

 

Right-of-Way Line - A dividing line between a lot, tract, or parcel of land and the public right-

of-way. 

 

Roadside Stand - A structure having a ground area of not more than three hundred (300) square 

feet, not permanently fixed to the ground, readily removable in its entirety, not fully enclosed 

and to be used solely for the sale of farm products produced on the premises, bait, and other 

approved products. 

 

Rodeo Grounds - A building or place where rodeo events such as roping and riding are done for 

practice or competition. 

 

Rotor Diameter - shall mean the diameter of the circle described by the moving rotor blades. 

Row of Trees - Ten (10) or more trees planted in a line, separated by a distance of forty (40) feet 

or less. 

 

Running Gear - The parts which allow a manufactured home to be mobile including the tires, 

wheels, axles, running lights, and hitch. This definition shall include all mobility items exclusive 

of the parts of the chassis that make up the structural integrity of the manufactured home. 

 



29 

 

Salvage Yard - The use of more than seven hundred fifty (750) square feet of open storage on 

any lot, portion of lot, or tract of land for the sale, storage, keeping, or for the abandonment, 

dismantling, or wrecking of automobiles or other vehicles, machines, or parts thereof. 

 

Satellite Dish/Receiver - A device incorporating a reflective surface that is solid, open mesh, or 

bar configured and is the shape of a shallow dish or cone designed and used for the reception of 

television signals related back to earth from a terrestrially and/or orbital based communications 

satellite. 

 

School, Boarding - A school under the sponsorship of a private agency, corporation, or religious 

entity, having a curriculum generally equivalent to public elementary or secondary schools, 

accredited by the State of South Dakota and provides room and board for its students; but 

excluding private trade or commercial schools. “Day Care Centers” as herein defined, shall not 

be considered schools as applicable to this definition. 

 

School, Denominational or Private - A school under the sponsorship of a private agency, 

corporation, or religious entity, having a curriculum generally equivalent to public elementary or 

secondary schools and accredited by the State of South Dakota; but excluding private trade or 

commercial schools. “Day Care Centers” as herein defined, shall not be considered schools as 

applicable to this definition. 

 

School, Public - A school under the sponsorship of a public agency providing elementary or 

secondary curriculum, and accredited by the State of South Dakota; but excluding private trade 

or commercial schools. 

 

School, Trade or Commercial - An establishment other than an accredited or licensed public, 

private or denominational school, offering training or instruction in art, occupation or trade. 

 

Screening - A continuous fence, wall, compact evergreen hedge or combination thereof, 

supplemented with landscape planting, which would effectively screen the property which it 

encloses, and is broken only by access drives and walks. 

 

Secondhand Shop - The use of land, or building or structure or part thereof where used goods, 

wares, merchandise, substances, or articles are offered or kept for sale but shall not include a 

pawnshop. 

 

Security Dwelling Unit - A building or portion thereof designed for occupancy by a security 

employee. 

 

Self-Storage Warehouse - A building containing separate, individual self-storage units divided 

from the floor to the ceiling by a wall with an independent entrance from the exterior of the 

building, designed to be rented or leased on a short-term basis to the general public for private 

storage of personal goods, materials and equipment. 

 



30 

 

Semi-Portable Agricultural Structures - Anything that requires placement on the ground for 

agriculture related purposes. Semi-portable agricultural structures include, but are not limited to, 

feed bunks, calving, lambing, or farrowing sheds, and temporary grain storage facilities. 

 

Services - Establishments, primarily engaged in providing services for individuals, business and 

government establishments and other organizations, including hotels and other lodging places, 

establishments providing personal business, repair, and amusement services, health, legal, 

engineering, and other professional services, educational institutions, membership organizations, 

and other miscellaneous services. 

 

Service Establishment - Establishments primarily engaged in providing services for individuals, 

business and government establishments and other organizations, including hotels and other 

lodging places, establishments providing personal business, repair, and amusement services, 

health, legal, engineering, and other professional services, educational institutions, membership 

organizations and other miscellaneous services. 

 

Setback - The minimum horizontal distance from a lot line, to a wall of the building, exclusive of 

permitted projections. The setback shall be measured at right angles to such lot lines. 

 

Shared Wall Structure - A structure that contains two (2) or more units that share common walls 

(known as party walls). Shared wall structures include: dwellings two family, dwellings multiple 

families, residential and commercial buildings. (Amended October 18, 2022) 

 

Shelterbelt - Five or more rows of trees and/or shrubs that reduce erosion and protects against the 

effects of wind and storms. 

 

Shelterbelt Restoration - The removal and replacement of two or more rows of trees or of trees 

totaling one-half acre or more, whichever is greater, in an existing shelterbelt. 

 

Side Wall - The measurement from the highest point of the finished floor at grade to the height 

of the highest point of wall framing.  

 

Sight Triangle - See “Traffic Visibility Triangle”. 

 

Signs/Billboards - Any sign defined in this ordinance which displays or conveys any 

identification, description, illustration, or device illuminated or non-illuminated, which directs 

attention to a product, service, business activity, institution, business or solicitation, including 

any permanently installed or situated merchandise, or any emblem, painting, banner, pennant or 

placard designed to advertise, identify or convey information, with the exception of window 

displays.  

 

Sign Structure - The sign face and support members that are permanently affixed to the ground 

or attached to a structure.  



31 

 

Sign - Any device designed to inform or attract the attention of persons not on the premises on 

which the sign is located, provided, however, that the following shall not be included in the 

application of the regulations herein: 

1. Signs not exceeding one (1) square foot in area and bearing only property numbers, 

post office box numbers, names of occupants of premises, or other identification or 

premises not having commercial connotations; 

2. Flags and insignias of any government, except when displayed in connection with 

commercial promotion; 

3. Legal notices, identification, informational, or directional signs erected or required by 

governmental bodies; 

4. Integral decorative or architectural feature of buildings, except letters, trademarks, 

moving parts, or moving lights; and 

5. Signs directing and guiding traffic and parking on private property, but bearing no 

advertising matter. 

 

Sign, Banner - A temporary sign, which has a maximum area of twelve (12) square feet, 

composed of lightweight material either enclosed or not in a rigid frame, secured or mounted so 

as to allow movement of the sign caused by movement of the atmosphere (i.e., pennants, twirling 

signs, balloon, or other gas-filled figures, ribbons, or other similar moving devices) and intended 

to be displayed for a limited period of time. 

 

Sign, Bulletin Board - An exterior sign, which has a maximum area of thirty-five (35) square 

feet, used by public, charitable, and religious institutions for the purpose of informing the public 

about activities of their organization. 

 

Sign, Directional Off-Site - An exterior sign that is generally informational, that has a purpose 

secondary to the use of the primary use on a property that is not adjacent to the property on 

which the directional off-site sign exists. Said sign shall include only those signs placed by a 

political subdivision and shall include those signs standardized by the South Dakota Department 

of Transportation. 

 

Sign, Directional On-Site - An exterior sign that is generally informational, that has a purpose 

secondary to the use of the property on which it is located, such as “no parking,” “entrance,” and 

“loading only.” Said sign shall conform to standards adopted or approved by the regulating 

public agency. 

 

Sign, Easement and Utility - An exterior sign, which has a maximum area of five (5) square feet, 

used to identify the location of easements, property lines, utilities, hazards, or otherwise 

providing notice of restrictions on public access. 

 

Sign, Exterior On-site - An exterior sign relating in subject to the premises upon which it is 

located, or to products, accommodations, services, or activities on the premises. Exterior on-site 

signs do not include signs erected by outdoor advertising industry in the conduct of the outdoor 

advertising business, such as billboards, which are off-site signs. 

 



32 

 

Sign Facing - That portion of a sign structure upon which advertising is affixed or painted and 

visible in one direction at one time.  

Sign, Flag - Any fabric or bunting containing distinctive colors, patterns, or symbols, which has 

a maximum area of twenty (20) square feet and is used as a symbol of government, political 

subdivision, or other entity. 

 

Sign, Ground and Monument - An exterior sign permanently attached to the ground to identify 

churches, schools, institutional, and public uses. Said sign may also identify a specific 

neighborhood by displaying the name of the tract. Ground and monument signs: 

1. Are generally constructed of concrete or other masonry material; 

2. Shall not exceed twenty (20) feet in height above the mean right-of-way centerline or 

grade; 

3. Shall meet a minimum of one-half (½) of the yard requirements for the district in 

which it is located; and 

4. Shall not exceed one hundred (100) square feet on one (1) side or two hundred (200) 

square feet on all sides of any one (1) premise. 

 

Sign, Mounted Wall - A sign, which has a maximum area of one hundred (100) square feet, that 

is attached to or erected against a wall of a building and shall project no more than twelve (12) 

inches from the wall of the building. Said sign is intended to be read from directly in front of the 

face of the building. 

 

Sign, Name and Address Plate - A sign, which has a maximum area of two (2) square feet, that is 

affixed to the side of a building informing the public as to the residents, occupation, and/or 

address of the building. 

 

Sign, Off-Site - A sign other than an on-site sign. Off-site signs are conventionally know as 

billboards regardless of size. 

 

Sign, Portable - Any sign, which has a maximum area of twenty (20) square feet, not 

permanently attached to the ground or other permanent structure, or a sign designed to be 

transported, including, but not limited to, signs designed to be transported by means of wheels; 

signs converted to A or T-frames; menu and sandwich board signs. Signs attached to or painted 

on vehicles parked and visible from the public right-of-way shall not be included in this 

definition and shall be prohibited unless said vehicle is used in normal day-to-day operations of 

the business. Said sign is intended to be displayed for a limited period of time. 

 

Sign, Projecting - Any sign, which has a maximum area of one hundred (100) square feet, that is 

affixed to a building or wall in such a manner that its face is perpendicular to the face of the 

building and the sign extends more than twelve (12) inches beyond the surface of such building 

or wall. 

 

Sign, Real Estate - An exterior sign for the purpose of advertising the sale, rental, lease of real 

property. Said sign is located on the premises for sale, rental, or lease and shall be of a temporary 



33 

 

nature and shall have a maximum area of four (4) square feet except in the Commercial, 

Highway Commercial, or Industrial Districts where the maximum area shall be thirty-two (32) 

square feet. 

 

Sign, Roof - Any sign, which has maximum area of three hundred (300) square feet that is 

erected upon, against, or directly above a roof or on top of the parapet of a building. 

 

Small Wind Energy Conversion System - shall mean a wind energy conversion system 

consisting of a Horizontal-Axis Wind Turbine (HAWT), a Vertical-Axis Wind Turbine 

(VAWT), which may include a tower, and associated control or conversion electronics, which 

has a rated capacity of less than 50 kWh and which is primarily intended to reduce on-site 

consumption of utility power. 

Solar Energy - Radiant energy received from the sun that can be collected in the form of heat or 

light by a solar collector. (Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

Solar Energy Conversion System - Solar energy conversion systems are any combination of solar 

panels on a parcel of property (Amended December 19, 2023) 

 

Start of construction - includes substantial improvement, and means the date the building permit 

was issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, 

addition placement, or other improvement was within 180 days of the permit date. The actual 

start means either the first placement of permanent construction of a structure on a site, such as 

the pouring of slabs or footings, installation of piles, construction of columns, or any work 

beyond the stage of excavation; or the placement of a manufactured home on a foundation. 

Permanent construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading and filling; 

nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include excavation for 

a basement, footings, piers or foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it include 

the installation on the property of accessory buildings such as garages or sheds not occupied as 

dwelling units or are not part of the main structure. For a substantial improvement, the actual 

start of construction means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part 

of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the building.  

(Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

Street - A right-of-way established by a recorded plat to provide the primary means of access to 

abutting property. The term shall also include the term “road” or other similar means of 

conveyance or access. 

 

Street Line - The right-of-way line of a street. 

 

Street, Arterial - A public street or highway intended to be used primarily for fast or heavy 

through traffic. 

 

Structure - Anything constructed or erected which requires location on the ground, or attached to 

something having a fixed location on the ground. Among other things, structures include, but are 



34 

 

not limited to, buildings and manufactured homes. This definition does not include semi-portable 

agricultural structures. 

 

Structural Alterations - Any change in the supporting members of a structure such as bearing 

walls, columns, beams or girders, foundations and poles. See Building, Alterations of. 

 

Substations - shall mean any electrical facility to convert electricity produced by wind turbines to 

a voltage greater than 35,000 KV for interconnection with high voltage transmission lines.  

Swine Production Unit - An operation confining a specific number of female breeding age swine 

for the purpose of farrowing. The operation shall farrow no more than an average of one-third 

(1/3) of the total herd at any one time and the total herd shall not farrow more than an average of 

two and one-half (2 ½) times within a twelve month period. All farrowed swine shall be 

relocated to an off-site nursery facility, as defined by this ordinance, at approximately ten (10) 

pounds or said swine shall be calculated as part of the total animal units. 

 

Tank Farm - A facility having two or more storage containers for the transfer of inorganic liquids 

or gases and from which wholesale sales of fuel to the public is or may be conducted. 

 

Temporary Construction Facilities - Parcels of land or structures where construction or mining 

support facilities are constructed or placed at or near a job site to provide materials and support 

mechanisms for construction or mining projects. The term shall include but is not limited to 

portable offices, signage, trailers, stationary and mobile equipment, and scales. Common uses 

include portable concrete, processing, or asphalt plants, job site trailers, and areas for equipment 

parking, material storage or stockpiling. The term temporary shall be flexible yet is generally tied 

to a related construction project with defined start-up and completion times. 

 

Temporary Signs - Signs and sign structures that are temporary in nature used in conjunction 

with a specific event, that are placed or erected in such a manner to be easily removed from the 

property and are not permanently affixed. All political signs shall be considered temporary signs. 

Temporary signs shall not exceed 32 square feet in size. 

Thrift Shop - A shop operated by a charitable organization, which sells, donated used 

merchandise only. All such merchandise shall be displayed and/or stored in an enclosed building. 

 

Tower - A structure situated on a nonresidential site that is intended for transmitting or receiving 

television, radio, or telephone communications, excluding those used exclusively for 

governmental dispatch communications. 

 

Traffic Visibility Triangle - The triangular space formed by the right-of-way lines of a corner lot 

and driveways with a line drawn from a point in one right-of-way line to a point in the other 

right-of-way line, each such point being thirty (30) feet from the point of intersection of the 

right-of-way lines (measured along the right-of-ways lines). Where the two (2) right-of-way lines 

do not intersect at a point, the point of intersection of the right-of-way lines shall be deemed to 

be the intersection of the projection of the right-of-way lines or the intersection of the tangents to 



35 

 

the right-of-way lines. In the case of arterial highways intersecting with other arterial highways 

or railways, the distances establishing the sight triangle shall be increased to fifty (50) feet. 

 

 

 
 

 

Trailer Park - This definition shall include the following existing trailer courts or parks: 

 

1. Country Acres, legally described as LT C exc LTS H2 & all LT D lane’s S/D; 

 

2. Country Liven’, legally described as Lot A NE4 SW4 10-93-55; 

 

3. Country View, legally described as LT A & S2 LT B & W30’ N2 NE4 NE4 16-93- 55; 

 

4. Sunrise, legally described as Parcel C LT 2 NE4 less LTS H1 & H2 16-93-55; 

 

5. Hansen’s Court, legally described as LT D N2 NE4 NE4 less Lot H1 16-93-55; 

 

6. Lakeside Court, legally described as Lakeside SE4 SE4 (10.66 A) 16-93-56; 

 

7. Crosley Court, legally described as Lot 4 truck/trailer S/D 15-93-55; 

 



36 

 

8. Blue Shak Rentals, legally described as Vera Van Epps Add’n exc Lot H1 & H2 SW4  

NW4 (2.47 a) 3-93-55; 

 

9. Marquardts Trail Acres, legally described as Lots 2–4 trail acres Lot G of Gov LT 1 1- 93-55; 

 

10. Lakeview, legally described as LTS F1 & F2 Fitzgerald Park & E6’ W150’ orig. 

Fitzgerald Park 17-93-56; 

 

11. Black Walnut, legally described as N2 N2 NE4 exc Parcels 17-93-56; 

 

12. Shreve’s, legally described as Parcel A LT 5 NW4 SE4 3-93-55; 

 

13. Eastwinds, legally described as Blk 1 Edna’s Add’n & Par A W2 SW4 SE4 10-93-55; 

 

14. Country Manor Estates, legally described as LT 2, ex W170’ & NW4 NW4 exc E417.4’ & 

S417.4’ W482.2’ S220’ N578.7’ & Parcel C exc W170’ NW4 NW4 16-93-55; and 

 

15. Larson’s Landing, legally described as E2 LT 2 Shore Acres 27-93-56. 

 

Transmission Line - shall mean the electrical power lines that carry voltages of at least 69,000 

volts (69 KV) and are primarily used to carry electric energy over medium to long distances 

rather than directly interconnecting and supplying electric energy to retail customers. 

Travel Trailer - A moveable vehicle with wheels designed or used as living and sleeping quarters 

or for recreation or business purposes, and such vehicles that have not had the wheels removed. 

Including campers, recreation vehicles, and trailer coaches. 

 

Truck or Equipment Terminal - A building, structure or place where six (6) or more 

commercially licensed trucks are rented, leased, kept for hire, stored, or parked for 

compensation, or from which trucks or transports, stored or parked on the property, are 

dispatched for hire as common carriers, and which may include warehouse space. 

 

Use - Use shall mean the purpose for which a lot or a building or structure, or any portion 

thereof, is designed, arranged, intended, occupies, or maintained, and “used” shall have a 

corresponding meaning. 

 

Utility - shall mean any entity engaged in this state in the generation, transmission or distribution 

of electric energy including, but not limited to, a private investor owned utility, cooperatively 

owned utility, and a public or municipality utility. 

Utility Facilities - Any above-ground structures or facilities, other than buildings, unless such 

buildings are used as storage incidental to the operation of such structures or facilities, owned by 

a governmental entity, a nonprofit organization, a corporation, a private citizen, or any entity 

defined as a public utility for any purpose and used in connection with the production, 



37 

 

generation, transmission, delivery, collection, or storage of water, sewage, electricity, gas, oil, or 

electronic signals. (Amended August 19, 2021) 

 

Variance - A variance is a relaxation of the terms of the zoning ordinance where such variance 

will not be contrary to the public interest and where, owing to conditions peculiar to the property 

and not the result of the actions of the applicant, a literal enforcement of the ordinance would 

result in unnecessary and undue hardship. As used in this ordinance, a variance is authorized 

only for area and size of structure or size of yards and open spaces; establishment or expansion 

of a use otherwise prohibited shall not be allowed by variance, nor shall a variance be granted 

because of the presence of nonconformities in the zoning district or uses in an adjoining district 

or because of conditions created by the landowner. 

 

Veterinary Clinic - A building or part of a building used for the care, diagnosis, and treatment of 

sick, ailing, infirm, or injured animals, and those who are in need of medical or surgical 

attention. Such clinics may or may not provide long-term lodging for ill or unwanted animals, or 

lodging for healthy animals on a fee basis. No outside runs, pens, or facilities shall be permitted. 

 

Veterinary Service - Shall be defined as a veterinary clinic except that outside pens and runs are 

allowed. 

 

Video Rental Shop - The use of land, building or structure for the purpose of renting video 

cassette recorders and/or video disc players and/or the rental of video tapes and/or discs. 

 

Vision Clearance - An unoccupied triangular space at the intersection of right-of-ways with other 

right-of-ways or at the intersection of right-of-ways with railroads. See Traffic Visibility 

Triangle. 

 

Warehouse - A building or part of a building used for the storage and distribution of goods, 

wares, merchandise, substances, or articles and may include facilities for a wholesale or retail 

commercial outlet, but shall not include facilities for a truck or transport terminal or yard. 

 

WECS Total Height - shall mean the highest point, above ground level, reached by a rotor tip or 

any other part of the Small or Large Wind Energy Conversion System. 

WECS Tower - shall mean the vertical structures that support the electrical, rotor blades, or 

meteorological equipment of the Small or Large Wind Energy Conversion System. 

Wholesale - The sale of commodities to retailers or jobbers and shall include the sale of 

commodities for the purpose of carrying on any trade or business even if the said trade of 

business is the consumer or end user of the commodity. 

 

Wind Energy System - A structure or place, such as a wind turbine, designed and constructed to 

generate power for distribution to off-site users. This definition shall not include private facilities 

with a single tower or turbine less than seventy-five (75) feet in height and not designed for 

distribution of power to off-site users. 



38 

 

Wind Turbines - shall mean any piece of electrical generating equipment that converts the kinetic 

energy of blowing wind into electrical energy using airfoils or similar devices to capture the 

wind. 

Windbreak - Any non-opaque manmade structure constructed of any material and erected 

adjacent to an animal feeding, calving, or other such lot of which its principal use is that of 

protecting livestock from the effects of the wind. 

 

Written certification - a document dated and signed by a practitioner, stating that in the 

practitioner’s professional opinion the patient is likely to receive therapeutic or palliative benefit 

from the medical use of cannabis to treat or alleviate the patient’s debilitating medical condition 

or symptom associated with the debilitating medical condition. This document shall affirm that it 

is made in the course of a bona fide practitioner-patient relationship and shall specify the 

qualifying patient’s debilitating medical condition. (Amended November 4, 2021) 

Yard - An open space at grade, other than a court or plaza, between a structure and the adjacent 

lot lines, unoccupied and unobstructed by any portion of a structure from the ground upward. 

 

Yard, Front - An open, unoccupied space on a lot facing a right-of-way and extending across the 

front of the lot between the side lot lines; measured from the road right-of-way to the structure. 

 

Yard, Rear - An open, unoccupied space extending across the rear of a lot from one side lot line 

to the other side lot line. 

 

Yard, Side - An open, unoccupied space on the same lot with a building situated between the 

building and sideline of the lot and extending through from the front yard to the required rear 

yard. Any lot line not the rear line or a front line shall be deemed a sideline. 

 

Zero Lot-Line - A common lot line on which a wall of a structure may be constructed. 

(Amended October 18, 2022) 

 

Zero Lot-Line Structure - A multi-family dwelling located on a single lot line that is (a) 

constructed as one (1) unit, (b) but is intended to be sold as separate sites and (c) otherwise meets 

all requirements of the zone in which it is located. (Amended October 18, 2022) 

 

Zone - An area within which, in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance, certain uses of 

lands, buildings, and structures are permitted and certain others are prohibited, where yards and 

other open spaces are required, where lot areas, building height limits, and other requirements 

are established, all of the foregoing being identical for the zone and district in which they apply. 

 

Zoning Administrator - An official of the County appointed by the Chairman and confirmed by 

the County Commission, charged with the responsibility of administrating this ordinance. 

 

 

 



39 

 

ARTICLE 26 

WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (WECS) 

 

Section 2601   Definitions  

For the purposed of this ordinance, certain terms and words are hereby defined. 

Aggregate Project shall mean projects that are developed and operated in a coordinated 

fashion, but which have multiple entities separately owning one or more of the individual 

WECS within the larger project. Associated infrastructure such as power lines and 

transformers that service the facility may be owned by a separate entity but are also part 

of the aggregate project. 

Commercial WECS shall mean a wind energy conversion system of equal to or greater 

than 100kWh in total nameplate generating capacity. 

Construction means any clearing of land, excavation, or other action that would adversely 

affect the natural environment of the site or route but does not include changes needed for 

temporary use of sites or routes for non-utility purposes, or uses in securing survey or 

geological data, including necessary borings to ascertain foundation conditions. 

Fall Zone shall mean the area, defined as the furthest distance from the tower base, in 

which a tower will collapse in the event of a structural failure.  

Feeder Line shall mean any power line that carries electrical power from one or more 

wind turbines or individual transformers associated with individual wind turbines to the 

point of interconnection with the project distribution system, in the case of 

interconnection with the high voltage transmission systems the point of interconnection 

shall be the substation serving the wind energy conversion system. 

High voltage transmission line means a conductor of electric energy and associated 

facilities. 

Large electric power facilities mean high voltage transmission lines. 

Meteorological Tower shall mean, for purposes of this regulation, a tower which is 

erected primarily to measure wind speed and directions plus other data relevant to sitting 

a Wind Energy Conversion System. Meteorological towers do not include towers and 

equipment used by airports, the South Dakota Department of Transportation, or other 

applications to monitor weather conditions. 



40 

 

Person shall mean an individual, partnership, joint venture, private, or public corporation, 

association, firm, public service company, cooperative, political subdivision, municipal 

corporation, government agency, public utility district, or any other entity, public or 

private, however organized. 

Route means the location of a high voltage transmission line between two end-points. 

The route may have a variable width of up to 1.25 miles. 

Rotor Diameter shall mean the diameter of the circle described by the moving rotor 

blades. 

Rotor Radius shall mean one-half (½) the diameter of the moving rotor blade.    

Substations shall mean any electrical facility to convert electricity produced by wind 

turbines to a voltage greater than 35,000 KV for interconnection with high voltage 

transmission lines.  

WECS Total Height shall mean the highest point, above ground level, reached by a rotor 

tip or any other part of the Wind Energy Conversion System. 

WECS Tower shall mean the vertical structures that support the electrical, rotor blades, 

or meteorological equipment. 

Transmission Line shall mean the electrical power lines that carry voltages of at least 

69,000 volts (69 KV), and are primarily used to carry electric energy over medium to 

long distances rather than directly interconnecting and supplying electric energy to retail 

customers. 

Utility shall mean any entity engaged in this state in the generation, transmission or 

distribution of electric energy including, but not limited to, a private investor owned 

utility, cooperatively owned utility, and a public or municipally utility. 

Small Wind Energy Conversion System shall mean a wind energy conversion system 

consisting of a Horizontal-Axis Wind Turbine (HAWT), a Vertical-Axis Wind Turbine 

(VAWT), which may include a tower, and associated control or conversion electronics, 

which has a rated capacity of not more than 100 kWh and, which is primarily intended to 

reduce on-site consumption of utility power. 

Large Wind Energy Conversion System (WECS) shall mean an electrical generating 

facility comprised of one or more wind turbines and accessory facilities, including but not 

limited to: power lines, transformers, substations and meteorological towers that operate 

by converting the kinetic energy of wind into electrical energy. The energy may be used 

on-site or distributed into the electrical grid. 



41 

 

Wind Turbines shall mean any piece of electrical generating equipment that converts the 

kinetic energy of blowing wind into electrical energy using airfoils or similar devices to 

capture the wind. 

Small Wind Energy Conversion Systems (WECS) 

Section 2602 Intent 

It is the intent of this Section to promote the safe, effective, and efficient use of small 

wind energy conversion systems installed to reduce the on-site consumption of utility 

supplied electricity. 

Section 2603 Requirements 

Small wind energy conversion systems shall be considered as a Conditional Use Permit 

with an exemption provided in 1. i. in this ordinance. 

1. Requirements as set forth below shall be met: 

a. The maximum height of a rooftop mounted WECS, including the turbine 

blades, is ten (10) feet in height above the roof line of the structure.  

b. High Density Rural Residential District (R3) shall allow rooftop mounted 

WECS only. 

c. Moderate Density Rural Residential District (R2) shall allow rooftop 

mounted WECS only. 

d. Low Density Rural Residential District (R1), meeting (or exceeding) 

district requirement of five (5) acre lots, shall have total WECS height 

limit of thirty (30) feet. 

e. Rural Transitional District (RT) shall allow rooftop mounted WECS only. 

f. Planned Unit Development (PUD), meeting (or exceeding) requirement of 

five (5) acre lots, shall have total WECS height limit of thirty (30) feet. 

g. Lakeside Commercial Districts (LC) shall allow rooftop mounted WECS 

only. 

h. Commercial District meeting (or exceeding) district requirements of one 

(1) acre shall have total WECS height limit of thirty (30) feet with 

exception provided in Section 2605. 

i. The Agriculture District (AG) may qualify for an administrative building 

permit meeting (or exceeding) district requirement of twenty (20) acre lots 

and shall have total WECS height limit less than eighty (80) feet.  All 

other WECS in Agriculture District are provided in Section 2605. 

 

2. Setbacks 

a. No part of the wind system structure may be sited closer to structures, 

property lines and/or right(s)-of-way than 1.1 times the height of the wind 

turbine measured from the ground surface to the tip of the blade when in a 

fully vertical position. 



42 

 

3. Access 

a. Tower climbing apparatus located no closer than eight (8) feet from the 

ground 

b. A locking anti-climb device installed on the tower 

c. Enclosure of the tower by a fence at least six (6) feet high with locking 

portals, when climbing apparatus is less than eight (8) feet from the 

ground. 

 

4. Noise 

a. Small wind energy systems shall not exceed 55 dBA, measured at the 

closest point on the closest property line from the base of the system.  

b. The noise level may be exceeded during short-term events such as utility 

outages and/or severe windstorms. 

 

5. Approved Wind Turbines 

a. Small wind turbines, horizontal-axis wind turbine (HAWT) or a vertical-

axis wind turbine (VAWT), must have been approved under the Emerging 

Technologies program of the California Energy Commission or any other 

small wind certification program recognized by the American Wind 

Energy Association. 

 

6. Compliance with Building and Zoning Codes 

a. Applications for small wind energy conversion systems shall be 

accompanied by standard drawings of the wind turbine structure, including 

the tower base, footings and required setbacks.  

b. An engineering analysis of the tower showing compliance with all 

electrical codes of the State of South Dakota certified by a professional 

engineer licensed and certified in South Dakota shall also be submitted. 

c. The manufacturer frequently supplies this analysis. 

 

7. Compliance with FAA Regulations 

a. Small wind energy conversion systems must comply with applicable FAA 

regulations, including any necessary approvals for installations close to 

airports. 

 

8. Compliance with National Electrical Code 

a. Permit applications for small wind energy conversion systems shall be 

accompanied by a line drawing of the electrical components in sufficient 

detail to allow for a determination that the manner of installation conforms 

to the National Electrical Code. 

b. The manufacturer frequently supplies this analysis. 

 

 

 

 



43 

 

9. Utility Notification 

a. No small wind energy conversion system shall be installed until evidence 

has been given that the utility company has been informed of the 

customer’s intent to install an interconnected customer-owned generator,  

b. Off-grid systems shall be exempt from this requirement. 

 

10. Warning information 

a. Information related to the maximum power output, nominal voltage and 

maximum current and emergency shut-down procedures for the WECS 

shall be posted near the base of the tower in a visible location. 

 

11. Site Reclamation 

a. When a small WECS has been condemned or has fallen into obvious 

disrepair, or has become a violation of some other local, state, or federal 

law and/or is no longer able to operate or upon earlier termination of 

operation of the small WECS, the permittee shall have the obligation, at 

the permittee’s sole expense, to dismantle and remove from the site all 

towers, turbine generators, transformers, overhead and underground 

cables, foundations, buildings and ancillary equipment within 120 days 

upon notification from the County. 

b. If deemed appropriate, the County may stipulate through the conditional 

use that the small WECS shall be removed at the owner’s expense, upon 

the rezoning of the subject property to a zoning classification in which 

wind energy systems are not allowed as either a permitted use or a 

conditional use. 

 

12. Federal and State Requirements 

a. All WECS shall meet or exceed standards and regulations of the Federal 

Aviation Administration and South Dakota State Statutes and any other 

agency of federal or state government with the authority to regulate 

WECS. 

 

Large or Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems (WECS) 

Section 2604    Intent 

It is the intent of this Section to promote the safe, effective, and efficient use of 

commercial/utility grade wind energy systems within Yankton County. 

Section 2605    Requirements 

Large or Commercial wind energy conversion systems shall be permitted as a 

Conditional Use Permit in the Agricultural District (AG) and in the Commercial District 

(C) only.  Certain requirements as set forth below shall be met: 

 



44 

 

1. Applicability 

The requirements of these regulations shall apply to all WECS facilities, including 

private facilities, with a single tower height of greater than eighty (80) feet, rated 

capacity of more than 100 kWh and used primarily for off-site consumption of 

power. 

2.   Federal and State Requirements 

All WECS shall meet or exceed standards and regulations of the Federal Aviation 

Administration and South Dakota State Statutes and any other agency of federal or 

state government with the authority to regulate WECS. 

3. Mitigation Measures 

a. Site Clearance. The permittees shall disturb or clear the site only to the 

extent necessary to assure suitable access for construction, safe operation, 

and maintenance of the WECS. 

b. Topsoil Protection. The permittees shall implement measures to protect 

and segregate topsoil from subsoil in cultivated lands unless otherwise 

negotiated with the affected landowner. 

c. Compaction. The permittees shall implement measures to minimize 

compaction of all lands during all phases of the project’s life and shall 

confine compaction to as small an area as practicable. 

d. Livestock Protection. The permittees shall take precautions to protect 

livestock during all phases of the project’s life. 

e. Fences. The permittees shall promptly replace or repair all fences and 

gates removed or damaged during all phases of the project’s life unless 

otherwise negotiated with the affected landowner. 

f. Roads: Public Roads. Prior to commencement of construction, the 

permittees shall identify all state, county or township “haul roads” that 

will be used for the WECS project and shall notify the state, county or 

township governing body having jurisdiction over the roads to determine 

if the haul roads identified are acceptable. The governmental body shall be 

given adequate time to inspect the haul roads prior to use of these haul 

roads. Where practical, existing roadways shall be used for all activities 

associated with the WECS. Where practical, all-weather roads shall be 

used to deliver concrete, turbines, towers, assemble nacelles and all other 

heavy components to and from the turbine sites. The permittees shall, 

prior to the use of approved haul roads, make satisfactory written 

agreements with the appropriate state, county or township governmental 

body having jurisdiction over approved haul roads for construction of the 

WECS for the maintenance and repair of the haul roads that will be 

subject to extra wear and tear due to transportation of equipment and 

WECS components. The permittees shall provide the County Zoning 

Administrator with such written agreements. 

 



45 

 

Turbine Access Roads. Construction of turbine access roads shall be 

minimized. Access roads shall be low profile roads so that farming 

equipment can cross them and shall be covered with material that meets or 

exceeds South Dakota D.O.T. specifications for aggregate base course. 

When access roads are constructed across streams and drainage-ways, the 

access roads shall be designed in a manner so runoff from the upper 

portions of the watershed can readily flow to the lower portion of the 

watershed. 

 Private Roads. The permittees shall promptly repair private roads or lanes 

damaged when moving equipment or when obtaining access to the site, unless 

otherwise negotiated with the affected landowner. 

Control of Dust. The permittees shall utilize all reasonable measures and practices 

of construction to control dust. 

4. Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Plan 

The permittees shall develop a Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Plan prior to 

construction and submit the plan to the County Zoning Administrator. The Soil 

Erosion and Sediment Control Plan shall address the erosion control measures for 

each project phase, and shall at a minimum identify plans for grading, 

construction and drainage of roads and turbine pads; necessary soil information; 

detailed design features to maintain downstream water quality; a comprehensive 

re-vegetation plan to maintain and ensure adequate erosion control and slope 

stability and to restore the site after temporary project activities; and measures to 

minimize the area of surface disturbance. Other practices shall include containing 

excavated material, protecting exposed soil, stabilizing restored material, and 

removal of silt fences or barriers when the area is stabilized. The plan shall 

identify methods for disposal or storage of excavated material. A storm water 

runoff permit, if required, shall be obtained from the South Dakota D.E.N.R. 

5. Setbacks 

a. Wind turbines shall meet the following minimum spacing requirements. 

i. Distance from existing off-site residences, business and public 

buildings shall be one thousand three hundred and twenty feet (1,320) 

feet.  Distance from on-site or lessor’s residence shall be one thousand 

(1,000) feet.  

ii. Distance from right-of-way (ROW) of public roads shall be 500 feet or 

one point one (1.1) times the height of the wind turbines depending 

upon which is greater, measured from the ground surface to the tip of 

the blade when in a fully vertical position. 

iii. Distance from any property line shall be 500 feet or one point one (1.1) 

times the height of the wind turbines depending upon which is greater, 

measured from the ground surface to the tip of the blade when in a fully 



46 

 

vertical position unless wind easement has been obtained from 

adjoining property owner.  

 

6. Electromagnetic Interference 

The permittees shall not operate the WECS so as to cause microwave, television, 

radio, or navigation interference contrary to Federal Communications 

Commission (FCC) regulations or other law. In the event such interference is 

caused by the WECS or its operation, the permittees shall take the measures 

necessary to correct the problem. 

7. Lighting  

Towers shall be marked as required by the Federal Aviation Administration 

(FAA). There shall be no lights on the towers other than what is required by the 

FAA. This restriction shall not apply to infrared heating devices used to protect 

the monitoring equipment. 

8. Access 

a. Tower climbing apparatus shall be located no closer than twelve (12) feet 

from the ground unless locking anti-climb device is installed on the tower. 

 

9. Turbine Spacing 

The turbines shall be spaced no closer than three (3)-rotor diameters (RD) 

measurement of blades tip to tip. If required during final micro siting of the 

turbines to account for topographic conditions, up to 10 percent of the towers may 

be sited closer than the above spacing but the permittees shall minimize the need 

to site the turbines closer. 

10. Footprint Minimization  

The permittees shall design and construct the WECS to minimize the amount of 

land that is impacted by the WECS. Associated facilities in the vicinity of turbines 

such as electrical/electronic boxes, transformers, and monitoring systems shall to 

the greatest extent feasible be mounted on the foundations used for turbine towers 

or inside the towers unless otherwise negotiated with the affected landowner. 

11. Electrical Cables 

The permittees shall place electrical lines, known as collectors and 

communication cables underground when located on private property. Collectors 

and cables shall also be placed within or immediately adjacent to the land 

necessary for turbine access roads unless otherwise negotiated with the affected 

landowner. This paragraph does not apply to feeder lines. 

 



47 

 

12. Feeder Lines 

The permittees shall place overhead electric lines, known as feeders, on public 

rights-of-way if a public right-of-way exists.  Changes in routes may be made as 

long as feeders remain on public rights-of-way and approval has been obtained 

from the governmental unit responsible for the affected right-of-ways.  If no 

public right-of-way exists, the permittees may place feeders on private property. 

When placing feeders on private property, the permittees shall place the feeder in 

accordance with the easement negotiated with the affected landowner.  The  

permittees shall submit the site plan and engineering drawings for the feeder lines 

before commencing construction. 

13. Decommissioning/Restoration/Abandonment/Removal Bond 

a. Decommissioning Plan   

Within 120 days of completion of construction, the permittees shall submit to the 

County Zoning Administrator a decommissioning plan describing the manner in 

which the permittees anticipate decommissioning the project in accordance with 

the requirements of paragraph (b) below.  The plan shall include a description of 

the manner in which the permittees will ensure that it has the financial capability 

to carry out these restoration requirements when they go into effect.  The 

permittees shall ensure that it carries out its obligation to provide for the resources 

necessary to fulfill these requirements.  The County Zoning Administrator may at 

any time request the permittees to file a report with the County Zoning 

Administrator describing how the permittees are fulfilling this obligation. 

b. Site Restoration  

Upon expiration of this permit, or upon earlier termination of operation of the 

WECS, the permittees shall have the obligation to dismantle and remove from the 

site all towers, turbine generators, transformers, overhead and underground 

cables, foundations, buildings, and ancillary equipment to a depth of four feet.  To 

the extent possible, the permittees shall restore and reclaim the site to its pre-

project topography and topsoil quality.  All access roads shall be removed unless 

written approval is given by the affected landowner requesting that one or more 

roads, or portions thereof, be retained.  Any agreement for removal to a lesser 

depth or for no removal shall be recorded with the County Zoning Administrator 

which shall show the locations of all such foundations.  All such agreements 

between the permittees and the affected landowner shall be submitted to the 

County Zoning Administrator prior to completion of restoration activities.  The 

site shall be restored in accordance with the requirements of this condition within 

eighteen (18) months after expiration. 

 



48 

 

c. Abandoned Turbines  

The permittees shall advise the County Zoning Administrator of any turbines that 

are abandoned prior to termination of operation of the WECS.  The County 

Zoning Administrator may require the permittees to decommission any 

abandoned turbine. 

d. Performance Security 

The Applicant and the owner of record of any proposed large or commercial 

Wind Energy Conversion System property site shall, at its cost and expense, be 

jointly required to execute and file with the County a bond, or other form of 

security acceptable to the County as to type of security and the form and manner 

of execution, in an amount of at least two (2) percent of the cost of the aggregate 

project for a WECS and with such sureties as are deemed sufficient by the County 

to assure the faithful performance of the terms and conditions of this Ordinance 

and conditions of any Conditional Use Permit issued pursuant to this Ordinance.  

The full amount of the bond or security shall remain in full force and effect 

throughout the term of the Conditional Use Permit and/or until any necessary site 

restoration is completed to restore the site pursuant to 9(a) (above.) 

14. Height from Ground Surface 

The minimum height of blade tips, measured from ground surface when a blade is 

in fully vertical position, shall be twenty-five (25) feet. 

15. Towers 

a. Color and Finish. The finish of the exterior surface shall be non-reflective 

and non-gloss. 

b. All towers shall be singular tubular design. 

 

16. Noise 

Noise level shall not exceed 60 dB, including constructive interference effects, 

measured at the closest point on the closest property line from the base of the 

system.  

17. Permit Expiration  

All permits shall become void if no substantial construction has been completed 

within three (3) years of issuance. 

18. Required Information for Permit 

a. Boundaries of the site proposed for WECS and associated facilities on 

United States Geological Survey Map or other map as appropriate. 

b. Map of easements for WECS. 

c. Map of occupied residential structures, businesses, and public buildings 

within a 2-mile radius. 



49 

 

d. Map of sites for WECS, access roads and utility lines. 

e. Location of other WECS in general area. 

f. Project schedule. 

g. Mitigation measures. 

 

19. Technical Issues and Expert Review  

WECS and equipment facilities may involve complex technical issues that require 

review and input that is beyond the expertise of County staff.  The Zoning 

Administrator, Planning Commission, Board of Adjustment, and/or the County 

Commission may require the applicant to pay reasonable costs for a third party 

technical study of a proposed facility.  Selection of expert(s) to review will be at 

the sole discretion of the County. 

Section 2601 Purpose 

Purpose - It is the purpose of this Article to outline the requirements Yankton County has for 

wind energy conversion systems (WECS). 

Small Wind Energy Conversion Systems (SWECS) 

Section 2603 Intent 

It is the intent of this Section to promote the safe, effective, and efficient use of small wind 

energy conversion systems (SWECS) installed to reduce the on-site consumption of utility 

supplied electricity. 

Section 2605 Performance Standards  

SWECS shall be considered as a Conditional Use Permit. with an exemption provided in the 

Agricultural District, noted in A(i) below. The following provisions shall apply to all SWECS 

less than fifty (50) kilowatts alternating current (AC). 

Design Requirements. 

 

A. Height and zoning restrictions as set forth below shall be met: 

a. The maximum height of a rooftop mounted SWECS, including the turbine blades, 

is ten (10) feet in height above the roof line of the structure. 

b. High Density Rural Residential District (R3) shall allow rooftop mounted 

SWECS only. 

c. Moderate Density Rural Residential District (R2) shall allow rooftop mounted 

SWECS only. 

d. Low Density Rural Residential District (R1), meeting (or exceeding) district 

requirement of five (5) acre lots, shall have total SWECS height limit of forty (40) 

feet. 

e. Rural Transitional District (RT) shall allow rooftop mounted SWECS only. 

f. Planned Unit Development (PUD), meeting (or exceeding) requirement of five 



50 

 

(5) acre lots, shall have total SWECS height limit of forty (40) feet. 

g. Lakeside Commercial Districts (LC) shall allow rooftop mounted SWECS only. 

h. Commercial District meeting (or exceeding) district requirements of one (1) acre 

shall have total SWECS height limit of forty (40) feet with exception provided in 

Section 2605. 

i. The Agricultural District (AG) qualifies for an administrative building 

conditional use permit.  The total SWECS height limit is thirty-five (35) feet for 

lots up to five (5) acres.  Lots greater than five (5) acres receive an additional six 

and one-half (6.5) feet for each additional acre over five (5) acres not to exceed a 

total SWECS height limit of one hundred thirty-five (135) feet.  

 

B. Setbacks 

No part of the wind system structure may be sited closer to property lines and/or 

right(s)-of-way than 1.1 times the height of the wind turbine measured from the 

ground surface to the tip of the blade when in a fully vertical position. 

C. Access 

Enclosure of the tower by a fence at least six (6) feet high with locking portals, 

when climbing apparatus is less than eight (8) feet from the ground. 

D. Noise 

a. Noise level shall not exceed forty-five (45) dBA, including constructive 

interference effects, measured at the closest point on the closest non-participating 

property line from the base of the system. The noise level shall not exceed 35 

dBA at the nearest non-participating residence. 

b. The noise level may be exceeded during short-term events such as utility outages 

and/or severe windstorms. 

E. Compliance with Building and Zoning Codes 

Applications for small wind energy conversion systems shall be accompanied by 

standard manufacturers’ drawings of the wind turbine structure, including the 

tower base, footings and required setbacks. 

F. Compliance with Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Regulations 

Small wind energy conversion systems must comply with applicable FAA 

regulations, including any necessary approvals for installations close to airports. 

G. Compliance with National Electrical Code 

All small wind energy systems shall comply with requirements per the current 

adopted edition of the National Electric Code (NEC). 

H. Utility Notification 

a. No small wind energy conversion system shall be installed until evidence has 

been given that the utility company has been informed of the customer’s intent to 

install an interconnected customer-owned generator. 

b. Off-grid systems shall be exempt from this requirement. 

I. Warning Information 

Information related to the maximum power output, nominal voltage and 

maximum current and emergency shut-down procedures for the SWECS shall be 

posted near the base of the tower in a visible location. 

 



51 

 

J. Site Reclamation 

a. When a SWECS has been condemned or has fallen into obvious disrepair or has 

become a violation of some other local, state, or federal law and/or is no longer 

able to operate, the permittee shall have the obligation, at the permittee’s sole 

expense, to dismantle and remove from the site all towers within 120 days upon 

notification from the County. 

b. If deemed appropriate, the County may stipulate through the conditional use that 

the small SWECS shall be removed at the owner’s expense, upon the rezoning of 

the subject property to a zoning classification in which wind energy systems are 

not allowed as either a permitted use or a conditional use. 

 

Conditional Use Permit Application Requirements for SWECS.   

The following information shall be submitted for the consideration of a SWECS Conditional Use 

Permit: 

A. The applicants’, owners’, managers’, management company’s or similar entities’ name, 

address and telephone number. 

B. A legal description of the site(s) and proposed 911 address(es) for the location(s). 

C. Site diagram(s) depicting: 

a. boundary of entire area included in permit, showing project acreage and property 

lines 

b. location of existing area structures and their distances from the project to illustrate 

all Facility Setback Requirements are met 

c. schematic location of wind towers, collector and feeder lines, electrical 

transmission lines and electrical interconnection points with the utility grid 

d. proposed property and ROW setbacks of all structures from the exterior 

boundaries 

e. fencing, lighting and signage locations 

f. location and purpose of any existing underground pipelines and utility easements 

D. Federal Aviation Administration requirements, if applicable 

E. Utility notification confirmation 

Such other information is deemed relevant and necessary by the Zoning Administrator. 

 

Large Wind Energy Conversion Systems (LWECS) 

 

Section 2613 Intent 

It is the intent of this Section to promote the safe, effective, and efficient use of 

commercial/utility grade wind energy systems within Yankton County. 

Section 2615 Performance Standards  

Large wind energy conversion systems (LWECS) with a rated capacity of 50 kW or more and 

tied to the public electrical grid for off-site consumption of power shall be permitted as a 

Conditional Use Permit in the Agricultural District (AG) and in the Commercial District (C) 



52 

 

only.  Certain requirements as set forth below shall be met. 

Design Requirements. 

 

A. Federal and State Requirements 

All LWECS shall meet or exceed standards and regulations of the Federal 

Aviation Administration, South Dakota State Statutes and any other agency of 

federal or state government with the authority to regulate LWECS. 

B. Mitigation Measures 

a. Site Clearance. The permittees shall disturb or clear the site only to the extent 

necessary to assure suitable access for construction, safe operation, and 

maintenance of the LWECS. 

b. Soil erosion/sedimentation. The permittees shall develop a Soil Erosion and 

Sediment Control Plan prior to construction and submit the plan to the County 

Zoning Administrator. The Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Plan shall address 

the erosion control measures for each project phase and shall at a minimum 

identify plans for grading, construction and drainage of roads and turbine pads; 

necessary soil information; detailed design features to maintain downstream water 

quality; a comprehensive re-vegetation plan to maintain and ensure adequate 

erosion control and slope stability and to restore the site after temporary project 

activities; and measures to minimize the area of surface disturbance. Other 

practices shall include containing excavated material, protecting exposed soil, 

stabilizing restored material, and removal of silt fences or barriers when the area 

is stabilized. The plan shall identify methods for disposal or storage of excavated 

material. A storm water runoff permit, if required, shall be obtained from the 

South Dakota D.A.N.R. All construction roadwork and site development work 

must meet national pollutant discharge elimination system (NPDES) permit 

requirements. 

c. Compaction. The permittees shall implement measures to minimize compaction 

of all lands during all phases of the project’s life and shall confine compaction to 

as small an area as practicable. 

d. Livestock Protection. The permittees shall take precautions to protect livestock 

during all phases of the project’s life. 

e. Fences. The permittees shall promptly replace or repair all fences and gates 

removed or damaged during all phases of the project’s life unless otherwise 

negotiated with the affected landowner. 

f. Drain Tile. The permittees shall obtain maps of all known drain tile installations 

and, with the approval of the landowner, the permittees shall utilize construction 

methods that minimize the impacts to existing tile systems. The permittees are 

responsible for any damage. 

C. Lighting 

Towers shall be marked as required by the Federal Aviation Administration 

(FAA). There shall be no lights on the towers other than what is required by the 

FAA. This restriction shall not apply to infrared heating devices used to protect 

the monitoring equipment. The preferred manner of lighting is by means of an 

Aircraft Detection Lighting System (ADLS). Subject to FAA approval, applicants 



53 

 

will install an ADLS within one (1) year of approval by FAA for the specified 

project. In the event FAA does not approve an ADLS system, the applicant will 

comply with all lighting and markings otherwise required by FAA. 

D. Access 

Tower climbing apparatus shall be located no closer than twelve (12) feet from 

the ground unless locking anti-climb device is installed on the tower. 

E. Tower Height Limit 

Total tower height shall not exceed six hundred (600) feet. 

F. Turbine Spacing 

The turbines shall be spaced no closer than three (3)-rotor diameters (RD) 

measurement of blades tip to tip. If required during final micro siting of the 

turbines to account for topographic conditions, up to 10 percent of the towers may 

be sited closer than the above spacing but the permittees shall minimize the need 

to site the turbines closer. 

G. Footprint Minimization 

The permittees shall design and construct the LWECS to minimize the amount of 

land that is impacted by the LWECS. Associated facilities in the vicinity of 

turbines such as electrical/electronic boxes, transformers, and monitoring systems 

shall to the greatest extent feasible be mounted on the foundations used for 

turbine towers or inside the towers unless otherwise negotiated with the affected 

landowner. 

H. Electrical Cables 

The permittees shall place electrical lines (at a minimum of three (3) feet deep or 

National Electrical Code whichever is greater,) known as collectors and 

communication cables underground when located on private property. Collectors 

and cables shall also be placed within or immediately adjacent to the land 

necessary for turbine access roads unless otherwise negotiated with the affected 

landowner. The depth must be approved by the landowner and location recorded 

on the filed easement.  This paragraph does not apply to feeder lines. 

I. Feeder Lines 

The permittees shall place overhead electric lines, known as feeders, on public 

rights-of-way if a public right-of-way exists.  Transmission lines may be placed 

per Board of Adjustment requirements which may include being buried. Changes 

in routes may be made as long as feeders remain on public rights-of-way and 

approval has been obtained from the governmental unit responsible for the 

affected right-of-ways.  If no public right-of-way exists, the permittees may place 

feeders on private property. When placing feeders on private property, the 

permittees shall place the feeder in accordance with the easement negotiated with 

the affected landowner.  The depth must be approved by the landowner and 

location recorded on the filed easement.  The permittees shall submit the site plan 

and engineering drawings for the feeder lines before commencing construction. 

Electric lines installed with LWES should not be subject to Eminent Domain. 

 

 

 



54 

 

J. Height from Ground Surface 

The minimum height of blade tips, measured from ground surface when a blade is 

in fully vertical position, shall be thirty (30) feet. 

K. Color and Finish 

The finish of the exterior surface shall be non-reflective and non-gloss. 

L. Noise 

Noise level shall not exceed 45 dBA, average A-weighted sound pressure 

including constructive interference effects, measured at the closest point on the 

closest non-participating property line from the base of the system. The noise 

level shall not exceed 35 40 dBA average A-weighted sound pressure at the 

nearest non-participating residence. 

 

Facility Setback Requirements.  

 

LWECS shall be located no closer than the following regulations prescribe. The applicant(s) of a 

LWECS may request the required setback to any category listed in the table below be lessened. 

This request shall only be approved after the applicant obtains signed waivers from all property 

owners within the setback distance. Any authorized person, business or governmental entity that 

is within the setback distance may waive the setback distance. The written waiver(s) shall be 

permanently attached to the approved conditional use permit and shall be filed as a permanent 

encumbrance against the legally described parcel(s) for which the waiver is granted. 

 

LWECS Facility Setback Chart Feet 

Residence, active church, 

business, schools and game 

production areas 

Participating 

1.5 times total height 

or 1000’ whichever 

is greater 

Non-participating 1 2 miles 

Municipalities  1 2 miles 

Lakes, Rivers and streams  1 mile 

Right-of-way line (ROW) 

 

1.5 times total height 

or 1000’ whichever 

is greater 

Property line 
Participating 

1.5 times total height 

or 1000’ whichever 

is greater 

Non-participating 1 2 miles 

Pipelines and Utility 

infrastructure except 

Transmission and Feeder 

Lines 

 1.5 times total height 

 

Agreements and Studies. 

A. Electromagnetic Interference 

The permittees shall not operate the LWECS so as to cause microwave, television, 



55 

 

radio, or navigation interference contrary to Federal Communications 

Commission (FCC) regulations or other law. In the event such interference is 

caused by the LWECS or its operation, the permittees shall take the measures 

necessary to correct the problem. 

B. Flicker Analysis 

A Flicker Analysis shall include the duration and location of flicker potential for 

all schools, churches, businesses and dwellings within a two (2) mile radius of 

each turbine within a project. The applicant shall provide a site map identifying 

the locations of shadow flicker that may be caused by the project and the expected 

durations of the flicker at these locations from sunrise to sunset over the course of 

a year. The analysis shall account for topography but not for obstacles such as 

accessory structures and trees. Flicker at any receptor shall not exceed thirty (30) 

hours per year within the analysis area. A Shadow Flicker Control System shall be 

installed upon all turbines which will cause a shadow effect upon an occupied 

residential dwelling. Exception:  The Board of Adjustment may allow for a 

greater amount of flicker than identified above if the participating or non-

participating landowners agree to said amount of flicker. If approved, such 

agreement shall be permanently attached to the approved conditional use permit 

and shall be filed as a permanent encumbrance against the legally described 

parcel(s) for which the waiver is granted. 

C. Endangered Species, Wetlands and Migration Analysis 

Applicant must submit an inventory of any existing endangered wildlife, flora and 

fauna species and biologically sensitive areas and meet all South Dakota 

Department of Agricultural and Natural Resources (SD DANR) and South Dakota 

Game, Fish and Parks (SD GF&P) requirements. Applicant must examine 

landscape levels of key wildlife habitats, migration corridors, 

staging/concentration areas and breeding/brood-rearing areas to help develop 

general siting strategies. Applicant must situate turbines, so they do not interfere 

with wildlife movement corridors and staging areas. 

D. Road Maintenance Agreements 

a. Public Roads. Prior to commencement of construction and for any future LWECS 

repairs, the permittees shall identify all state, county or township “haul roads” that 

will be used for the LWECS project and shall notify the state, county or township 

governing body having jurisdiction over the roads to determine if the haul roads 

identified are acceptable. The governmental body shall be given adequate time to 

inspect the haul roads prior to use of these haul roads. Where practical, existing 

roadways shall be used for all activities associated with the LWECS. Where 

practical, all-weather roads shall be used to deliver concrete, turbines, towers, 

assemble nacelles and all other heavy components to and from the turbine sites. 

The turn radius for vehicles must be a consideration. The permittees shall, prior to 

the conditional use permit and the use of approved haul roads, make satisfactory 

written agreements with the appropriate state, county or township governmental 

body having jurisdiction over approved haul roads for construction of the LWECS 

for the maintenance and repair of the haul roads that will be subject to extra wear 

and tear due to transportation of equipment and LWECS components. These 



56 

 

written agreements shall include all subcontractors. The permittees shall provide 

the Highway Superintendent and the County Zoning Administrator with such 

written agreements. 

b. Turbine Access Roads. Construction of turbine access roads shall be minimized. 

Access roads shall be low profile roads so that farming equipment can cross them 

and shall be covered with material that meets or exceeds South Dakota D.O.T. 

specifications for aggregate base course. When access roads are constructed 

across streams and drainage-ways, the access roads shall be designed in a manner 

so runoff from the upper portions of the watershed can readily flow to the lower 

portion of the watershed. The permittee(s) shall conduct hydrology studies and 

obtain all applicable permits including a Yankton County Drainage Board if 

required. 

c. Private Roads. The permittees shall obtain a written agreement for use of private 

roads following the guidelines for Public Roads above.  The permittees shall 

promptly repair private roads or lanes damaged when moving equipment or when 

obtaining access to the site, unless otherwise negotiated with the affected 

landowner. 

d. Control of Dust. The permittees shall utilize all reasonable measures and practices 

of construction to control dust including the use of dust palliatives. 

E. Power Purchase Agreement 

If the applicant has an executed power purchase agreement at the time of 

application, the applicant shall provide with the application either such agreement, 

or at the applicant’s discretion, an affidavit of non-confidential information 

regarding such agreement. 

F. Technical Issues and Expert Review 

LWECS and equipment facilities may involve complex technical issues that 

require review and input that is beyond the expertise of County staff.  The Zoning 

Administrator, Planning Commission, Board of Adjustment, and/or the County 

Commission may require the applicant to pay reasonable costs for a third-party 

technical study of a proposed facility.  Selection of expert(s) to review will be at 

the sole discretion of the County. 

G.   Noise Study Post Construction 

Requires wind farm developers to provide a post-construction certification that 

the project complies with the applicable codes, industry standards and ordinance 

requirements. A licensed, certified noise consultant shall conduct the study. and 

file with the Zoning Administrator. 

     

Decommissioning 

A. Plan:  All applicants for a conditional use permit shall provide, with their site plan 

submission, a decommissioning plan.  

a. The plan shall specify the procedure by which the applicant or its successor will 

remove all above-ground structures (including equipment, fencing, roads and 

foundations) down to a depth of no less than four (4) feet below grade and 

restore the area to its pre-construction condition. Removal of access roads, gates 

and fences will be at the discretion of the landowner. Any agreement for 



57 

 

removal to a lesser depth shall be filed as a permanent encumbrance. against the 

legally described parcel(s) for which the waiver is granted. 

b. Disposal of structure and/or foundations shall meet the provisions and 

regulations of the South Dakota Department of Agriculture and Natural 

Resources (SD DANR) or the United States Environmental Protection Agency. 

No disposal of tower or equipment allowed on-site, all metal electronic 

components, blades and similar equipment, must be properly recycled and 

shipped off-site to a landfill for proper disposal. 

c. The plan will set forth a timeline for completing decommissioning once it is 

commenced. 

 

B. Cost Estimate:   

a. The decommissioning plan shall include a decommissioning cost estimate 

prepared by a licensed professional engineer. The cost estimate will include a 

proposed timeline, not to exceed two (2) years, for completing the 

decommissioning process. 

b. The cost estimate shall provide the estimated cost of and schedule for 

decommissioning in accordance with the decommissioning plan and any other 

applicable conditions set by the County. 

c. The cost estimate and schedule above will be reviewed and analyzed by a third-

party engineer of the County’s choosing. The applicant or its successor shall 

compensate the County for any third-party review and analysis by an engineer 

of the initial cost estimate. 

d. The applicant or its successor shall update the decommissioning cost and 

schedule every five (5) years following approval of the conditional use permit 

and compensate the County for any review and analysis of each cost estimate 

and schedule revision by a licensed professional engineer. 

C. Financial Resources: 

a. Fifty percent (50%) of the estimated decommissioning cost will be placed into 

an escrow account held by the County at the beginning of the LWECS 

construction phase. The balance of the decommissioning cost estimate will be 

guaranteed with a surety bond so as to cover one hundred percent (100%) of the 

estimated decommission costs.in an interest-bearing account. 

b. Each year after the beginning of the LWECS construction phase, the applicant 

or its successor will contribute an additional five percent (5%) of the most 

current cost estimate to the escrow account, allowing for the reduction of the 

surety bond by the same percentage not the obligation, to undertake 

decommissioning financed by the financial agreement required for a conditional 

use permit. 

c.  Should the five-year (5) updated cost estimate increase, the applicant or its 

successor will increase the required escrow and surety bond combination as 

outlined above to meet the percentages for the given year. Amounts may be 

reduced, at the discretion of the County, Commission. if an updated cost 

estimate shows a decrease from the previous cost estimate. 

d. The County will credit interest to the escrow account. 



58 

 

D. Notice to County:  The applicant or its successor shall provide six (6) months’ written 

notice to the Zoning Administrator that it intends to commence the decommissioning 

process. 

E. Termination of Use:   

a. Decommissioning of turbines must occur in the event the LWECS is not in use 

for six (6) consecutive months with County Commission approval. At this time 

the applicant or its successor and/or landowner will have six (6) months to 

complete decommissioning in full accordance with the decommissioning plan.   

b. If the applicant or its successor and/or landowner fail to decommission the 

LWECS within six (6) months following commencement of decommissioning, 

the County has the right, but not the obligation, to undertake decommissioning 

financed by the financial agreement required for a conditional use permit. If the 

applicant or its successor, or the County incurs expenses in excess of the funds 

available for decommissioning, the County has the right to file a deficiency 

judgement against the land on which the LWECS stands. This deficiency 

judgment will be treated as a tax lien against the land and the landowner at the 

time decommissioning is complete. This tax lien will become due and payable in 

the year the deficiency is incurred by the County. 

c. The cCounty is granted the right to seek injunctive relief to effect and complete 

decommissioning, as well as to seek reimbursement from the applicant or its 

successor or the landowner for decommissioning costs against any real estate 

owned by applicant or its successor, or the landowner in which they have an 

interest and to take all steps allowed by law to enforce said lien. NOTE:  The 

landowner is ultimately responsible and could have a Lien placed on their 

property should the applicant or its successor fail to fully remunerate the costs of 

decommissioning.  

F. Liability insurance:  The applicant or its successor shall obtain and hold a general 

liability policy covering bodily injury and property damage and name Yankton County 

as an additional insured with limits of at least five million dollars ($5,000,000.00) per 

occurrence and ten million dollars ($10,000,000.00) in the aggregate with a deductible 

of no more than fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00). The applicant or its successor 

must provide proof of insurance to the Zoning Administration prior to construction. 
G. Indemnity:  Applicant or its successor shall hold the County and its officers and 

employees harmless from claims made by applicant or its successor and third parties for 

damages sustained or costs incurred resulting from said LWECS project.  The Applicant 

or its successor shall indemnify the County and its officers and employees for all costs, 

damages or expenses that the County may pay or incur in consequence of such claims, 

including attorney fees.  Third parties shall have no recourse against the County under 

this agreement. 

Conditional Use Permit Application Requirements.   

The following information shall be submitted for the consideration of a LWECS Conditional Use 

Permit: 

A. The applicants’, owners’, managers’, management company’s or similar entities’ name, 

address and telephone number. 



59 

 

B. A legal description of the site(s) and proposed 911 address(es) for the location(s). 

C. Site diagram(s) depicting: 

a. boundary of entire area included in permit, showing project acreage and property 

lines of all participating and non-participating landowners. 

b. location of existing area structures and their distances from the project to illustrate 

all Facility Setback Requirements are met 

c. points of access from public roadways 

d. topography with contours at intervals of two (2) feet showing surface water 

drainage patterns 

e. schematic location of wind towers, collector and feeder lines, electrical 

transmission lines and electrical interconnection points with the utility grid 

f. internal access and maintenance roads and other accessory structures associated 

with the LWECS 

g. proposed property and ROW setbacks of all structures from the exterior 

boundaries 

h. fencing, lighting and signage locations 

i. location and purpose of any existing underground pipelines, utility easements and 

farmland tile drainage systems 

D. Soil erosion and sediment control plan during construction  

E. Federal Aviation Administration requirements, if applicable 

F. Flicker Study Analysis 

G. Inventory of endangered species and wetlands 

H. A signed Roadway Maintenance and Haul Agreement with State, County, and/or 

Township authority approval 

I. Power Purchase Agreement 

J. Any third-party technical studies requested by the County. 

K. Noise study post construction (attached to the CUP after completed) 

L. Decommissioning plan 

M. Liability insurance policy 

N. Indemnification of County and its officers and employees 

 

Such other information is deemed relevant and necessary by the Zoning Administrator. 

 

Permit Expiration 

 

All permits shall become void if no substantial construction has been completed within three (3) 

two (2) years of issuance. 

 

Section 2917   Conditional Use Permit for an LWECS Not Permitted if Applicant Applies 

for the Permit for the Purpose of Selling, Transferring, or Brokering.  

The Board of Adjustment shall not grant a Conditional Use Permit for an LWECS if the 

applicant is applying for the Permit for the purpose of selling, transferring, or brokering the 

Permit.  

For the purposes of this Ordinance, any sale or transfer of the Permit from the applicant to any 



60 

 

other person or entity within five (5) years of the date that the Permit is issued shall be 

considered to be prima facie evidence that such Permit was obtained for the purpose of selling, 

transferring or brokering the Permit., except that no transfer to an affiliated or subsidiary entity 

of the applicant, or its parent company, or to a third party with which applicant has entered into a 

Power Purchase Agreement will be considered a sale or transfer of the permit under this section. 

The Board of Adjustment may hear and grant exceptions to this rule in the case of unforeseen 

life events that may force the sale of an operation. 

Any evidence that is presented by any person that any Building Permit and/or Conditional Use 

Permit for an LWECS was sought for the purpose of selling, transferring, or brokering the Permit 

shall be considered by the Zoning Administrator, Planning Commission, and/or Board of 

Adjustment in considering a new application for Conditional Use Permit. It may be the basis for 

a denial or revocation of the application, building permit, and/or a conditional use permit by the 

Board of Adjustment.  



Stacey R. Hennen 

Associate 

shcnncn@samplaw.com 
Samp La«1- tJ� 

�� �. SM¢ 
Counselor at Law 

21 August 2024 

210 I West 41 st Street 
Suite 2000 

P.O. Box495 
Sioux Falls, South Dakota 57 l O I 

t. (605) 339-1020
f. (605) 334-6630

Yankton County Commission 
321 W. 3rd St., Suite 100 
Yankton, SD 57078 

Re: Wind Turbine Proposal 

Dear County Commissioners: 

I have been asked to represent a group of persons who will not have wind turbines near 
their farms. 

These are basically disabled people and nonparticipating residents of Yankton County, 
who have demanded a 5-mile setback for turbines and cables and a ban on industrial wind. The 
proposed Article 6 of the Joint Task Force findings included protections for nonparticipating 
residents of Yankton County, including but not limited to: 

• 35 decibel maximum sound from wind turbines and operations at the project
property lines of the nonparticipating farmers;

• Two-mile setbacks for turbines and cables to property lines on participants or five
mile setback for nonparticipating taxpayers; and

• Tower heights limited to 600 feet.

People with disabilities or medical conditions include those with Parkinson's disease, 
traumatic brain injury (TBI), post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD), epilepsy, anxiety and mental 
illness. 

The setbacks are necessary as the repetitive mechanical sound vibrations from the wind 
towers, along with the flickering and blinking lights, could all exacerbate the medical conditions 
outlined or trigger symptoms. 

Setbacks and noise limits are required for them to continue enjoying use of their property 
and beloved spaces. It is my understanding from the initial research, to date that people of 
Yankton County, in overwhelming numbers, have made their requests for protection of 
nonparticipating residents. 



Samp Law Office 
Yankton County Commission 
Re: Wind Turbine Proposal 
21 August 2024 
Page 2 

I understand the Task Force thoroughly evaluated industrial wind. They deem 
protections for nonparticipating residents as essential. I view it as a property right guaranteed by 

the United States and South Dakota Constitutions. 

The Yankton County Planning and Zoning concurred and passed Article 26 with 
protections for nonparticipating residents. 

If the Yankton County Commissioners were to remove those protections, they could open 
the taxpayers to damages. The wind company is likely to face legal challenges on federal and 
state constitutional grounds of inverse condemnation, Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 

violations, and other federal laws. 

I intend to make a follow-up appearance on this, but would request your schedule so I can 

do so. 

Thank you. 

cc: Yankton Planning and Zoning 
321 W. 3rd St., Suite l 00 
Yankton, SD 57078 



Yankton County Commission                               08-20-24 
 Page 1 
 

 

YANKTON COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING 
August 20, 2024 

 
The regular meeting of the Yankton County Commission was called to order by Chairman 
John Marquardt at 6:00 p.m. on Tuesday, August 20, 2024.  
 
Roll call was taken with the following Commissioners present: Dan Klimisch, Don Kettering, 
Wanda Howey-Fox, Ryan Heine and John Marquardt.  
 
There were no conflicts of interest reported by Commissioners.  
 
Action 24270C: A motion was made by Kettering and seconded by Fox to approve the 
meeting agenda. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0. 
 
There were no public comments. Chairman Marquardt closed public comment. 
 
Executive Director Rebecca Meier gave an update on the Contact Center. Also speaking was 
Bob Standen, Contact Board Treasurer. In attendance were staff Kelli Stanage and Liz Lynch.  
 
Highway Superintendent Mike Sedlacek appeared for approval of a ROW/Utilities for Bridge 
Removal and authorization to advertise for sand seal on the bike path and new road broom. 
 
Action 24271Hwy: A motion was made by Klimisch and seconded by Kettering to approve  
ROW request. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0. 
  
Action 24272Hwy: A motion was made by Klimisch and seconded by Heine to authorize 
the Highway Superintendent to advertise for the repair of the bike path and new road broom. 
 
Emergency Management Director Paul Scherschligt appeared before the board for approval 
of the Local Emergency Management Performance Grant (LEMPG). 
 
Action 24273OEM: A motion was made by Fox and seconded by Kettering to approve the 
LEMPG Grant. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0. 
 
Action 24274Z: A motion was made by Klimisch and seconded by Fox to adopt the 
following resolution: Whereas it appears Jason Jaton, owner of record, has caused a Replat 
to be made of the following real property: Jaton Tract 1, NW1/4, NE1/4 Section 1-95N-54W. 
Hereafter to be known as Jaton Tract 2, NW1/4, NE1/4, Section 1-95N-54W hereinafter 
referred to as Marindahl Township, County of Yankton, S.D., and has submitted such plat to 
the Yankton County Planning Commission and Yankton County Commission for approval. 
Now therefore be it resolved that such plat has been executed according to law and 
conforms to all existing applicable zoning, subdivision, erosion and sediment control and 
same is hereby approved. County Auditor is hereby authorized and directed to endorse on 
such the proper resolution and certify the same. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0. 



Yankton County Commission                               08-20-24 
 Page 2 
 

 

 
Action 24275C: A motion was made by Fox and seconded by Klimisch to approve the July 
29, 2024 regular meeting minutes. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0. 
 
Action 24276C: A motion was made by Kettering and seconded by Fox to approve the 
August 6, 2024 budget hearing meeting minutes. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0. 
 
There was a first reading on Definitions and Article 26 Wind Energy Conversion Systems. 
Speaking at the hearing were: Lori Sletten, Sandra Bakeer, Barbara Steskal, Tina Lee, 
Rodney Sletten, Todd Christensen, Roger Hofer and Chris Ollson. 
 
Action 24277C: A motion was made by Klimisch and seconded by Fox to recess for five 
minutes. All present voted aye; motion carried. 5-0. 
 
Action 24278C: A motion was made by Klimisch and seconded by Kettering to reconvene. 
All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0. 
 
Action 24279C: A motion was made by Heine and seconded by Fox to change Property line 
for Non-Participating to 1 mile. Heine, Fox, Klimisch voted aye; Kettering and Marquardt 
voted nay; motion carried, 3-2. 
 
Action 24280C: A motion was made by Fox and seconded by Kettering to change all above-
ground structures to a depth of no less than four (4) feet below and encumbrance required. 
Fox, Kettering, Klimisch and Marquardt voted aye; Heine voted nay; motion carried, 4-1. 
 
Action 24281C: A motion was made by Heine and seconded by Fox to set Lakes and Rivers 
to 1 mile and omit streams. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0. 
 
Action 24282C: A motion was made by Fox and seconded by Klimisch to change 
Municipalities to a 1 mile set back. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0. 
 
Action 24283C: A motion was made by Klimisch and seconded by Heine to change 
residences, active churches, businesses, schools and game production areas to a 2-mile 
setback for Non-Participating. Klimisch and Heine voted aye; Fox, Kettering and Marquardt 
voted nay; motion failed, 2-3. 
 
Action 24284C: A motion was made by Klimisch and seconded by Heine to change 
residences, active churches, businesses, schools and game production areas to a 1-mile 
setback for Non-Participating. Roll call was taken with Kettering, Heine, Fox, Heine, Klimisch 
and Marquardt voting aye; motion carried, 5-0. 
  
Action 24285C: A motion was made by Heine and seconded by Fox to set all participating 
in setback chart to 1.5x height. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0. 
 



Yankton County Commission                               08-20-24 
 Page 3 
 

 

Action 24286C: A motion was made by Fox and seconded by Klimisch to change noise level 
to 40 dba to the closest non-participating resident. Fox, Klimisch, Kettering and Marquardt 
voting aye; Heine voted nay; motion carried, 4-1. 
 
Action 24287C: A motion was made by Klimisch and seconded by Heine to recess for five 
minutes. All present voted aye; motion carried. 5-0. 
 
Action 24288C: A motion was made by Fox and seconded by Kettering to reconvene. All 
present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0. 
 
Action 24289C: A motion was made by Heine and seconded by Fox to reopen discussion on 
noise level. Heine, Fox, Kettering and Marquardt voting aye; Klimisch voting nay; motion 
carried. 4-1. 
 
Action 24290C: A motion was made by Heine to change dba to dbc Motion died for lack of 
second. 
 
Action 24291C: A motion was made by Fox and seconded by Klimisch to approve the 
following claims: Commissioners: Clarity Telecom LLC (Utilities) $51.05; SD Association of 
County Commissioners (Travel) $800.00; Elections: Mcleod’s Printing & Office Supply 
(Supplies) $1,295.00; Qualified Presort Services (Supplies) $124.72; Court: Avera Sacred 
Heart Hospital (Lab) $2,236.00; Blackburn & Stevens Prof. LLC (Prof Services) $3,734.37; 
Certified Languages International (Prof Services) $140.25; Patricia LaCroix (Minor) $300.00; 
McClure & Hardy Attorney at Law (Prof Services) $3,331.50; Grand Jury (Juror Fees) 
$1,116.37; Lutheran Social Services (Prof Services) $357.50; Meierhenry Sargent, LLP (Prof 
Services) $14,355.16; Meierhenry Sargent, LLP (Neglected) $4,087.70; Evans Haigh & Arndt, 
LLP (Prof Services) $8,125.26; Confidential Investigative Services (Prof Services) $2,188.50; 
Kennedy Pier Loftus & Reynolds (Prof Services) $368.00; Department of Health (Lab) 
$1,935.00; Dean Schaefer (Prof Services) $316.00; Thomson Reuters-West (Supplies) 
$1,134.06; Yankton Daily Press & Dakotan (Other) $14.69; Auditor: Clarity Telecom, LLC 
(Utilities) $121.54; LEAF (Rentals) $183.35; Qualified Presort Services (Supplies) $255.96; SD 
Association of County Commissioners (Travel) $200.00; Thomson Reuters-West (Supplies) 
$177.27; Treasurer: Clarity Telecom, LLC (Utilities) $197.70; Qualified Presort Services 
(Supplies) $248.06; Data: Clarity Telecom, LLC (Utilities) $719.36; First Bankcard 
(Maintenance) $45.73; States Attorney: Century Business Products (Rentals) $230.99; 
Century Business Products (Maintenance) $114.01; Deb Lillie (Diversion) $250.00; Satellite 
Tracking of People (Diversion) $39.00; Culligan (Supplies) $52.25; Yankton Transit 
(Diversion) $85.00; Qualified Presort Services (Supplies) $72.70; Thomson Reuters-West 
(Supplies) $211.66; Government Center: Clarity Telecom, LLC (Utilities) $25.80; City of 
Yankton-Landfill (Maintenance) $12.00; JCL Solutions (Supplies) $233.72; Menards (Supplies) 
$189.05; MidAmerican Energy (Utilities) $503.34; Top Notch Window Cleaning (Prof Services) 
$982.35; Director of Equalization: Clarity Telecom, LLC (Utilities) $194.04; SDAAO 
(Travel) $325.00; Zach Waiter (Travel) $105.30; First Bankcard (Travel) $409.00; Microfilm 
Imaging Systems (Maintenance) $120.00; Qualified Presort Services (Supplies) $163.38; 



Yankton County Commission                               08-20-24 
 Page 4 
 

 

Steinley Real Estate Appraisals (Travel) $100.00; One Office Solution (Maintenance) $137.42; 
Register of Deeds: Clarity Telecom, LLC (Utilities) $172.19; Qualified Presort Services 
(Supplies) $62.72; Veterans Service Office: Clarity Telecom, LLC (Utilities) $25.80; LEAF 
(Rentals) $59.76; Safety Center Building: Clarity Telecom, LLC (Utilities) $82.99; City of 
Yankton (Dumpster Fees) $160.00; Cole Papers, Inc. (Supplies) $588.39; Menards (Supplies) 
$99.35; Menards (Maintenance) $60.45; SD Federal Property Agency (Supplies) $15.35; 
Sheriff: Hanson Briggs Specialty Advertising, Inc. (Supplies) $53.00; City of Yankton (Fuel) 
$3,036.94; AT & T Mobility (Maintenance Contract) $848.71; Artistic Custom Badges & Coins 
(Supplies) $427.10; Union County Sheriff’s Office (Ballistic Vests) $500.00; FedEx 
(Maintenance Contract) $18.07; Pennington County Jail (Travel) $144.22; Qualified Presort 
Services (Maintenance Contract) $180.06; One Office Solution (Maintenance Contract) 
$63.82; One Office Solution (Supplies) $546.27; County Jail: Avera McKennan Hospital (Prof 
Services) $1,215.59; Avera Sacred Heart Hospital (Prof Services) $5,484.86; Buhl’s Cleaners 
(Uniforms) $96.00; Scott Family Dentistry (Prof Services) $1,717.00; AARMS (Prof Services) 
$875.00; ICS Jail Supplies, Inc. (Supplies) $281.20; Culligan (Supplies) $55.00; Diamond 
Drugs (Prof Services) $7,094.93; McKesson Medical-Surgical (Prof Services) $90.64; Trinity 
Services Group (Food Services) $10,211.01; Avera Medical Group-Wilcoxen Eye Associates 
(Prof Services) $111.81; Spectacle Shop, LLC (Prof Services) $220.00; AT & T Mobility 
(Maintenance Contract) $204.41; Guardian Alliance Technologies (Maintenance Contract) 
$620.00; Avera Medical Group-Radiology (Prof Services) $215.63; Physicians Laboratory LLC 
(Prof Services) $44.16; Sapphire Heath, LLC (Prof Services) $1,100.00; Whitney Delforge 
(Prof Services) $1,537.50; Marathon Engineering Co. (Maintenance) $1,725.00; Harding 
Glass (Maintenance) $3,120.00; Jack’s Uniforms & Equipment (Uniforms) $93.44; JCL 
Solutions (Supplies) $600.46; Menards (Supplies) $142.35; PharmChem, Inc. (Prof Services) 
$2,636.19; Correctional Risk Services (Inmate Insurance) $2,951.20; Strachan Sales, Inc. 
(Maintenance) $672.03; One Office Solution (Maintenance Contract) $65.42; One Office 
Solution (Supplies) $315.93; Yankton Rexall Drug Co. (Prof Services) $1,143.20; Yankton 
Medical Clinic (Prof Services) $1,755.98; Coroner: Mark Nickles (Travel) $52.02; Yankton 
Area Search and Rescue: City of Yankton (Supplies) $144.99; First Bankcard (Supplies) 
$99.87; First Bankcard (Equipment Grant) $430.42; Poor Relief: Qualified Presort Services 
(Supplies) $103.84; Public Health Nurse: Clarity Telecom, LLC (Utilities) $202.39; 
Everbank, N.A. (Rentals) $58.51; Qualified Presort Services (Supplies) $28.09; Ambulance: 
Avera Sacred Heart Hospital (Supplies) $14.50; Clarity Telecom, LLC (Utilities) $143.01; 
Bound Tree Medical, LLC (Supplies) $1,245.97; City of Yankton (Supplies) $1,502.83; Cintas 
(Prof Services) $190.68; Ramkota Hotel & Conference Center (Travel) $116.00; Eric Van 
Dusen (Travel) $305.50; Waystar, Inc. (Prof Services) $643.78; Complete Wireless 
Technologies (Maintenance) $103.15; First Bankcard (Prof Services) $106.09; Floor Tec. 
(Maintenance) $223.36; Menards (Supplies) $33.40; Olson’s Pest Technicians (Maintenance) 
$119.00; Two Way Solutions, Inc. (Maintenance) $75.00; Yankton County EMS (Prof 
Services) $80.99; Mentally Handicapped: Avera Mckennan Hospital (Prof Services) 
$830.00; Avera Sacred Heart Hospital (Prof Services) $2,000.00; SD Achieve dba Lifescape 
(Misc.) $120.00; Mental Illness Board: Fox Law Firm, PLLC (Hearings) $1,099.00; Val 
Larson (Hearings) $21.00; Mark Katterhagen (Hearings) $21.00; Lewis & Clark Behavioral 
Health Services (Hearings) $1,278.00; Lincoln County Treasurer (Hearings) $2,035.59; Luci 



Yankton County Commission                               08-20-24 
 Page 5 
 

 

Lewno (Hearings) $390.00; Extension: Lisa Barger (4H) $40.00; Kathy Jorgensen (4H) 
$40.00; Morgan Korthals (4H) $40.00; Joan Miller (4H) $40.00; Bobbie Moehring (4H) 
$40.00; Barbra Law (4H) $40.00; Rose Hauger (4H) $40.00; Elijah Berry (4H) $40.00; Jackie 
Dickes (4H) $40.00; Paul Harnes (4H) $40.00; Taylor Arens (4H) $100.00; Bob Evans (4H) 
$40.00; Kaycee Michael (4H) $40.00; Grace Olinger (4H) $332.60; Addison Haase (4H) 
$160.00; Mackenzie Steinbrecher (4H) $40.00; Mike Bosma (4H) $108.14; Cheryl Havermann 
(4H) $40.00; Jolene Kralicek (4H) $40.00; Mary Kulish (4H) $40.00; Northwestern Energy 
(Utilities) $240.33; WNAX SAGA Communication (4H) $293.00; One Office Solution (Supplies) 
$163.80; Yankton County Leaders Association (Grounds Maintenance) $4,636.39; Yankton 
County Leads Association (4H) $228.00; Weed: Van Diest Supply Co. (Chemicals) $3,120.00; 
One Office Solution (Supplies) $15.68; Planning and Zoning: Clarity Telecom, LLC 
(Utilities) $51.05; First Bankcard (Travel) $924.88; Microfilm Imaging Systems (Maintenance) 
$70.00; Qualified Presort Services (Supplies) $15.70; SD Association of County 
Commissioners (Travel) $200.00; Highway: Bomgaars (Maintenance) $80.95; B-Y Water 
District (Utilities) $78.00; Butler Machinery Co. (Maintenance) $9,133.44; Clarity Telecom, 
LLC (Utilities) $101.00; Terry Schramm (Gravel) $48,100.00; NAPA Auto Parts of Yankton 
(Maintenance) $435.28; NAPA Auto Parts of Yankton (Supplies) $338.91; Knife River-South 
Dakota (Supplies) $19,248.55; Knife River-South Dakota (Asphalt Roads) $44,827.20; 
CenturyLink (Utilities) $72.54; Imeg Corp. (Annual Projects) $8,323.61; Imeg Corp. (Dust 
Control Application) $3,073.32; Diesel Machinery, Inc. (Rentals) $1,700.00; Gregg Davis 
Excavation (Emergencies) $350.00; Amazon Capital Services (Supplies) $98.98; New Century 
FS (Highway Fuel) $1,578.64; Marx Dust Control (Supplies) $4,320.00; Riverside Concrete 
(Supplies) $1,866.22; Dean Vaith (Supplies) $1,100.00; Fischer Gravel (Bridges) $3,525.00; I 
State Truck Center (Maintenance) $401.56; I State Truck Center (Supplies) $600.00; Jebro, 
Inc. (Annual Projects) $47,406.99; Janssen’s Garbage Service (Utilities) $60.00; MidAmerican 
Energy (Utilities) $24.99; Spencer Quarries, Inc. (Emergencies) $872.46; Spence Quarries, 
Inc. (Bridges) $2,572.85; Truck Trailer Sales & Service (Maintenance) $740.41; TrueNorth 
Steel (Supplies) $33,145.20; Tire Muffler Alignment (Maintenance) $93.55; One Office 
Solution (Supplies) $70.14; E911: Clarity Telecom, LLC (Utilities) $1,103.36; CenturyLink 
(Utilities) $166.40; Goldenwest Telecommunications (Utilities) $145.00; Emergency 
Management: First Bankcard (Supplies) $484.18; First Bankcard (Prof Services) $202.41; 
First Bankcard (OEM Diaster Plan) $58.87; Tabor Labor Coop. (Supplies) $264.73; 
Government Buildings: Culligan (Suppplies) $228.20; ARS, A Tecta America Co. 
(Maintenance) $960.00; 24/7: Precision Kiosk Technologies (Supplies) $1,350.00; Non-
Departmental: Yankton Rural Fire Prot. District (Yankton Rural Fire Refund) $36,471.49; 
Lesterville Fire (Lesterville Fire Refund) $5,314.90; Gayville First Responders (Gayville Fire 
Refund) $3,586.55; Irene Fire Department (Irene Fire Refund) $6,113.94; Menno Rural Fire 
(Menno Fire Refund) $1,860.29; Scotland Fire Department (Scotland Fire Refund) $390.23; 
Tabor Fire Department (Tabor Fire Refund) $1,677.77; Volin Fire Department (Volin Fire 
Refund) $3,097.47; Vibor Fire District (Viborg Fire Refund) $633.63; Yankton City Fire 
Department (Yankton City Fire Refund) $78,884.20; Satellite Tracking of People (Jail Tracking 
Monitors) $438.75; CAM Daily Refunds (Refund) $408.00; Byron Nogelmeier (Cam Daily 
Fees) $3,924.00; State Participation Fee (State Participation Refund) $28.00; Byron 



Yankton County Commission                               08-20-24 
 Page 6 
 

 

Nogelmeier (State Participation Fee) $406.00; General Fund $131,474.79; Road & Bridge 
$234,339.79; Emergency Management $1,010.19. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0. 
 

Action 24292A: A motion was made by Fox and seconded by Kettering to approve the  
2024 2nd Quarter MI Report. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0. 
 
Action 24293AUD: A motion was made by Klimisch and seconded by Fox to approve the 
Auditor’s Monthly Settlement with the Treasurer and Pooled Cash Report as of July 31, 2024 
showing Total Cash of $12,731,029.72. The General Fund was $9,215,793.61; Special Funds 
were $1,466,673.27; and Trust and Agency Funds were $2,048,562.84 adding to a Grand 
Total of General Ledger Cash and Investments of $12,731,029.72. A detailed report is on file 
with the County Auditor. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0. 
 
The board discussed the recording of commission meetings. Commissioner Heine suggested 
having a meeting next week on the recordings. 
 
Action 24294A: A motion was made by Klimisch and seconded by Kettering to approve the 
quote from RTI Riverside Technologies, Inc for the fire wall in the Government Center, for 
the amount of $26,687.53. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0. 
 
Commissioner updates: Veterans council meeting and agreement for Irene property was 
signed. 
 
Action 24295C: A motion was made by Fox and seconded by Klimisch to recess the regular 
session at 9:55 p.m. and convene in executive session to discuss Poor Relief Issues SDCL 1-
25-2 & 28-13. All present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0. 
 
Action 24296C: A motion was made by Fox and seconded by Heine to adjourn the 
executive session at 10:00 p.m. and reconvene in regular session. All present voted aye; 
motion carried, 5-0.  
 
Action 24297C: A motion was made by Fox and seconded by Heine to approve files of MI 
case CW MI 24-3-001, CW MI 24-3-002, CW MI 24-03-003, CW MI 24-3-004 CW in the 
amount of $2,000.00. All present voted aye; motion carried, 4-0. 
 
Action 24298C: A motion was made by Klimisch and seconded by Kettering to adjourn. All 
present voted aye; motion carried, 5-0. The next regular meeting will be Tuesday, September 
3, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Yankton County Commission                               08-20-24 
 Page 7 
 

 

 
John Marquardt, Chairman   
Yankton County Commission 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  
Patty Hojem 
Yankton County Auditor 



8/30/2024 12:26 PM 
VENDOR SET: 01 

DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER 

PACKET: 02398 
FUND 101 

DEPARTMENT: N/A 

VENDOR NAME 

Yankton County 
KASI'S CLAIMS - 09-03-202 

GENERAL FUND 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL 

ITEM II 

01-04616
01-18074

UNITED HEALTHCARE INSUR I-202408296140 
SECRETARY OF STATE I-202408286115 

G/L ACCOUNT 

101-4-34422 
101-4-34422 

101-4-34181 

DESCRIPTION 

AMBULANCE REFUND 
AMBULANCE REFUND 
ELECTION COPIES 

DEPARTMENT 0000 NON-DEPARTMENTAL 

PAGE: 1 

ITEMS PRINTED: PAID, UNPAID 

BANK: ALL 

CHECK# 

TOTAL: 

AMOUNT 

33.68 
2,694.29 

20.00 

2,747.97 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
------------------------------

----------------



e/1o/2024 12.26 PM

VENDOR SET: 01 YankEon CounEy
PACKET: 023 98 XASI'S CLAIMS
FUND : 101 GENERAL FTND
DEPARTMENT: 120 ELECTIONS

DIRECT PAYABI,ES DEPARTMENT PAYMENI REGISTER

o9-03 -202

PAGE: 2
ITEMS PRII{TED: PAID, UNPAID

BANKI AI,L

VENDOR NAME ITEM * G/I, ACCOT'NT DESCRIPTION CHECK* AMOIINT

01-03?03 KNOWiNK LLC |-20240A2A5L22 101-5-120-42200 PROF SERVTCES - ELECTTON 7,500.00
01-1501? QUALTFTED PRESORT SERVr r-202408296156 101-5-1,20-{2500 SUPPLTES - ELECTTON r22 24

01-21042 VERTZON r -20240a3062].4 101-5-120-42400 RENTAL - ELECTIoN 240.07

DEPARTMENT 120 ELECTIONS TOTAL: 7 ,9O2 -3t



8/30/2024 12:26 PM DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 3 

VENDOR SET: 01 Yankton county ITEMS PRINTED: PAID, UNPAID 

PACKET: 02398 KASI' S CLAIMS - 09-03-202 

FUND 101 GENERAL FUND 

DEPARTMENT: 130 COURT BANK: ALL 

VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION CHECK# AMOUNT 

====================================================================================================================================

01-01228 BLACKBURN & STEVENS PRO I-202408296146 101-5-130-42200 PROF SERVICES - COURT 875.36 

01-01228 BLACKBURN & STEVENS PRO I-202408296147 101-5-130-42200 PROF SERVICES - COURT 184.68 

101-5-130-42210 GRANO JURY - COURT 68.34 

01-03989 YOUNGBERG LAW, PROF. LL I-202408296145 101-5-130-42200 PROF SERVICES - COURT 2,767.00 

101-5-130-42210 GRANO JURY - COURT 51. 31 

101-5-130-42210 GRAND JURY - COURT 55.24 

101-5-130-42210 GRANO JURY - COURT 52.62 

101-5-130-42210 GRAND JURY - COURT 53.93

101-5-130-42210 GRANO JURY - COURT 53.93 

101-5-130-42210 GRANO JURY - COURT 53.93 

101-5-130-42210 GRANO JURY - COURT 89.30 

101-5-130-42210 GRANO JURY - COURT 52.62 

I-202408296196 101-5-130-42900 OTHER - COURT 25.50 01-04511 MICHAEL SMITH 

01-07755 HORN LAW OFFICE LLC I-202408296148 101-5-130-42200 PROF SERVICES - COURT 13,833.00 

01-10094 KOLETZKY LAW OFFICE, PR I-202408306206 101-5-130-42200 PROF SERVICES - COURT 954.50 

01-10094 KOLETZKY LAW OFFICE, PR I-202408306207 101-5-130-42200 PROF SERVICES - COURT 241.50 

01-10094 KOLETZKY LAW OFFICE, PR I-202408306208 101-5-130-42200 PROF SERVICES - COURT 207.00 

01-10094 KOLETZKY LAW OFFICE, PR I-202408306209 101-5-130-42230 MINOR - COURT 1,184.50 

DEPARTMENT 130 COURT TOTAL: 20,804.26 



A/30/2024 12t26 PM

VENDOR SET: 01 Yankton Counly
PACKET: 02398 XASITS CLAIMS
FUND : 101 GENERAL FIND
DEPARTMENT: 141 AUDIIOR

DIRECT PAYABLES DEPART!.,IENT PAYMENT REGISTER

o9-o3-202

PACE:
ITEMS PRINIED:

4
PAID, I,]NPAID

BANK: ALL

VENDOR NAME ITEM * G/L ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION CHECK* A}IOI'NT

01-15017 oUALIFIED PRESORT SERVr I-2024082961s9 101-5-141-42600 SUPpLIES - At DTTOR 293 36

DEPARTMENT 141 AUDITOR TOTAL: 293.36



a/3a/2024 12..26 PM

LENDoR sET: 01 Yankton County
PAC(ET: 023 98 KASI'S CLAIMS
FIND : 101 GENERAL FIND
DEPARTMENa: 142 TREASURER

DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTUEM PAYMENT REGISTER

09-03-202

PAGE
ITEMS PRINTED

5
PAID, UNPAID

BANK: AI,L

VENDOR NAME ITEM * G/L ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION CHECK* AMOUNT

01-16017 QUALTFTED PRESORT SERVr r-2024082951s8 101-s-142-42600 SUPPLTES - ?REASURER 214'44
o1-2101s pATTy VAI/RA I-20240A286L2| 101-5-142-42600 SUPPLIES - TREASURER 358.74

DEPARTMENI 142 TREASURER TOaAL: 573.18



a/30/2a2a :.2126 PM

VENDOR SET: 01 Yankton CounEy
PACKET: 02398 KASI'S CLAIMS
FUND : 101 GENERAL FUND
DEPARIMENT: 143 DATA PROCESSING

DIRECT PAYABI,ES DEPARTI,IENT PAYMENI REGISTER

09- 03-202

PAGE:
ITEMS PRINTED:

5

PAID, UNPAID

BANK: AI,T,

CHECK#VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOT,INT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

01- 0413 9 RTVERSTDE IECI|NOLOGTES, I-202409295L4L 101-5-143-42500 MAINTENANCE - DATA 26,68't,53

DEPARTMENT 143 DATA PROCESSING TOTAL 26,687.53



A/30/2024 12:25 Pltt
IENDOR SET: 01 Yanklon County
PACKE?: 02398 KASI'S CLAIMS -
FUND : 101 CENERAL FUND
DEPARTMENT: ls1 STATES ATTORNEY

DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTMENT PAYMEI{I REGISTER

09-03-202

PAGE
IIEMS PRINTED

7
PAID, T]NPAID

BANK: ALL

CHECK#ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT DESCRI PTION AMOIINTVENDOR NAME

01- 16 01?
ol-2to42

QUAI,IFIED PRESORT SERVI I. 20240A295161
vERrzoN I-202404295L56

r01-5-151-42600
101-5-151-42800

SUPPLIES - STATES ATTY
UTIIJITIES - STATES ATTY

so .79
87.'78

DEPARTMENT 151 STATES ATTORNEY TOTAL 138 .5?



I / 30 /2024
VENDOR SE?:
PACKET:
FUND
DEPARTMENT:

12 t26
01
02398
101
161

YankEon CounEy
XASI'S CLAIMS -

GENERAI, FUND
COVERNMENI CENTER

DIRECT PAYABIJES DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER

09-03-202

PAGE: 8

ITEMS PRINTED: PAID, UNPAID

BANK ! A.IJIJ

CHECK*

PM

VENDOR NAIVE ITEM # G/L AccoLNT DESCRIPTION Al,lOIJ'llT

01- 01011
01-02001
0t-02001
01-02001
01-04023
01- 04513
oL-o9247
01- 1216 7
01- 12157
01- 13 0 01
01-14005
01- 14 0 55
01-14055
01- 18 012
01- 18 012

BOMGAARS
CITY OF YANKTON
CITY OF YANKTON

CITY OF YANKTON
ECI,O GROUP
MIDWEST ALARM COMPANY,
JCL SOLTITIONS
MENARDS
MENARDS
NORTHWESTERN ENERGY
OLSON I S PES" TECHNICIAN
OTIS EI,EVATOR COMPANY
OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY

SD SPECIAL PAY PLAN
SD SPECIAL PAY PI,AN

a - 2a24aa296t11
r- 24244829614t
r- 202408296t42
r- 202408296L86
a - 20240a1a621fJ
r-202408245135
r-202408305213
r-202404296169
t -20240429617 0
r-202404306224
r-202408305225
r-2024042a61Lo
r-202408285111
r-202408286118
r-20240a2851L9

101-5-151-42600
101-5-161-42800
r01-5-161-42800
r0L-5-161-42800
r01-5-161-42500
101-5-161-42500
10t -5-161-42500
r01-5-t6t -42500
101-5-161-42500
r0l. - 5- t 51-428 00
101- 5- 1.51-42 500
101-5-151-42500
101-5-151-42500
101-5-161-41100
101-5-151-41300

SUPPLIES - GO1/1I CENTER
UTILITIES - GOVT CENTER
UTILITIES - GOVT CENTER
UTILITIES - GOVT CENTER
MAIN?ENANCE - GO!"T CENTER
MAINTENANCE . GOV? CEN?ER
SUPPLIES . GOVT CENTER
SUPPLIES - GOVT CENTER
MAINTENANCE - GOVT CENTER
UTILITIES - GOVT CENTER
MAINTENANCE . GOYT CENTER
MAINTENANCE . GO!"T CENTER
MAINTENANCE - GO\/T CENTER
SAI,ARY . GOYT CEMTER
RETIREMENT - GOVT CENTER

13.56
746 .32

2,364.38
LA6.42
260.00

1, 353 .41
100.12

91 .40
54.91

3, 121.31
84.00

988.95
100.00

3, 328 . 99
45.00

DEPARTMENT 161 GOVERNMENT CENTER TQTAL !2,153.).7



8/3O/202a 72:26 9M DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 9
VENDOR SET: 01 YANKTON COUNTY ITEMS PRINTED: PAID. UNPAID
PACKET: 02398 KASI'S CLAIMS - 09-03-202
FUND | 101 GENERAL FUND
DEPARfiENT: 152 DIRECTOR OF EQUAIIZATION BANK: ALL

VENDOR NA},IE ITEM $ G/I. ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION CHECX* AI.'IOT'MI

01-06063 MTCHELLE GOEKEN t-20240829619A 101-5-162-42700 TRAVEL - DOE 210.60
01-16017 OUATTTFTED PRESORT SERVr r-202408295150 101-5-162-42600 SUPPLTES - DOE 32.66

DEPARTMENT 152 DIRECTOR OF EQUAIIZATI TOTAL: 243.26



A/30/2O24 12t26 PM DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER
VENDOR SET: 01 Yankton County
PACKET: 02398 XASI'S CLAIMS - 09-03-202
FUND : 101 GENERAI, FUND
DEPARTMENT: 163 REGISTER OF DEEDS

PAGE: 10
IIEMS PRINTED: PAID, T'NPATD

BANK I AI,I,

CHECK*VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUN? DESCRIPTION NYOUNT

01-16017 OUALTFTED PRESORT SERVr r-202408295161 r01-5-153-42600 SUPPLIES . ROD

DEPARTMENT I53 REGISTER OF DEEDS

52.4t

52 .4tTOTAL



A/3a/2024 t2:25 PM

VENDOR SET: 01
DIRECT PAYABIJES DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER

Yankton County
KASI S CLATMS - O9-O3-202PACKET: 02394

FUND : 101
DEPARTMENT: 165

GENERAL FUND
VETERANS SERVICE OFFICER

PAGE:
ITEMS PRINTED:

tt
PAID, I'NPAID

BANK: AIJIT

CHECK*VENDOR NAI4E ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT DESCRI PTION AIVIOUNT

01- 16 017
0t-21042
oL-2t442

QUALTFTED PRESORT SERVr I-202404296163
vERrzoN t-202404296L55
vERrzoN t-202404306275

101-5-155-42600
101-5-165-42400
101- 5 - 16 5 - 421100

SUPPI,IES - VSO
UTILI?IES - VSO
RENTAI,S - VSO

I5.70
44.94
40.01

DEPARTMEN? 165 VETER.ANS SERVICE OFFIC TOTAL: 100.51



a/30/2o24 12126 PM DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER
\TENDOR SET: 01 Yankton County
PACKET: 02398 KASI'S CIJAIMS - 09-03-202
FIrND | 101 GENERAL FIND
DEPARTMEITT: 169 SAFETY CENTER BUILDING

PAGE:
ITEMS PRINTED:

12
PAID, UNPAID

BA],1(: Al,L

CHECK*VENDOR NAME ITEM H G/L ACCOUNT DESCRI PTION AMOUNT

01-02001
01-02001
01-04512
0t-12132
oL-12L67
oL-12371
01- 13 0 01

crTY oF YANKTON a-202404296143
crTY oF YANKTON r202404296t47
THE DRAIN DOCTOR. I,LC I-202404246].14
MIDCONTINENT COMMI'NICAT 7-202404306276
MENARDS r-202408296111
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY 7-202448306223
NORTTiWESTERN ENERGY 7-2O24O83O62L9

101-5-159-42800
101- 5 - 1.6 9 -42800
101-5-159-42s00
101-5-159-42800
101-5-169-42s00
101-5-159-42800
101-5-159-42a00

UTIT]ITIES'
UTILITIES.
MAINTENANCE
UTILI?IES -
MAINTENANCE
UTILITIES.
UAILITIES.

SAFETY CENTER
SAFETY CENTER

SAFETY CENTER
. SAFETY CENTER
SAFETY CENTER
SAFETY CENTER

783.28
106.43
396. 13
950.93
41. 68

49L.62
9,949 .52

DEPARTMENT 169 SAPE?Y CENTER BUILDING TOTAI,: 13, 119. 59



I / 30 /2a24
VENDOR SET:
PACKET:
Ft,ND
DEPARTMENT:

l2 t26
01
02398
101
2tt

Yanktoo County
XASI'S CLAIMS

GENERAL FI,'ND
SHERIFF

DIRECT PAYAALES DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER

o9-03 -202

PAGE
ITEMS PRINTED

13
PAID, UNPAID

PM

VENDOR NAI',IE ITEM E G/L ACCOUNT

BANK: AIL

cHECl(# AMOUNT

9 ,1t7 .95

DESCRIPTION

DEPARTMENA 2]1 SHERIPF

01-02531 CARDMEMBER SERVICES t-2O24O4246725 101-5-211-42600 SUPPLIES - SHERIFF 2,966.47
01-03682 LO, S DESIGNS LLC dba M I-20240A2A6129 101-s-2I1-42500 SUPPLTES - SIIERTFF 85..t3
01-04295 Ar & T MOBTLTTY r-20240a2a6113 107-3-217-42520 MAINTENANCE CONTFACT - SHERIF 84a_71
01-04615 ,JORDAN MAXON r-202404296197 101-5-211-42700 TRAVEL - SHERIFF 102.00
01-08019 TNTERS?ATE ALL BATTERY r-202408285127 101-5-211-42600 SUPPLTES - SHERTFF 34.80
01-09196 .IACKS T.TNTFORMS & EQUIPM r-202408285131 707-S-2tr-4264O INTFORMS - SHERTFF 2.393.A4
01-16017 QUA!rFrED PRESORT SERVr 1-202408295158 7a),-5-2tl-42529 MATNTENANCE CONTRACT - SHERIF 132.88
01-18412 STOPSTTCK, LTD. r-202408286L2A 101-5-211-42550 LAw ENAORCEMENTEoUTP - SHERIF !,a25.O0
01-19064 TIRE MUFFLER ALIGNMENT I-2024A8286LOO 101-5-211-42500 I,IAINTENANCE - SHERIFF 1l2.GO
01-19064 TrRE MUFFLER ALTSNMEN? r-202408286101 101-5-21r-42500 MATNTENANCE - SHERTFF 119.44
01-19064 TIRE MUFFLER ALIGNMENT I.2024082A6102 101-5-211-42500 MAINTENANCE - SHERIFF 75.30
01-1.9064 TrRE MUFFLER ALIGNMENT I-202408286103 101-s-21r-42500 MATNTEN]INCE - SHERTFF 29.19

TOTAL



a/30/2a24 L2t26 PM

VENDOR SET: 01 Yankton County
PACKET: 02398 KASI'S CLAIMS
FUND | 101 GENERAL EUND
DEPARTMENT: 212 COUNTY .IAIL

DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER

09-03-202

PAGE
ITEMS PRINTED

14
PAID, UNPAID

AANK: ALL

CHECK#VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOL'NT DESCRlPTION AMOLINT

o1-0t442
01-02531
01-03273
01-03578
01-03678
01-04295
o1-04354
01-04465
01- 0 7 582
01-14005
01- 15 0 51
01-r8290
01- 182 9 0

AARI.{S
CARDMEMBER SERVICES
MCKESSON MED I CAI]. ST'RGI C

TRINIfi SERVICES GROUP

TRINITY SERVICES GROUP

AT & T MOBII,ITY
BEADLE COUNTY SHERIFF I S

WHITNEY DELFORGE
HY.VEE
OI,SON'S PEST ?ECHIIIICTAN
PHARMCHEM INC.
S?RACI{AN SAI,ES, INC
STRACHAN SA"ES. INC

t-202404286L20
r-202444246126
7-202404246730
r-202408246098
r-202408286099
r-202408246712
r-202408296114
t-202408296t49
r-202408295175
t-202404306221
r-202404296t44
7-202404296419
r-202{08296180

101- S-212 -42200
1AL- 5 -21-2- 4250A
747- 5-2t2- 42200
tol-s -212- 42210
101-5 - 212- 422aO
tol -s- 212 - 42920
tol -5 - 212- 42200
107- S-2t2-42200
107- 5-272-42200
10L- s-272- 42540
107- 5-272- 42200
70t-5 -2L2- 4250A
lo!- 5- 2L2- 4250A

PROF SERVICES - JAII]
SUPPI,IES - JAIL
PROF SERVICES - JAIL
FOOD SERVICES - JAII,
FOOD SERVICES - .TAIL
MAINTENANCE CONTR,ACT
PROF SERVICES - JAIL
PROF SERVICES - JAIL
PROF SERVICES - JAIL
MAINTENANCE - JAIL
PROF SERVICES - JAII,
MAINTENANCE - JAIL
MAINTENANCE - JAIL

8?5.00
2,966.4'l

90.64
4,949 .0',1
4 ,9'70 .6t

204 -4L
190.00

1, 352 . s0
6.15

155.00
1,806. s1

54.05
622.64

.]AI L

DEPARTMENT 212 COUNTY JAIL TOTAL 18, 253 . 05



a/3o/2024 12t26 PM

VENDOR SET: 01 Yanklon County
PACKET: 02398 KASI'S CLAIMS
FUND : 101 GENERAL FIND
DEPARTMENT: 213 CORONER

DIRECT PAYABI,ES DEPARTI.4ENT PAYMENT REGISTER

09-03-202

PAGE| 15
ITEMS PRINTED: PAID. UNPAID

BAN(: ALII

CHECK*VENDOR NA}IE ITEM # G/L ACCo(n.IT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

01- 12 4 81
01- 18 17 0

ART'A NIC(LES
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

r-20240a296L99
r-20240a2a6t34

101-5-213-42700
101-5-213-42200

TRAVEL - CORONER
PROF SERVICES . CORONER

17.03
40.00

DEPARTMENT 213 CORONER TOTAL: 57. 03



8/3a/2024 :.2.26 PM DIRECT PAYABL,ES DEPARTMENT pAYMENT REGISTER
VENDOR SET: 01 YankEon Coltnty
PACKE": 02398 KASI's CLAIMS - 09-03-202
FUND : 101 GENERAL FI,ND
DEPARTMENT: 226 YANK?ON AREA SEARCH & RES

PAGE: 15
ITEMS PRINTED: PAID, UNPAID

BANK: ALL

CHECl(*DESCRIPTION

DEPAITMENT 225 YANKTON AREA SEARCH & TOTAL:

VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT AMOUNT

131.69

01-03122 DM RESCTE rN?ERNATION I-202408285139 IOL-5-225-4250O MATNTENINCE - YSAR 131.59



a/30/2024 12.26 PM

VENDOR SET: 01 YankEon County
PACKET: 023 98 KASI'S CI,AIMS
FIIND : 101 GENERAL FIND
DEPARTTIENT: 411. CARE OF POOR

DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER

a9 - 03-242

PACE: 1?
ITEMS PRINTED: PAID, UNPAID

BANK: AIL

cHSCK*VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOTINT

01-16017 QUATTFTED PRESORT SERVr r-202408296155 101-5-411-42600 SUPPLIES . POOR RELIEF

DEPARTMENT 411 CARE OF POOR

66.s6

66 .56TOTAI-:



S/3O/2O24 12.26 PM DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTMEN? PAYMENT REGISTER
VENDOR SET: 01 YankEon County
PACTGT: 02398 KASI'S CLAIMS - 09-03-202
FUND : tot GENERAL FI,ND
DEPARTT{ENT: 421 PUBLIC HEAL?H NURSE

PAGE
ITEMS PRINTED

18
PAID, T'NPATD

BANK: ALL

CHECK*VENDOR NAME ITEM * G/L ACcouNT DESCRIPTION A}4OUNT

01-15017 QUAiTFTED PRESORT SERVr r-202408296154 101 5 427-42600 SUPPLIES. NURSE

DEPARTMENT 421 PUBLIC HEALTH NURSE I'OTAL

40 .68

40.68



I / 30 /2024
VENDOR SET
PACKET r

FUND
DEPARTMENT

12,25
01
02398
101
424

Yankton County
I(AST'S CLAIMS

GENERAI, FT'ND
AMBUI,ANCE

DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTi{ENT PAYMENT REGISTER

09- 03-202

PM PAGE
ITEMS PRINTED

19
PAID, UNPAID

BANK: AI,I,

CHECK*VENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

01- 0 0 074
01- 0 0 31r
01- 0 0 31r
01- 0 0 311
01- 016 9 6

01- 02 0 01
0L-02125
01-03820
01-03820
01-04335
01-04335
01-04335
01-04388
01- 0? 58 2
01-08009
01- 12 3 71
01- 13 0 01
01-1.8937
01- 190 6 4
0r-19064
ot-2\o42

AVERA HEALTH dba AVEI.A
SACRED HEART HEAL1H SER
SACRED HEART HEALTH SER
SACRED HEART HEALTH SER
ESO SOLUTIONS, INC.
CITY OE YANKTON
CREDIT COLLECTION SERVI
AMAZON CAPITAI SERVTCES
AMAZON CAPITAI SERVICES
IIENRY SCHEIN
HENRY SCHEIN
I'ENRY SCHEIN
AUTO MAS?ERY
HY-VEE
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY
NORTHWESTERN ENERGY

STITCHIN CORNER & MORE

TIRE MUFFLER ALIGNI4EI{I
?IRE MUFFLER ALIGNMEN?
VERIZON

r-20240429513'l
r-202404246104
t-202404286145
r-202408285105
a-20240429620t
r-202408295185
r-202404296200
7-202404296202
r-202404296203
r-202408296192
1-202405296793
r-20240s296194
r-202404246to1
r-2024042951',7 4

1-202404286t09
r-202404306222
r-202408305218
r-202408285108
r-202404296204
7-202404295205
r-202408296150

loL-5-424 - 42200
LOt-5-424- 42200
LOI-5-424 -42200
LOI- 5-424 - 42204
loL-5-424 -42200
101-5-424-42800
lol-5-424-42200
LOt-5-424- 42600
tol-5-424 -42600
101-5-424-42500
to1"-5- 424-42600
101-5-424-42500
101-5-424-42500
101-5-424-42600
tol-5-424 -42204
101-5-424-42800
101-5-424-42800
tot-5-424 - 42500
LO1,-5-424 -42500
101-5-424-42500
101-5-424-42800

L72
r, 500
1, 500
1, s00
2,447

t47
86

74'7
83

283
13

L97
50

188
23

1.109
1.955

220
631
599

.00

.00

.00

.00

.88

.20

.17

.20

.98

.16

.85

.28

.94

.03

.50

.22

.15

.00

.24

.93

.'7 L

DEPARTMENT 424 AIIBULANCE TOTAL 13,496.19

PROF SERVICES - AITIBULANCE
PROF SERVICES - AMBULANCE
PROF SERVICES - A.IVIBULANCE

PROF SERVICES - A}4BULANCE
PROF SERVICES - A,I4BULANCE
UTILITIES - AMBUI,ANCE
PROF SERVICES - A]UBULANCE
SUPPLIES - AMBULANCE
SUPPLIES - A}'BULANCE
SUPPLIES - AMBULANCE
SUPPLIES - A]UBULANCE
SUPPLIES - AMBULANCE
MAIN?ENANCE . Ai'BULANCE
SUPPLIES - AMBULANCE
PROF SERVICES - AMBULANCE
UTILITIES - AMBUI.ANCE
U?ILITIES - AI.IBULANCE
SUPPLIES - A}IBULANCE
MAINTENANCE - AMBULANCE
MAINTENANCE - AI.IBUIANCE
UTILITIES - A]VIBULANCE



A/3O/2O24 12125 Pt4 DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTMEN? PAYMENT REGISTER
VENDOR SET: 01 Yankton County
PACKET: 02398 KASI'S CIAIMS - 09-03-202
FUND : 101 GENERAL FITND

DEPARTMENT: 445 MENTAIJ MNESS BOARD

PAGE
ITEMS PRINTAD

20
PAID, UNPAID

BAN(: ALI,

CHECKSVENDOR NAME ITEM # G/L ACCOT'NT DESCRIPTION AJV]OIJ'}'IT

01-04000
01- 10118
01- 110 9 2

01- 1213 4

vAr r,ARsoN t-202404295144
MARK (ATTERHAGEN I.2024O4296L43
LUCILLE M. LEWNO I-2O24O4296L42
MINNEIIAHA COUNTY At,DITO T- 2O24OA2A6LI5

101-5-445-00000
10L-5-445-00000
101-5-445-00000
101 -5-445-00000

HEAR INGS
HEAR INGS
HEARINGS
I{EARINGS

MENTAL TI,I,NF]SS
MENTAI ILLNESS
MENTAL ILLNESS
MENTAL ILLNESS

5.00
5 .00

372.25
1, 037.08

DEPAR?MENT 445 MENTAL ILLNESS BOARD TOTAI: t,421.33



a/3o/2o24 L2126 PI,I DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTMENI PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 21
VENDOR SET: OI YankEon County ITEMS PRTNTED. PAID, TNPAID
PACKETT 02398 KASI'S CLAIMS - 09-03-202
FUND : 101 GENERAL FIIND
DEPARTMET.IT: 511 COUNTY EXTENSION BANK: Al,L

VENDOR NA''IE ITEM * G/I, ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION CHECK* A}IOT'NT

01-01011 BOMGAARS r -202405296716 101-5-511-42900 4H - EXTENSTON 44.95
01-O12OO CLARITY TEIJECOM, LLC 7-2024053062:.2 101-5-511-42800 UTILITIES - EXTENSION 407.66
01-02001 crTY oF YANK?ON r-20240A2961A4 101-5-511-42800 urrlrTrEs - ExrENsroN 86.00
01-04514 CMOORE PlT SERVTCE r-202408286133 101-5-511-42900 4H - EXTENSTON 70.80
o1-o?5a2 HY-VEE r-20240a296113 101-5-511-42900 4It - EXTENSION 9.08
01-10258 GREAT AMERICA FTNANCTA! r-20240A296191 101-5-611-42400 RENTALS - EXTENSION 283.55
01-123?1 MIDAMERICAN ENERGY I-2O24OA3O622L 101-5-511-42800 UIII,ITIES . EXTENSION 9.83
01-14005 oLSON'S PEST TECENTCTAN 7-20240a305226 10r-s-611-42500 MAINTENANCE - EXTENSION 150.00

DEPARTMENT 611 COI'NTY EXTENSION 1, 051 . 87



e/3O/2O2a L2:26 PM DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTI4ENT PAYMENI REGISTER
VENDOR SET: 01 YankEon CounEy
PACKET: 02398 (Alir I S CLAIMS - 09-03-202
FUND : 101 GENERAL FTND
DEPARTMENT: 512 SOII, CONSERVATTON

PAGE: 22
lTEMS PRINTED: PAID, T,NPAID

BANK: AI,I,

CHECK#VENDOR NAI4E ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOI,NT

O1-O{395 RYANNE STICKNEY r -202404295t95 lol- 5-512 - 42704 TRAVEL - SOIL CONSERVATION

DEPARTMENT 512 SO]L CONSERVATION

95.60

95.60TOTAL:



I / 30 /202a
VENDOR SET
PACKE?:
FUND
DEPARTMENT

12 t26
01
02398
101
515

Yank!on CounEy
KASI ' S CLAIMS

GENERAL FUND
WEED

DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER

o9 -o3 -202

PM PAGE: 23
ITEMS PRINTED: PAID, UNPAID

BANK: A,JL

CHECK#I'IEM } G/L ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AI4OUNTVENDOR NAME

01-02008
0t-21442

NAPA ALT"O PARTS OF YANK I-20240A216061
vERrzoN r-202404296753

10r-5-615-42500
101-5'615-42800

MAINTENANCE _ I'IEED

UTILITIES. WEED

393. O1

27.59

DEPARTMENT 515 WEED TOTAI; 420 .'lo



A/3O/2O24 L2t26 PM DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER
VENDOR SET: 01 Yankton CoLrnEy
PACKET: 02398 KASI'S CLAIMS - 09-03-202
FUND : 101 GENERAL FUND
DEPARTMEMI: ?11 PLANNING & zoNING

PAGE: 24
ITEMS PRINTED: PAID, UNPAID

BANK: Al,L

CHECK*ITEM # G/L ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AI4OUNTVENDOR NAME

01- 15 017
0L-21042

QUALIFIED PRESORT SERVI T.202408296!62
vERrzoN r-202404296154

101-5-711-42500
101-5-711-42800

SUPPLIES - ZONING
I'TILITIES. ZONING

31. 16
44 .90

DEPARTMENT 711 PLANNING & ZONING TOTAL I 76.06

FUND 101 GENERAL FUND TOTAI,: 729,864 -94



8/3O/2O2a nt26 Pl4 DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTT{ENT PAyMENT REGISTER
VENDOR sEI: 01 YankEon County
PACKET: 02398 xASI'S CLAIMS - 09-03-202
FUND : 201 ROAD & BRIDGE
DEPARIIIENT: 311 HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION & MA

PAGE: 25
ITEMS PRINTED: PAID, I,NPAID

BANK: ALL

VENDOR NAI''E ITEM * G/L ACCOT'NT DESCRIPTTON CIiECK* AMOUNT

o1-oo2s? APPEARA 7-202405276069 201-s-311-42600 SUPPLTES - EWY 152.97
ot-00514 c & B oPERATIONS, LLC a-2O2qOe276O7O 201-5-311-42500 MAINTENANCE - HWY 12,262.82
01-oLo11 BoMGAARS r-202401276071 2or-s-311-42500 MATNTENANCE - HWY 16-94
01-02001 crTY oF YANKTON r-20240a2760?2 201-5-311-42800 UTTLTTTES - HWY 302-54
o1-o2oo8 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF YANK r-2024082750?3 201-5-311-42500 MATNTENANCE - HWY 441 .24
01-02008 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF YANK r-2024082?50?4 201-s-311-42600 SUPPLTES - llWY 1.139.11
o1-02L5? CERTTFTED T,ABOR-ATORTES r-20240a2'7507s 201-s-311-42600 SUPPLTES - HWY 284.45
01-0425? CITY OF YANKTON - T.ANDF r-202408276076 201-5-311-42800 UrrlrrrEs - Hwv 5.50
01-0440? sourH DAKoTA TABOR LA$ r-20240A215077 2o1-5-31L-426oo SUPPLIES - HWY 99.50
01-04489 NEW CENTURY FS 1-20240a21507A 201-5-311-42640 HIGIIWAY FIIEL - rWY 2,421.',72
01-06244 GRAHAM TrRE YANKTON 1-20240a215079 2 o 1 - s - 3 11. - 4 2 5 o O MATNTENANCE - HWY 250.49
o1-o7o?o HoLLAWAY CONSTRUC?rON C r-202408275080 2ot-5-371-42902 EMERGENCTES - HWY 4,s91.85
01-08014 r STATE TRUCK CENTER r-20240A2160e1 201-5-311-42500 MAINTENANCE - HWY 1,883.62
01-11049 LEAF 1-20240A2760A2 201-5-311-42600 SUPPLTES - Hr'lY 124.94
o1-12L91 METRO COUNT TRAF!'rC DA{r r-2A240A2760a3 201-s-311-42600 SUPPLTES - HWY 135.00
01-12213 MTDWEST RADTATOR & EXHA r-202408275084 201-s-311-42500 MATNTENANCE - HWY 110.00
01-1?225 RTVERSTDE EYDRAULICS & r-2A24092760A5 201-5-311-42500 MATNaENANCE - HWY 9A-31
01-21042 !'ERTZON r -20240a295L52 201-s-311-42800 UTTLTTTES - sWY 62-09
01-24008 YANKTON .IANTTORTAL SUPP r-2024082?5086 201-5-311-42600 SUPPL1ES - HWY 441.80
01-24031 YANKTON THRTVE r-20240A276057 201-5-311-42?00 TRAVEL - HWY 15.00

DEPARTMENT 311 HICHWAY CONSTRUCTION & TOTAL 24,847.41

Ft]ND 2OI ROAD & BRIDGE TOTAL: 24,84',7 -03



a/30/2024 \2.26 Pt4
VENDOR SET; 01
PACKET: 02398
FUND , 201
DEPARTMENT: 225

Yanktson CounEy
(ASIIS Cr,ArMS - A9-03-202

EMERGENCY 911 FU}.ID

LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING

DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER

G/L ACCOUNT

PAGE: 26
ITEMS PRINTED: PAID, UNPAID

BAN(: ALL

CHECK#VENDOR NAME ITEM * DESCRIPTION AMOLINT

01-01200
0t- 02692
ot - !2t32
0t-18015

CI,ARITY TELECOM, LLC I.202408306211
CENTURYLINK r-202404286132
MIDCONIINENI COMMUNICAT A-2O24OE3O62I'7
SD DEPARTMENT OF PUBI.IC I-20240429515'7

20't - 5-225- 42800
201- 5-225-42AaO
207 -5-225-42gAO
201-s-225-42400

Ull LITIES
(,I'TILITIES
UTILITIES
UTILITIES

E91t
8911
E 911
E 911

1, 103 . 35
95.99

150. 39
3,090.00

DEPARTMEN? 225 LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNI TOTAL: 4,439.14

FUND 2A7 EMERGENCY 911 FUND TOTAL: 4,439 ,',74



8/30/2024 12126 PM DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTUENT PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE: 27

VENDOR SET: 01 Yankton CounEy ITEMS PRINTED: PAID, UNpAID
PACKET: 02398 KASI'S CLAIMS - 09-03-202
FUND ., 226 EMERGENCY MANAGEMEI{I
DEPARTfiENI: 222 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT BANK: A],I.

VENDOR NAI.IE ITEM S G/L ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION CHECI(* AMOUNI

01-01131 IIANSON BRTGGS SPECIALTY I-20240A2a61-3A 225-s-222-42500 SUpPLIES - EDS 131.!10
01-10258 CREAT AITERTCA FTNANCTA! l-20240a296190 226-3-222-42400 RENTAI,S - EDS 227.43
01-1216? MENARDS r -20240A295172 226-5-222-42500 SUPPLTES - EDS '195-76

01-12371 MTDAMERTCAN ENERGY r-202408306224 226-5-222-42A00 UrrLrTrES - EDS 9.25
01-18510 TWO WAY SOLUTTONS rNC I-20240A2A6L36 226-5-222-42500 MATNTENANCE - EDS ?65,00
01-21042 VERTZON r-202405296L57 226-5-222-42A00 UTrLrrrES - EDS 95'7.5L

DEPARTMENT 222 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT TOTAI: 2,897.45

EUND 225 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT T'OTAL 2,897.45



8/30/2024 12.26 PM

vENDoR sETr 01 Yankton county
PACKET: 02398 KASf'S CTAIMS -
FUND | 740 DRAINAGE DITCHES
DEPARTMEI.IT: N/A NON - DE PARTMENTAI,

DIRECT PAYABLES DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER

09- 03 - 202

PAGE: 28
ITEMS PRINTED: PAID, UNPAID

BANK: ALL

VENDOR NAII4E ITEM S G/I, ACCOT,INT DESCRIPTION CHECK# AUOT'N:T

01-05049 FETMER CONSTRUCTION INC I-20240828511'1 74O-2IOO8 YANKTON COUNTY DITCH 7,553.08

DEPARTMENT O OOO NON -DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL 7, 553 . 08

FUND 744 DRAINAGE DITCHES TOTAL

REPORT GRA TOTAL

7, 653 . 08

t69 ,7 02 .24



 8/27/2024  1:51 PM                            P A Y R O L L   R E G I S T E R                                       PAGE:     87

DEPT:  ALL

PAYROLL NO#: 01

PAY PERIOD BEGINNING:  8/01/2024

PAY PERIOD ENDING:     8/30/2024

                                                  *** G R A N D  T O T A L S ***

----------EARNINGS-----------  ----BENF/REIMB-----   -----------DEDUCTIONS-----------   -------------------TAXES--------------------

DESC         HRS       AMOUNT  DESC         AMOUNT    CD  ABBV    EMPLOYEE    EMPLOYER   DESC        TAXABLE    EMPLOYEE   EMPLOYER

SAL          0.00  323,868.02  VEH           96.00    010 PENSU    1550.00               FED W/H  478,349.19   38,364.89

HOUR     7,199.25  155,465.75                         011 ROTH     3425.00               ST WH SD       0.00        0.00

OVERT      615.75   22,202.16                         020 AFLAC     862.45               ST WH NE   6,612.33      206.77

VAC        588.46    6,884.07                         030 COL       154.57               FICA     512,361.70   31,766.45   31766.45

SICK       476.25    4,712.11                         050 OPTLG     285.34               MEDI     512,361.70    7,429.30    7429.30

CELL         0.00    1,000.00                         061 GARN      200.00

LONG         0.00      591.65                         100 NRS        69.44

VACPO        0.00   14,413.81                         11  SDRS6   16471.87    16471.87

HOL         60.00        0.00                         12  SDRS8   15921.20    15921.20

FNRL        10.00      264.50                         410 FLEXA    3638.42

WC-2         8.00        0.00                         420 LIFE      290.69

                                                      430 FLEXC     362.06

                                                      440 VSP       550.93

                                                      450 DELTA    2912.26

                                                      460 MEDI     2839.71

                                                      461 MEDI                42858.00

                                                      463 MEDI                12355.46

                                                      464 HSA      3206.00

                                                      465 MEDI                16334.64

                                                      467 MEDI     3341.65

                                                      471 MEDI                 4226.54

                                                      P7  SPOUS     193.99

TOTALS:  8,957.71  529,402.07                96.00                56275.58   108167.71                         77,767.41   39195.75

-----------------------------------------------------------DEPARTMENT RECAP---------------------------------------------------------

DEPT NO#         GROSS      REGULAR     OVERTIME        LEAVE        OTHER     BENEFITS   DEDUCTIONS        TAXES          NET

 

101-111       6,373.29     6,373.29         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.00       791.75     5,581.54

101-141      17,065.70    16,865.70         0.00         0.00       200.00         0.00     1,640.57     2,837.95    12,587.18

101-142      21,512.20    21,512.20         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.00     1,814.50     3,468.24    16,229.46

101-151      40,873.85    40,873.85         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.00     3,062.87     6,483.87    31,327.11

101-161       9,297.68     7,096.48       993.26     1,021.29       141.65        45.00     1,089.40     1,372.19     6,791.09

101-162      24,276.40    23,976.40         0.00         0.00       300.00         0.00     3,651.51     3,023.02    17,601.87

101-163      17,444.72    17,069.72         0.00         0.00       375.00         0.00     1,058.56     2,902.53    13,483.63

101-165       3,791.13     3,326.91         0.00       464.22         0.00         0.00       511.34       352.96     2,926.83

101-169       7,228.78     6,235.74       155.84       787.20        50.00         0.00       713.99       796.37     5,718.42

101-211      82,834.42    74,231.39     1,801.24         0.00     6,801.79         0.00    10,130.75    11,456.19    61,247.48

101-212      94,732.87    84,260.26     7,276.29         0.00     3,196.32         0.00    12,420.95    13,512.40    68,799.52

101-213       2,300.00     2,250.00         0.00         0.00        50.00         0.00         0.00       285.13     2,014.87

101-421       3,567.30     3,567.30         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.00       513.76       477.94     2,575.60



 8/27/2024  1:51 PM                            P A Y R O L L   R E G I S T E R                                       PAGE:     88

DEPT:  ALL

PAYROLL NO#: 01

PAY PERIOD BEGINNING:  8/01/2024

PAY PERIOD ENDING:     8/30/2024

-----------------------------------------------------------DEPARTMENT RECAP---------------------------------------------------------

DEPT NO#         GROSS      REGULAR     OVERTIME        LEAVE        OTHER     BENEFITS   DEDUCTIONS        TAXES          NET

 

101-424      82,854.48    66,681.58    11,582.20         0.00     4,590.70         0.00     5,740.07    12,706.71    64,407.70

101-427         522.45       522.45         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.00        89.97       432.48

101-611       4,413.26     4,263.26         0.00         0.00       150.00         0.00       454.50       645.09     3,313.67

101-612       2,908.86     2,908.86         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.00       174.53       252.63     2,481.70

101-711      12,367.44    12,367.44         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.00     2,400.16     1,679.16     8,288.12

201-311      81,239.52    71,687.85        45.84     9,304.83       150.00        51.00     9,432.92    12,471.82    59,283.78

226-222      11,531.16    10,900.53       347.49       283.14         0.00         0.00     1,276.20     1,845.06     8,409.90

248-212       2,362.56     2,362.56         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.00       189.00       316.43     1,857.13

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

TOTALS      529,498.07   479,333.77    22,202.16    11,860.68    16,005.46        96.00    56,275.58    77,767.41   395,359.08

====================================================================================================================================

     REGULAR INPUT:  143         MANUAL INPUT:    2           CHECK STUB COUNT:    0       DIRECT DEPOSIT STUB COUNT: 145


	Item 4: Agenda
	Item 5: Approve Provisional Budget
	Item 6: Vacate Portion of Section Line
	Item 7: DOT Amendment for Agreement 717396 & Purchase of New Loader
	DOT Amendment for Agreement 717396
	Purchase of New Loader

	Item 8: Pathways
	Item 9: Definitions and Article 26 – Wind Energy Conversion 
Systems 2nd Reading & Letter from Law Office
	Definitions and Article 26 – Wind Energy Conversion Systems 2nd Reading
	Letter from Law Office

	Item 12: August 20, Meeting Minutes
	Item 13: Claims & August 2024 Payroll
	Claims
	August 2024 Payroll




